
1.The Board may adjourn from the public meeting at any time during the agenda to receive information and conduct labor-oriented 
discussions in accordance with NRS 288.220 or receive information from legal counsel regarding potential or existing litigation and 
to deliberate toward a decision on such matters related to litigation or potential litigation.. 

D 
 

TRUCKEE MEADOWS WATER AUTHORITY 
Board of Directors 

 AGENDA  

Wednesday, January 20, 2021 at 10:00 a.m. 
Virtual meeting only. 

 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY ATTEND VIA THE WEB LINK, OR  
TELPHONICALLY BY CALLING THE NUMBER, LISTED BELOW.  

NO PHYSICAL LOCATION IS BEING PROVIDED FOR THIS MEETING 
(be sure to keep your phones or microphones on mute, and do not place the call on hold) 

Please click the link below to join the webinar:  
https://tmwa.zoom.us/j/93199705901?pwd=b1BNd2hHM2pqVkVhZFlCcGgzV1NkUT09 

Password: 205040 
Or call: 

Phone: (888) 788-0099 
Webinar ID: 931 9970 5901 

 
Board Members 

Chair Vaughn Hartung Vice Chair Kristopher Dahir 
Member Neoma Jardon Member Alexis Hill 
Member Jenny Brekhus Member Naomi Duerr 
Member Paul Anderson  

NOTES: 
1. This meeting is being conducted pursuant to the Governor’s Declaration of Emergency Directive 006 (“Directive 006 
http://gov.nv.gov/News/Emergency_Orders/2020/2020-03-22_-_COVID-19_Declaration_of_Emergency_Directive_006/. 
and will be held by teleconference only. 
2. The announcement of this meeting has been electronically posted in compliance with NRS 241.020(3) and Directive 
006 at http://www.tmwa.com, and NRS 232.2175 at https://notice.nv.gov/. 
3. Pursuant to Directive 006, the requirement contained in NRS 241.020(3)(c) that physical locations be available for the 
public to receive supporting material for public meetings has been suspended. Staff reports and supporting material for the 
meeting are available on the TMWA website at http://www.tmwa.com/meeting/ or you can contact Sonia Folsom at (775) 834-
8002. Supporting material is made available to the general public in accordance with NRS 241.020(6). 
4. The Board may elect to combine agenda items, consider agenda items out of order, remove agenda items, or delay 
discussion on agenda items. Arrive at the meeting at the posted time to hear item(s) of interest. 
5. Asterisks (*) denote non-action items. 
6. Pursuant to Directive 006, public comment, whether on action items or general public comment, may be provided 
without being physically present at the meeting by submitting written comments online on TMWA’s Public Comment Form 
(tmwa.com/PublicComment) or by email sent to boardclerk@tmwa.com prior to the Board opening the public comment period 
during the meeting. In addition, public comments may be provided by leaving a voicemail at (775)834-0255 prior to 4:00 p.m. 
the day before the scheduled meeting. Voicemail messages received will be noted during the meeting and summarized for entry 
into the record. Public comment is limited to three minutes and is allowed during the public comment periods. The Board may 
elect to receive public comment only during the two public comment periods rather than each action item. Due to constraints of 
TMWA’s videoconference system, public comment must be provided by voicemail, email or online comment as indicated above. 
7. In the event the Chairman and Vice-Chairman are absent, the remaining Board members may elect a temporary 
presiding officer to preside over the meeting until the Chairman or Vice-Chairman are present (Standing Item of Possible 
Action). 
8. Notice of possible quorum of Western Regional Water Commission:  Because several members of the Truckee 
Meadows Water Authority Board of Directors are also Trustees of the Western Regional Water Commission, it is possible that a 
quorum of the Western Regional Water Commission may be present, however, such members will not deliberate or take action at 
this meeting in their capacity as Trustees of the Western Regional Water Commission. 

https://tmwa.zoom.us/j/93199705901?pwd=b1BNd2hHM2pqVkVhZFlCcGgzV1NkUT09
http://gov.nv.gov/News/Emergency_Orders/2020/2020-03-22_-_COVID-19_Declaration_of_Emergency_Directive_006/
http://www.tmwa.com/
https://notice.nv.gov/
http://www.tmwa.com/meeting/
https://tmwa.com/comments-to-the-board/
mailto:boardclerk@tmwa.com


Truckee Meadows Water Authority Board of Directors Agenda for January 20, 2021 
Page 2 

1.The Board may adjourn from the public meeting at any time during the agenda to receive information and conduct labor-oriented 
discussions in accordance with NRS 288.220 or receive information from legal counsel regarding potential or existing litigation 
and to deliberate toward a decision on such matters related to litigation or potential litigation.. 

1. Roll call* 

2. Pledge of allegiance* 

3. Welcome New Board Member — Chair Hartung* 

4. Public comment  limited to no more than three minutes per speaker* 

5. Possible Board comments or acknowledgements* 

6. Approval of the agenda (For Possible Action) 

7. Approval of the minutes of the December 16, 2020 meeting of the TMWA Board of 
Directors (For Possible Action)  

8. Water Supply Update — Bill Hauck* 

9. Appointment of Trustee to the Western Regional Water Commission (WRWC) pursuant to 
Sec.25(3)(c) of the WRWC Act from the following list of qualified persons to fill the 
remaining term ending March 31, 2021 vacated by Member Jeanne Herman: Alexis Hill — 
John Zimmerman (For Possible Action)  

10. Discussion and action on nomination and appointments of Trustee(s) to the Western Regional 
Water Commission (WRWC) from the TMWA Board of Directors for the following 
positions to fill vacancies ending March 31, 2021 and for new two year terms from April 1, 
2021 to March 31, 2023:   

A) Pursuant to Sec.25(3)(a) of the WRWC Act from the following list of qualified 
persons: Jenny Brekhus and Neoma Jardon. 
B) Pursuant to Sec.25(3)(b) of the WRWC Act from the following list of qualified 
persons: Paul Anderson. 
C) Pursuant to Sec.25(3)(c) of the WRWC Act from the following list of qualified 
persons: Alexis Hill. 
D) Pursuant to Sec. 25(4) of the WRWC Act representing TMWA as successor to South 
Truckee Meadows General Improvement District from the following list of qualified 
persons: Jenny Brekhus, Oscar Delgado, Neoma Jardon, Devon Reese, Hillary Schieve, 
Jeanne Herman, Bob Lucey, Kitty Jung, Charlene Bybee, and Ed Lawson. 

 John Zimmerman (For Possible Action)  

11. Update on 2020 Interim Session and discussion and action on establishing a Legislative 
Subcommittee for the 2021 Legislative Session and appointment of Board members to 
Subcommittee — John Zimmerman (For Possible Action) 

12. Informational presentation on management of TMWA’s water resources, cooperation and 
integration of regional water resource management and potential future development of 
additional water supplies — John Enloe and John Zimmerman* 

 



Truckee Meadows Water Authority Board of Directors Agenda for January 20, 2021 
Page 3 

1.The Board may adjourn from the public meeting at any time during the agenda to receive information and conduct labor-oriented 
discussions in accordance with NRS 288.220 or receive information from legal counsel regarding potential or existing litigation 
and to deliberate toward a decision on such matters related to litigation or potential litigation.. 

13. Discussion and informational presentation in response to Board member inquiries regarding 
suspension of water service for water waste on private laterals and landlord authority to 
impose water service surcharge on tenant rent bills and possible direction to staff — John 
Zimmerman (For Possible Action) 

14. General Manager’s Report*  

15. Public comment  limited to no more than three minutes per speaker*  

16. Board comments and requests for future agenda items* 

17. Adjournment (For Possible Action) 



December 16, 2020 TMWA Board Minutes Page 1 of 6 
DRAFT – NOT APPROVED BY BOARD 

TRUCKEE MEADOWS WATER AUTHORITY  
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 16, 2020 

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Board of Directors met on Wednesday, December 16, 2020, via Zoom Virtual Meeting, Reno, 
Nevada. Chair Hartung called the meeting to order at 10:04 a.m. 

1. ROLL CALL

Members Present: Paul Anderson, Jenny Brekhus, Kristopher Dahir, Naomi Duerr, Neoma Jardon, 
Vaughn Hartung, and Jeanne Herman. 

A quorum was present by telephonic appearance. 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The pledge of allegiance was led by Member Jardon. 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT

There was no public comment. 

4. POSSIBLE BOARD COMMENTS OR ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS*

Chair Hartung congratulated Mr. Chris Wessel for being approved as the next program manager to the 
Western Regional Water Commission (WRWC). 

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Upon motion by Member Duerr second by Member Dahir, which motion 
duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the Board 
approved the agenda.  

6. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 21, 2020 MEETING

Upon motion by Member Jardon, second by Member Hartung, which motion 
duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the Board 
approved the October 21, 2020 minutes.  

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 7



 

 
December 16, 2020 TMWA Board Minutes Page 2 of 6 

DRAFT – NOT APPROVED BY BOARD  

7. WATER SUPPLY UPDATE 

Bill Hauck, TMWA Water Supply Administrator, informed the Board that the series of storms recently 
increased snowpack by about 20 percent and at least a foot of new snow; the snowpack is about 75 percent 
of normal in the Truckee Basin, which is close to normal for this time of year; the remaining winter months 
could add more snowpack; and TMWA has about 35,000 acre feet in upstream storage, which positively 
positions TMWA in the event of a dry winter, and for at least two years. 

Chair Hartung requested a presentation by the National Weather Service similar to what was presented to 
the Truckee Meadows Fire and Rescue Board of Directors. 

 

8. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ON ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 289: A 
RESOLUTION APPROVING TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP OF 0.16 ACRES OF 
SURPLUS LAND NEAR TMWA DOUBLE DIAMOND WELL NO. 2 TO 
NEIGHBORING PROPERTY OWNER FOR NO CONSIDERATION 

Heather Edmunson, TMWA Land Agent, informed the Board TMWA was gifted a piece of property 
adjacent to the Double Diamond Well No. 2 site, which will be subdivided where TMWA will retain the 
northerly portion of the parcel to grant access and easement to increase the lot size for future expansion 
and maintenance.  The General Manager has certified that the southern portion is not necessary for 
efficient operation of the water system and may be transferred to the adjacent property owner as surplus 
property upon resolution by the Board that it is too small to establish an economically viable use. 

Upon motion by Member Brekhus second by Member Dahir, which motion 
duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the Board 
adopted Resolution No. 289: A resolution approving transfer of ownership of 
0.16 acres of surplus land near TMWA Double Diamond Well No. 2 to 
neighboring property owner for no consideration. 

 

9. DISCUSSION AND ACTION CONFIRMING GENERAL MANAGER’S 
APPOINTMENT OF FOUR TRUSTEES TO THE §115 POST-RETIREMENT 
MEDICAL PLAN & TRUST FOR A TWO-YEAR TERM FROM JANUARY 1, 2021 
THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2022 

Upon motion by Member Duerr second by Member Brekhus, which motion 
duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the Board 
approved General Manager’s appointment of four trustees (Michele 
Sullivan, Sandra Tozi, Charles Atkinson and Randy Van Hoozer) to the §115 
Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust for a two-year term from January 1, 
2021 through December 31, 2022. 

 

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 7



 

 
December 16, 2020 TMWA Board Minutes Page 3 of 6 

DRAFT – NOT APPROVED BY BOARD  

10. DISCUSSION AND ACTION CONFIRMING GENERAL MANAGER’S 
APPOINTMENT OF FOUR TRUSTEES TO THE §501-C-9 POST-RETIREMENT 
MEDICAL PLAN & TRUST FOR A TWO-YEAR TERM FROM JANUARY 1, 2021 
THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2022 

Upon motion by Member Duerr second by Member Brekhus, which motion 
duly carried by six to zero of the members voting, the Board approved the 
General Manager’s appointment of four Trustees (Michele Sullivan, Juan 
Esparza, James Weingart and Steve Enos) to the §501-c-9 Post-Retirement 
Medical Plan & Trust for a two-year term from January 1, 2021 through 
December 31, 2022. (Member Anderson, who participated telephonically, did 
not indicate a vote on the item) 

 

11. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ON ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 290: A 
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL 
REPORT (CAFR) FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Matt Bowman, TMWA Financial Controller, acknowledged Sophie Cardinal, TMWA Principal 
Accountant, who facilitated the majority of the audit with Eide Bailly. Mr. Bowman presented the updated, 
online user-friendly, CAFR, with included various audit reports from Eide Bailly with no audit findings. 

Upon motion by Member Brekhus second by Member Jardon, which motion 
duly carried by six to zero of the members voting, the Board adopted 
Resolution No. 290: A resolution to approve the Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report for Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2020. (Member Herman, 
who participated telephonically, did not indicate a vote on the item) 

 

12 PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR FIRST QUARTER 
FISCAL YEAR 2021 

Mr. Bowman stated TMWA saw higher water usage, about 6% over budget in water sales, in the first 
quarter; operating expenses were $1.6m lower than budget; non-operating expenses were higher than 
budget due primarily to lower investment income ($2.8m compared to $2.1m in the budget); capital 
contributions were slightly higher than budgeted by $0.7m; and cash position is $3.2m higher than at the 
beginning of the fiscal year at $209.0m, and TMWA made its first principal payment of $10.5m (principal 
payments were deferred in TMWA’s 2016 Refunding Bonds) on its senior lien debt. 

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 7



 

 
December 16, 2020 TMWA Board Minutes Page 4 of 6 

DRAFT – NOT APPROVED BY BOARD  

13. DISCUSSION AND ACTION, AND POSSIBLE DIRECTION TO STAFF 
REGARDING APPOINTMENTS TO THE STANDING ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
TO FILL VACANCIES IN EXISTING POSITIONS WHOSE TERMS EXPIRE 
DECEMBER 31, 2020, SUCH APPOINTMENTS TO BE MADE FOR NEW TERMS 
FROM JANUARY 1, 2021 TO DECEMBER 31, 2022 FROM THE FOLLOWING 
LIST OF CANDIDATES: (1) NEIL MCGUIRE, PRIMARY REPRESENTATIVE, 
IRRIGATION CUSTOMER; (2) KARL KATT, ALTERNATE REPRESENTATIVE, 
IRRIGATION CUSTOMER; (3) DONALD KOWITZ, PRIMARY 
REPRESENTATIVE, COMMERCIAL CUSTOMER; (4) ROBERT CHAMBERS, 
PRIMARY REPRESENTATIVE, SENIOR CUSTOMER; (5) KEN MCNEIL, 
PRIMARY REPRESENTATIVE, AT-LARGE 1 CUSTOMER; (6) KEN BECKER, 
ALTERNATE REPRESENTATIVE, AT-LARGE 1 CUSTOMER; (7) JORDAN 
HASTINGS, PRIMARY REPRESENTATIVE, AT-LARGE 2 CUSTOMERS; (8) 
CAROL LITSTER, PRIMARY REPRESENTATIVE, REPRESENTATIVE 1 
CUSTOMER; (9) DALE SANDERSON, ALTERNATE REPRESENTATIVE, 
REPRESENTATIVE 2 CUSTOMERS; (10) HARRY CULBERT, PRIMARY 
REPRESENTATIVE, REPRESENTATIVE 2 CUSTOMER; (11) FRED ARNDT, 
ALTERNATE REPRESENTATIVE, REPRESENTATIVE 2 CUSTOMERS; AND (12) 
JERRY WAGER, PRIMARY REPRESENTATIVE, REPRESENTATIVE 3 
CUSTOMER 

Sonia Folsom, TMWA Standing Advisory Committee Liaison, presented the staff report. 

The Board discussed bringing back an item to discuss the composition of the Committee at a future 
meeting to address the increase in multi-family units in the region, many of which are in the Cities of 
Sparks and Reno, as well as expanding the parameters in the recruitment (to include tenants) to fill the 
Multi-Family Primary Customer Representative position.  

Upon motion by Member Duerr, second by Member Herman, which motion 
duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the Board 
approved appointments to the Standing Advisory Committee to fill vacancies 
in existing positions whose terms expire December 31, 2020, such 
appointments to be made for new terms from January 1, 2021 to December 
31, 2022 from the following list of candidates: (1) Neil McGuire, primary 
representative, irrigation customer; (2) Karl Katt, alternate representative, 
irrigation customer; (3) Donald Kowitz, primary representative, commercial 
customer; (4) Robert Chambers, primary representative, senior customer; 
(5) Ken McNeil, primary representative, at-large 1 customer; (6) Ken Becker, 
alternate representative, at-large 1 customer; (7) Jordan Hastings, primary 
representative, at-large 2 customers; (8) Carol Litster, primary 
representative, representative 1 customer; (9) Dale Sanderson, alternate 
representative, representative 2 customers; (10) Harry Culbert, primary 
representative, representative 2 customer; (11) Fred Arndt, alternate 

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 7



 

 
December 16, 2020 TMWA Board Minutes Page 5 of 6 

DRAFT – NOT APPROVED BY BOARD  

representative, representative 2 customers; and (12) Jerry Wager, primary 
representative, representative 3 customer. 

Upon motion by Member Duerr, second by Member Dahir, which motion 
duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the Board 
approved to advertise for the Multi-Family Primary Customer 
Representative position, and to bring back candidates and discussion of 
composition and possible modification of multi-family position at future 
board meeting. 

 

14. PRESENTATION OF TRUCKEE RIVER FUND ACTIVITIES FOR CALENDAR 
YEAR 2020 

Ms. Folsom informed the Board of the projects the Truckee River Fund (the Fund) approved in calendar 
year 2020. Since 2005, the Fund has approved 181 projects, awarded $14.1m, with a total match of $23.2m 
in cash and in-kind services. 

 

15. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ON SCHEDULING REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
DATES AND TIMES FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR 2021 

Ms. Folsom presented the proposed Board meeting schedule for calendar year 2021.  

The Board discussed moving the meeting dates that conflicted with City of Reno Council meetings to the 
third Thursday in July and November. 

Upon motion by Member Duerr, second by Member Dahir, which motion 
duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the Board 
approved the proposed dates and times for the Calendar Year 2021 and 
amended dates for July and November. 

 

16. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

Mr. Foree reported to the Board the south gate at Hunter Creek Reservoir has been opened granting access 
to the public on a trial basis and if there are no issues, it will remain open. He thanked the Board and staff 
for another great year, especially considering the difficult times due to the pandemic; staff continues to 
exceed expectations. 

 

17. PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was no public comment. 

 

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 7



 

 
December 16, 2020 TMWA Board Minutes Page 6 of 6 

DRAFT – NOT APPROVED BY BOARD  

 

18. BOARD COMMENTS AND REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

Member Brekhus requested an agenda item to discuss landlord surcharges on water billing (charged in 
monthly rent) to multi-family residents. 

Vice Chair Dahir requested an update on the digital plan review process. 

Member Duerr requested an item be added at a future meeting to discuss composition of the Standing 
Advisory Committee. 

Member Duerr requested an item be added at a future meeting to discuss authorizing TMWA to turn off 
water service where water waste occurs in private lateral. 

 

19. ADJOURNMENT 

With no further discussion, Chair Hartung adjourned the meeting at 11:56 a.m. 

Approved by the TMWA Board of Directors in session on _______________. 

Sonia Folsom, Board Clerk. 

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 7



Northern Nevada Water Supply Outlook
TMWA Board of Directors Meeting 

Bill Hauck, Water Supply Administrator

January 20, 2021

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 8

Page 1 of 15



Truckee River Reservoir System Storage (11/29/2020) 
01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 8

Page 2 of 15



NRCS SNOTEL Data (01/20/2021) 
01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 8

Page 3 of 15



NRCS SNOTEL Data (01/20/2021) 
01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 8

Page 4 of 15



NRCS SNOTEL Data (01/20/2021) 
01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 8

Page 5 of 15



Truckee Basin Snowpack (01/20/2021) 
01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 8

Page 6 of 15



Lake Tahoe Basin Snowpack (01/20/2021) 
01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 8

Page 7 of 15



April 1 Truckee River Basin Snowpack (last 30 years)

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

220

19
90

19
91

19
92

19
93

19
94

19
95

19
96

19
97

19
98

19
99

20
00

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

Pe
rc

en
t o

f A
ve

ra
ge

 (%
)

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 8

Page 8 of 15



Truckee River System 

Lake Tahoe

Donner Lake
Prosser

Independence Lake Boca

Stampede

Pyramid Lake

Lahontan Reservoir

Derby Dam

FALLONRENO/SPARKS

CALIFORNIA NEVADA

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 8

Page 9 of 15



Truckee River System Storage (01/20/2021) 

Lake Tahoe Boca Reservoir Stampede
Reservoir

Prosser
Reservoir Donner Lake Independence

Lake
Reservoir Storage 42.98% 20.55% 45.45% 19.69% 31.21% 62.02%

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

100.00%

Pe
rc

en
t o

f S
to

ra
ge

 C
ap

ac
ity

 (%
)

311,200 KAF 8,400 KAF 102,718 KAF 5,867 KAF 2,965 KAF 10,853 KAF

MAX SYSTEM CAPACITY 1,068,270 AF      CURRENT CAPACITY 442,003 AF  (41% Capacity)

Current Storage (AF)

TROA

TROA

TROA

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 8

Page 10 of 15



Actual and Projected Lake Tahoe Elevation through 2021
01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 8

Page 11 of 15



Actual and Projected Lake Tahoe Elevation through 2021

Natural Rim – 6223.0 feet

Da
ily

 G
ag

e 
He

ig
ht

 (f
ee

t)

6220.00

6221.00

6222.00

6223.00

6224.00

6225.00

6226.00

6227.00

6228.00

6229.00

6230.00

1/
1/

20
11

7/
1/

20
11

1/
1/

20
12

7/
1/

20
12

1/
1/

20
13

7/
1/

20
13

1/
1/

20
14

7/
1/

20
14

1/
1/

20
15

7/
1/

20
15

1/
1/

20
16

7/
1/

20
16

1/
1/

20
17

7/
1/

20
17

1/
1/

20
18

7/
1/

20
18

1/
1/

20
19

7/
1/

20
19

1/
1/

20
20

7/
1/

20
20

1/
1/

20
21

7/
1/

20
21

1/
1/

20
22

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 8

Page 12 of 15



Actual and Projected Truckee River Flow through 2021
D

is
ch

ar
ge

 a
t C

A/
N

V 
st

at
e 

lin
e 

(c
ub

ic
 fe

et
 p

er
 s

ec
on

d)

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

1/
1/

20
11

7/
1/

20
11

1/
1/

20
12

7/
1/

20
12

1/
1/

20
13

7/
1/

20
13

1/
1/

20
14

7/
1/

20
14

1/
1/

20
15

7/
1/

20
15

1/
1/

20
16

7/
1/

20
16

1/
1/

20
17

7/
1/

20
17

1/
1/

20
18

7/
1/

20
18

1/
1/

20
19

7/
1/

20
19

1/
1/

20
20

7/
1/

20
20

1/
1/

20
21

7/
1/

20
21

1/
1/

20
22

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 8

Page 13 of 15



01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 8

Page 14 of 15



Bill Hauck, Water Supply Administrator  
Email: bhauck@tmwa.com

O: (775) 834-8111 M: (775) 250-1333

Thank you!
Questions?

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 8

Page 15 of 15



01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 9 

  Page 1 of 2 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

TO: Board of Directors 
FROM: Mark Foree, General Manager 
DATE: January 13, 2021 
SUBJECT: Appointment of Trustee to the Western Regional Water Commission 

(WRWC) pursuant to Sec.25(3)(c) of the WRWC Act from the following list 
of qualified persons to fill the remaining term ending March 31, 2021 vacated 
by Member Jeanne Herman: Alexis Hill 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the TMWA Board appoint a member to the Western Regional Water 
Commission to serve the remaining term ending March 31, 2021 vacated by Member Jeanne 
Herman: 

1. One TMWA Board member who is a member of the Washoe County Board of County 
Commissioners. 

 
DISCUSSION 
 
During the 2007 legislative session, SB487 was enacted to create the Western Regional Water 
Commission (effective date April 1, 2008), a governing board to oversee water resources planning 
and management in Washoe County. The Western Regional Water Commission Act, Chapter 531, 
Statutes of Nevada, Section 25, provides for appointments to the Board of Trustees as follows:  
 
Sec. 25. 3. The Board of Directors of the Truckee Meadows Water Authority or its successor 
shall appoint from its membership, for initial terms of 3 years:  
(a) One trustee who is a member of the City Council of the City of Reno;  
(b) One trustee who is a member of the City Council of the City of Sparks; and  
(c) One trustee who is a member of the Board of County Commissioners of Washoe County.  
 The trustees appointed pursuant to this subsection must be different persons than those 
appointed pursuant to subsection 2.  
4. The Board of Trustees of the Sun Valley General Improvement District or its successor and 
the Board of Trustees of the South Truckee Meadows General Improvement District or its 
successor shall each appoint one trustee for an initial term of 3 years.  
5. The owners of the Truckee Meadows Water Reclamation Facility or its successor shall jointly 
appoint one trustee for an initial term of 2 years.  
6. After the initial terms, each trustee who is appointed to the Board serves for a term of 2 years. 
A trustee may be reappointed.  



01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 9 

  Page 2 of 2 

7. All trustees must be elected officials. No trustee may serve beyond his term of office.  
8. The position of a trustee must be considered vacated upon his loss of any of the qualifications 
required for his appointment, and in such event, the appointing authority shall appoint a successor 
to fill the remainder of the unexpired term. 
 
The current appointees to the Western Regional Water Commission Board are as follows: 
 
Appointing Body Trustee 
City of Reno  Councilmember Naomi Duerr 
City of Sparks Councilmember Kristopher Dahir 
Washoe County  Commissioner Vaughn Hartung 
TMWA (Section 3 - from TMWA Board): Councilmember Paul Anderson (Sparks) 

Councilmember Jenny Brekhus (Reno) 
Vacant (Washoe County) 

Truckee Meadows Water Reclamation Facility Councilmember Bonnie Weber (Reno) 
Sun Valley General Improvement District SVGID Trustee Sandra Ainsworth 
TMWA (Section 4 – as successor to STMGID) Commissioner Bob Lucey (Washoe County) 

 
      

 



01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 

  Page 1 of 2 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

TO: Board of Directors 
FROM: Mark Foree, General Manager 
DATE: January 13, 2021 
SUBJECT: Discussion and action on nomination and appointments of Trustee(s) to the 

Western Regional Water Commission (WRWC) from the TMWA Board of 
Directors for the following positions to fill vacancies ending March 31, 2021 
and for new two year terms from April 1, 2021 to March 31, 2023: 

 A) Pursuant to Sec.25(3)(a) of the WRWC Act from the following list of 
qualified persons: Jenny Brekhus and Neoma Jardon. 

 B) Pursuant to Sec.25(3)(b) of the WRWC Act from the following list of 
qualified persons: Paul Anderson. 

 C) Pursuant to Sec.25(3)(c) of the WRWC Act from the following list of 
qualified persons: Alexis Hill. 

 D) Pursuant to Sec. 25(4) of the WRWC Act representing TMWA as successor 
to South Truckee Meadows General Improvement District from the following 
list of qualified persons: Jenny Brekhus, Oscar Delgado, Neoma Jardon, 
Devon Reese, Hillary Schieve, Jeanne Herman, Bob Lucey, Kitty Jung, 
Charlene Bybee, and Ed Lawson. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the TMWA Board appoint four members to the Western Regional Water 
Commission to serve a two-year term commencing April 1, 2021 to include: 

1. One TMWA Board member who is a member of the Reno City Council 
2. One TMWA Board member who is a member of the Sparks City Council 
3. One TMWA Board member who is a member of the Washoe County Board of County 

Commissioners 
4. One member designated by the TMWA Board as South Truckee Meadows General 

Improvement District (STMGID) successor 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
During the 2007 legislative session, SB487 was enacted to create the Western Regional Water 
Commission (effective date April 1, 2008), a governing board to oversee water resources planning 
and management in Washoe County. The Western Regional Water Commission Act, Chapter 531, 
Statutes of Nevada, Section 25, provides for appointments to the Board of Trustees as follows:  



01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 10 

  Page 2 of 2 

Sec. 25. 1. The Regional Water Commission must be directed and governed by a Board of 
Trustees composed of the following nine members appointed pursuant to this section:  
(a) Two members of the City Council of the City of Reno;  
(b) Two members of the City Council of the City of Sparks;  
(c) Two members of the Board of County Commissioners of Washoe County;  
(d) One member representing the Truckee Meadows Water Reclamation Facility or its successor;  
(e) One member designated by the Board of Trustees of the South Truckee Meadows General 
Improvement District or its successor; and  
(f) One member of the Board of Trustees of the Sun Valley General Improvement District or its 
successor.  
2. The City Council of the City of Reno, the City Council of the City of Sparks and the Board of 
County Commissioners of Washoe County shall each appoint one trustee from their membership 
for an initial term of 2 years.  
3. The Board of Directors of the Truckee Meadows Water Authority or its successor shall 
appoint from its membership, for initial terms of 3 years:  
(a) One trustee who is a member of the City Council of the City of Reno;  
(b) One trustee who is a member of the City Council of the City of Sparks; and  
(c) One trustee who is a member of the Board of County Commissioners of Washoe County.  
 The trustees appointed pursuant to this subsection must be different persons than those 
appointed pursuant to subsection 2.  
4. The Board of Trustees of the Sun Valley General Improvement District or its successor and 
the Board of Trustees of the South Truckee Meadows General Improvement District or its 
successor shall each appoint one trustee for an initial term of 3 years.  
5. The owners of the Truckee Meadows Water Reclamation Facility or its successor shall jointly 
appoint one trustee for an initial term of 2 years.  
6. After the initial terms, each trustee who is appointed to the Board serves for a term of 2 years. 
A trustee may be reappointed.  
7. All trustees must be elected officials. No trustee may serve beyond his term of office.  
8. The position of a trustee must be considered vacated upon his loss of any of the qualifications 
required for his appointment, and in such event, the appointing authority shall appoint a successor 
to fill the remainder of the unexpired term. 
 
The current appointees to the Western Regional Water Commission Board are as follows: 
 
Appointing Body Trustee 
City of Reno  Councilmember Naomi Duerr 
City of Sparks Councilmember Kristopher Dahir 
Washoe County  Commissioner Vaughn Hartung 
TMWA (Section 3 - from TMWA Board): Councilmember Paul Anderson (Sparks) 

Councilmember Jenny Brekhus (Reno) 
Commissioner Alexis Hill (Washoe County) 

Truckee Meadows Water Reclamation Facility Councilmember Bonnie Weber (Reno) 
Sun Valley General Improvement District SVGID Trustee Sandra Ainsworth 
TMWA (Section 4 – as successor to STMGID) Commissioner Bob Lucey (Washoe County) 

 



01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11 

  Page 1 of 4 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
TO: Chairman and Board Members 
THRU: Mark Foree, General Manager 
FROM: John Zimmerman, Manager, Water Resources  
DATE: January 11, 2021 
SUBJECT: Update on 2020 Interim Session and discussion and action on establishing a 

Legislative Subcommittee for the 2021 Legislative Session and appointment 
of Board members to Subcommittee  

 
 
SUMMARY 

This agenda item has two sections.  The first is an update on TMWA’s legislative 
activities during the 2020 interim session.  The second is a request to form a 3-member 
TMWA legislative subcommittee for the upcoming 2021 regular session. 

1. Interim Session 

After the 2019 regular session, the Board directed staff to take a more active role 
with the legislature and governmental affairs in general.  The Board also created a 
subcommittee for the interim session consisting of Chair Hartung, Vice-Chair Dahir, and 
Member Duerr.  Staff and TMWA lobbyist Leo Drozdoff have taken a more active role 
with the legislature by meeting with more legislators and presenting to state regulators. 

Prior to the COVID-19 shutdown, TMWA was able to meet with Assemblywoman 
Sarah Peters and Senators Ben Kieckhefer and Julia Ratti.  TMWA Vice Chair Kristopher 
Dahir was able to participate in the meeting with Senator Ratti and Chair Hartung was 
able to participate in the meeting with Senator Kieckhefer.  Senator Ratti is chair of the 
Legislative Committee for the Review and Oversight of the Tahoe Regional Planning 
Agency and the Marlette Water System.  Senator Kieckhefer and Assemblywoman Peters 
are also members of that Committee and Senator Ratti has directed Senator Kieckhefer to 
take the lead on steering the business of the Committee. 

During our individual meetings, TMWA staff and Mr. Drozdoff provided the 
legislators with a very high-level overview of TMWA’s operations.  We also briefed the 
legislators on TMWA’s priorities and specifically described TMWA’s involvement and 
interest in working with the Nevada Department of Administration to maximize the 
beneficial use of water from the Marlette Lake water system, which includes Marlette 



01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11 

  Page 2 of 4 

Lake and the Hobart-East Slope water resources.  We received very positive feedback 
from the legislators and all of them wanted to be helpful regarding TMWA’s Marlette 
Water System involvement.  Additionally, Mr. Drozdoff assisted TMWA with engaging 
Carson City in the discussion and we have entered into a memorandum of understanding 
that contemplates TMWA, Carson City, and Storey County (on behalf of Virginia City) 
collaborating on a plan to maximize the beneficial use of these water resources in a 
manner that works for both parties and the state.  Also prior to the shutdown, Mr. 
Drozdoff met with Senator Chris Brooks to discuss TMWA’s climate change analysis. 

Discussions with State Regulators 

On the policy maker side, we have kept a continuing dialogue going with the 
Department of Conservation and Natural Resources (DCNR), State Engineer’s Office, 
and Division of Environmental Protection (NDEP). We met with the Director of DCNR 
and several high-level members of his leadership team, including the State Engineer, 
NDEP administrator and deputy administrator, and Nevada Climate Policy Coordinator.  
This meeting was very productive and the Director and his leadership team appreciated 
the information and TMWA’s approach to water resource management and long-term 
planning. 

As the Board will recall, in the last regular session, the Legislature passed 
Assembly Bill 62 that requires the State Engineer to develop regulations regarding the 
amount of time and evidence required to prove that a water right owner is proceeding in 
good faith with reasonable diligence to perfect a water right.  The initial draft of the 
proposed regulations required by AB 62 were made public in June and the State Engineer 
held a public workshop to obtain input on them.  TMWA provided written and verbal 
comments at the hearing, which supported the State Engineer’s goals, but disagreed with 
the language being proposed to accomplish those goals.  Many other stakeholders echoed 
TMWA’s comments, including SNWA and other municipal water purveyors.  Almost all 
public comments were opposed to the proposed regulations.  The State Engineer has 
since revised the proposed regulations, which are a substantial improvement from the 
initial version.  The State Engineer held a workshop on the revised draft regulations on 
January 13th.  TMWA is preparing written comments that are due February 12th.  
TMWA’s main concern is that the proposed revisions will increase staff time and 
administrative cost in preparing applications for extensions of time. 

Regarding Assembly Bill 30, which involved “3M” plans, but failed to pass, the 
Director of DCNR has previously told TMWA that his office would not pursue any 
legislative or regulatory changes regarding AB 30 topics until they finished the AB 62 
regulations.  Staff and Mr. Drozdoff will continue to be actively engaged in the process. 



01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11 

  Page 3 of 4 

2. 2021 Regular Session 

The 2021 legislative session will begin on February 1st.  The session is likely to be 
dominated by the financial impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic.  There are, however, 
numerous bills involving topics TMWA closely monitors including:  water rights, 
collective bargaining, government purchasing and public works, public records, 
renewable energy, and labor and employment policy. 

 
TMWA is closely monitoring the selection of chairs for the Senate and Assembly 

committees on natural resources.  Assemblyman Howard Watts has been appointed as the 
chair of the Assembly’s Natural Resources Committee and Senator Cancela was 
appointed chair of the Senate Natural Resources Committee.  On January 11th, however, 
Senator Cancela resigned her position in the Nevada State Senate to take a position with 
the Biden Administration. We believe that the Chair of Natural Resources will be either 
Senator Roberta Lange or the yet to be appointed replacement.  We are monitoring the 
developments in Clark County on this front.  Mr. Drozdoff is currently reaching out to 
Senator Watts on a policy issue and will discuss a TMWA meeting with him.  We will 
schedule an appropriate meeting on the Senate side when we are able to do so. 

 
There are several proposed water bills from the DCNR and the State Engineer this 

session.  TMWA has participated in several stakeholder meetings with DCNR and the 
State Engineer regarding these bills, with the most-recent meeting scheduled for January 
14th.  TMWA has provided initial feedback to the agency and has been speaking with 
other water purveyors as well other stakeholders.  We will continue to do so up to and 
during the early part of the session and will brief the TMWA legislative subcommittee on 
the specifics of the proposed legislation at the first subcommittee meeting and the Board 
at the February meeting. 

 
The timing of TMWA Board meetings may not coincide with legislative activities 

that may affect TMWA’s interests.  To monitor the session, the Board since 2007 has 
formed a 3-member subcommittee consisting of the Chairman, Vice Chairman, and 
another Board member.  Subcommittee meetings are open to the public and usually 
scheduled for every Friday of the session unless they are canceled due to lack of items to 
discuss or act on.  Subcommittee members, staff, and TMWA lobbyists attend the 
meetings to discuss positions on various bills, which allow the subcommittee to direct 
staff and lobbyists if any action is needed.1 
 

Also, beginning February 2021, a standing item on legislative matters will become 
part of the Board’s monthly agenda.  At these meetings, staff and TMWA lobbyists will 
provide the Board with a table summarizing the status of Senate and Assembly bills, 

 
1 In the past, the Western Regional Water Commission also formed a legislative subcommittee and held joint 
meetings with TMWA’s subcommittee. 
 



01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 11 

  Page 4 of 4 

along with positions the subcommittee and Board have taken on each bill.  TMWA 
lobbyists will attend the Board meetings to answer questions and provide insight into the 
legislative intent of particular bills.  At times during the session, requests are made to 
have TMWA attend meetings with legislators or others.  In those cases, TMWA staff and 
lobbyists will communicate with, and receive direction from, the Chairman (or Vice-
Chairman if the Chairman is unavailable) regarding the request. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Subject to Board modification, staff recommends the same procedure and process 
be implemented for the 2021 session and that the Board appoint 3 members to the 
TMWA legislative subcommittee and an alternate to step in when a subcommittee 
member is unavailable or has a scheduling conflict. 



01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12 
 

Page 1 of 1 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

TO: Board of Directors  
FROM: John Enloe, Director of Natural Resource 
  John Zimmerman, Manager of Water Resources 
  Bill Hauck, Water Supply Administrator & Conservation Supervisor 
  Kara Steeland, Hydrologist 
DATE: January 11, 2021 
SUBJECT: Informational presentation on management of TMWA’s water resources, 

cooperation and integration of regional water resource management and 
potential future development of additional water supplies 

 
 
Discussion:  With the recent adoption of TMWA’s 2020-2040 Water Resource Plan, Staff felt it 
appropriate to update the Board on various ongoing water resource planning efforts.  The 
purpose of this presentation is to provide the Board with a high-level overview of various 
planning efforts covering the following topics: 

• Acquisition of Truckee River Mainstem and Creek Rights 
• Return Flow Management Agreement 
• Marlette Lake Water System MOU 

o Washoe Lake and tributary water rights, Franktown Creek 
• Future Creek Exchange 
• Water Banking Projects (Advanced Purified Water) 

o American Flat, other locations 
• Vidler – will-serves, temporary leasing opportunities, American Flat irrigation 
• UNR – Pioneer Ditch Rights & Conservation Easement Status 
• Will-Serve Agreements and Donner Lake 
• Spanish Springs Valley Temporary Moratorium on Groundwater rights 
• Results from Damonte Ranch Reduced Water Rights Dedication Case Study 

 
This presentation will help educate the Board on many of TMWA’s water resource planning 
efforts, and provide a foundation of knowledge and understanding to enable the Board members 
to weigh various proposals or recommendations that Staff may bring forward for consideration in 
the future. 



1

TMWA WATER RESOURCE 
PLANNING

TMWA BOARD OF DIRECTORS INFORMATIONAL 
SESSION

JANUARY 20, 2021

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12



KEY TOPICS

• Acquisition of Truckee River Mainstem and Creek Rights
• Return Flow Management Agreement
• Marlette Lake MOU

• Washoe Lake (and tributary water rights, Franktown Creek)
• Future Creek Exchange
• Water Banking Projects (Advanced Purified Water)

• American Flat, other locations
• Vidler – will-serves, temporary leasing, American Flat irrigation
• UNR – Pioneer Ditch Rights & Conservation Easement
• Will-Serve Agreements and Donner Lake
• Spanish Springs Valley Temporary Moratorium on GW rights
• Damonte Ranch Reduced Water Rights Dedication 

2

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12



GOALS
• Pursue the acquisition and/or management control of mainstem and 

creek water rights and other sources of supply to ensure the most 
efficient use of Truckee River and groundwater water resources

• Reduce competition on Truckee River water rights
• 35,000 – 40,000 AF remaining Truckee River water rights

• Create regional benefits
• Defer or negate the need for future water importation projects
• As the regional water purveyor, collaborate with water users to ensure 

the most efficient use of water resources
• Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe
• TMWRF Return Flow Requirements
• TRIGID
• Environmental Considerations
• Fernley Industrial Park
• Blockchain
• Painted Rock

3

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12



ACQUISITION / MANAGEMENT OF TRUCKEE RIVER 
MAINSTEM AND CREEK RIGHTS

• Continue Monitoring Truckee River Water Right Transactions
• More-aggressively research potential water right purchase 

opportunities to add to Rule 7 Inventory
• Use Water Right Expertise to Optimize Water Resources

• TRIGID/R/S Return Flow Management 
• NDOT water right management
• Sparks water right instream flow applications
• County unused creek resources
• Fish Springs resources

4

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12



RETURN FLOW MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

• Return flow resources are required to satisfy TMWRF’s reclaimed 
water demands

• TMWA will manage the return flow to the Truckee River to ensure 
that the river and downstream water rights holders are not 
adversely impacted. 

• TMWA will manage the return flow for existing (Reno, Sparks, UNR 
Farms) and future uses (TRIGID)

• TRIGID will reimburse TMWA for costs incurred in connection 
to the administration of the Return Flow Management 
Agreement.

• TRIGID Return flow resources will include some of TRIGID’s 
Truckee River resources, Nevada Department of Transportation’s 
resources, and TMWA’s community resources.

5

2020-2040 WRP – PG. 27-28

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12



MARLETTE LAKE WATER SYSTEM MOU

• The goal is to develop the following:
1) Provide agreeable terms and conditions for establishing a 

long-term operating agreement that maximizes the 
beneficial use of the state’s available water resources from 
the Marlette Lake Water System among TMWA, Carson City, 
and Virginia City.

2) Provide an agreed-upon delivery schedule, special 
conditions of service, and pre–determined adjustments to 
the quantity of water available for sale each water year to 
address variable hydrologic conditions.

• TMWA may be able to utilize surplus Marlette Lake and East 
Slope water resources for return flow requirements and other 
purposes.

6

2020-2040 WRP – PG. 64-65

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12



MARLETTE LAKE WATER SYSTEM – EAST SLOPE 
RESOURCES
• Investigating the East Slope water rights (Franktown Creek) and 

hydrology of other tributaries to Washoe Lake to determine how 
these resources benefit the region.

• Development of a basin-wide model to better understand surface 
water and groundwater interdependencies and ecosystem water 
requirements.

• Review of the Little Washoe Lake dam historic operations and 
potential for water resource and flood control enhancements.

7

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12



FUTURE CREEK EXCHANGE

• TMWA currently has a creek exchange permit on Whites Creek.
• Creek exchange allows TMWA to measure the quantity of 

Whites Creek water left instream and exchange that water for 
Truckee River water. 

• Investigate the feasibility to exchange water from Galena, Browns, 
and/or Thomas Creeks for return flow or other purposes.

• TMWA and Washoe County are cooperating on a Thomas and 
Whites Creek Banking Agreement, which will allow TMWA use of 
the County’s creek rights for groundwater recharge, conjunctive 
use management, water quality enhancement, drought storage, 
and/or instream purposes.  

8

2020-2040 WRP – PG. 63-64

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12



WATER BANKING - AMERICAN FLAT

• TMWA and Reno are actively working on an Advanced Purified 
Water Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) planning study at the 
north end of Reno/Stead Airport in Lemmon Valley

• Related activities will include geochemical testing, well siting 
and drilling, and groundwater flow and transport modeling. 

• Should the project be deemed socially, technically and 
economically viable, Advanced Purified Water may be recharged 
at the site in the near future.

• TMWA will continue to work with Reno staff on various operating 
and cost sharing arrangements to determine if a full-scale ASR 
program (1-2 MGD) can be implemented and sustained at the site.

• Other locations for recharge of Advanced Purified Water are being 
investigated

9

2020-2040 WRP – PG. 68-69

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12



FISH SPRINGS GROUNDWATER RESOURCES
• Fish Springs Ranch, LLC (Vidler subsidiary) banked 8,000 AF of groundwater rights 

with Washoe County (up to 5,000 AF additional may be permitted in the future)
• Honey Lake Valley, Nevada groundwater basin
• Available for municipal use within TMWA’s service area

• Roughly 300 AF have been committed to North Valleys projects
• Vidler has requested TMWA consider allowing rights to be available for will-serve 

commitments throughout the Truckee Meadows
• Potential Benefits

• Allows TMWA to more quickly prove beneficial use of the rights
• Stretches Truckee River resources farther

• Overarching Considerations
• TMWA must be made whole, not adversely impacted
• Start with small volume as pilot project
• Total cost to development must be equal

• FSR water may also be available for short term leasing, such as City of Reno American 
Flat irrigation, or other opportunities

10

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12



UNR – PIONEER DITCH WATER RIGHTS  & 
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

• Over the last two years, TMWA has had various discussions with UNR 
staff regarding the possible acquisition of decreed Truckee River water 
rights owned by the Nevada System of Higher Education which are 
appurtenant to the Main Station Field Laboratory (UNR Farms)

• The water rights consist of 2,954.38 AF of direct diversion irrigation 
rights, 1,164 AF were offered for sale.  TMWA’s interests include:

• Increased drought protection
• UNR Farms reclaimed water use requires return flow water rights
• Maintains the water rights for community growth

• A conservation easement was also proposed that would have 
maintained the agricultural and educational values of the property

• Both the sale of water rights and the conservation easement were 
turned down at the December 4, 2020 Board of Regents meeting

11

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12



WILL-SERVE COMMITMENTS AND DONNER LAKE

• TMWA purchased TCID’s 4,750 AF of Donner Lake for $17.4M
• Annual Property tax is $275,000 for all Donner rights
• Analyze ways to use some portion of Donner for Will-Serve 

Commitments while preserving drought storage and resource 
sustainability

• Use in combination with TMWA supplemental groundwater 
resources

• Work with Federal Water Master and State Engineer
• Currently working with the Truckee River Watershed Council and 

other regional stakeholders to create a stewardship plan for 
Donner Lake

• Future work, possibly dredging, will be needed to access all 
TMWA’s drought storage in the lake

12

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12



SPANISH SPRINGS VALLEY TEMPORARY 
MORATORIUM ON GROUNDWATER RIGHTS 
• Spanish Springs Valley has a perennial yield of 1,000 AFA
• 7,100 AF of groundwater rights and domestic wells exist in the 

valley
• TMWA controls 3,900 AF of the groundwater rights, and has 

reduced pumping to approx. 800 AFA to help reduce water level 
declines

• Other users and domestic wells pump 1,400 AFA
• TMWA relies on conjunctive use and recharge to maintain 

sustainable water levels where we can – more needs to be done
• TMWA has prepared a regional groundwater model which 

suggests that recharge needs to be expanded to 2,000 AFA
• Other groundwater users benefit from TMWA’s efforts
• TMWA has temporarily suspended accepting Spanish Springs 

groundwater rights for will serve commitments until a long-
term regional plan is developed

13

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12



DAMONTE RANCH VILLAGE CASE STUDY

• Damonte Ranch Village 8A-8D Residential Subdivisions (2012-14)
• Strict CC&Rs reduce ability to use water on front area

• Front of lot landscaping and irrigation controlled by HOA
• Prohibit owner from changing front landscaping
• Limit backyard turf size to no more than 20% of lot size

• Using roughly 58% of committed water rights
• Analyze whether rule 7 changes are appropriate to allow lower 

water dedications in certain situations
• CC&R restricted lots 

14

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12



WATER RESOURCE SUMMARY

15

STRETCH 
TRUCKEE 

RIVER 
RESOURCE

NEW 
RESOURCE 
FOR WILL-

SERVES

MAXIMIZE 
EFFICIENT USE 
OF RESOURCE

SUSTAINABILITY 
AND DROUGHT 

RESILIENCY

REGIONAL 
PARTNERSHIPS

ADDITIONAL TRUCKEE RIVER 
RIGHTS X X X

RETURN FLOW 
MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT X X X

MARLETTE LAKE X X X X

VIDLER X X X X X

CREEK EXCHANGE X X X X

UNR – PIONEER DITCH 
RIGHTS & CONSERVATION 
EASEMENT

X X X

WATER BANKING - AMERICAN 
FLAT, OTHER SITES X X X X X

DONNER LAKE WILL-SERVES X X X

SPANISH SPRINGS TEMP. 
MORATORIUM ON GW X X

DAMONTE RANCH REDUCED 
WATER RIGHTS DEDICATION

X X

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12



CONCLUSIONS AND NEXT STEPS

• This presentation was intended to help educate the Board on 
many of TMWA’s ongoing water resource planning efforts

It provides a foundation of knowledge to better enable Board 
members to weigh future proposals or recommendations

• Staff will keep the Board apprised as analyses are completed
• Staff will prioritize analyses based on Board comments and 

discussion

16

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12



Thank you!
Questions?

17

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 12



01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 13 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

TO: Chairman and Board Members 
THRU: Mark Foree, General Manager 
FROM: John Zimmerman, Water Resources Manager 
DATE: January 6, 2021 
SUBJECT: Discussion and informational presentation in response to Board member 

inquiries regarding suspension of water service for water waste on private 
laterals and landlord authority to impose water service surcharge on tenant 
rent bills and possible direction to staff  

 
 
SUMMARY 

Board members Duerr and Brekhus requested staff provide input on two issues.  First, 
member Duerr asked for staff to provide input on whether TMWA’s rules allow it to suspend or 
terminate water service if the customer is wasting water by not repairing a water leak on the 
customer’s property within a reasonable time period.  Second, member Brekhus asked staff to 
research whether landlords are legally authorized to impose a water service surcharge on tenant 
rent bills. 

TMWA AUTHORITY TO SUSPEND WATER SERVICE DUE TO UNREPAIRED WATER LEAKS 

 Rule 3.D authorizes TMWA to terminate delivery of water to a customer if the customer 
fails to repair water leaks on their private water lines, which is considered water waste under 
TMWA’s rules.  Under Rule 3.D, TMWA must provide two notices to the customer before 
terminating water service.  The first notice must be sent 10 days before TMWA intends to 
terminate water service.  If TMWA does not receive a response to the first notice, then it must 
send a second notice 48 hours before terminating water service.  Both notices must be personally 
served or sent by first class mail to the customer’s address and clearly describe the reason for the 
termination and the procedure for reinstating water service.  In all cases, TMWA staff make 
numerous attempts to help the customer avoid termination of water service before sending the 
formal notices.  In some cases, however, TMWA staff are forced to send the notices and 
terminate water service if the customer does not respond. 

LANDLORD AUTHORITY TO ADD SURCHARGE TO WATER SERVICE ON TENANT RENT BILLS 

General Counsel Michael Pagni researched the legal restrictions on landlords and 
determined there are no Nevada laws prohibiting a landlord from adding a water service 
surcharge to tenant rent bills.  In Nevada, residential landlord tenant relations are governed by 
Chapter 118A of Nevada Revised Statutes.  The restrictions in NRS Chapter 118A are fairly 



01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 13 

limited, and no provisions specifically address “marking up” utility bills payable by 
tenants.  Nevada does not have rent control laws, which means generally a landlord is permitted 
to set the rent at whatever level and include within the rent whatever components they want.  The 
only references to utility charges in NRS 118A are found in NRS 118A.200, which simply 
requires that all written rental agreements set forth the “respective responsibilities of the landlord 
and tenant as to the payment of utility charges.”  NRS 118A.200 also requires the identification 
of any other “fees which are required and the purpose for which they are required,” but again 
there is little if any restriction on what those fees may relate to or the amount that may be 
charged.  That being said, NRS 118A.230 authorizes a court to refuse to enforce any provision in 
a rental agreement deemed unconscionable at the time made. 

NRS 704 contains some provisions for tenant service charge accounts where landlords 
“resell” utility service within mobile home parks, but these provisions do not apply to residential 
tenancies under NRS 118A.  See NRS 704.940(5); NAC 704.980 to 704.991.  NRS Chapter 704 
also requires certain notices be posted for tenants prior to termination of utility service to 
landlords, but otherwise includes no restrictions on landlords “marking up” utility bills.  NRS 
704.1835. 

 

  



01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14 
 

Page 1 of 1 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

TO: Board of Directors  
FROM: Mark Foree, General Manager 
DATE: January 11, 2021 
SUBJECT: General Manager’s Report  
 
 
Attached please find the written reports from the Management team including the Operations 
Report (Attachment A), the Water Resource and the Annexation Activity Report (Attachment 
B), and the Customer Services Report (Attachment C).  

Included in your agenda packet are press clippings from December 10, 2020 through January 12, 
2021. 

Also, a Tell the Board Submission was received regarding a customer’s concern of developers 
requiring large communities to landscape with non-drought tolerant plants and trees. Staff 
replied that the minimum landscaping requirements are set by the local governments. 

Standing Advisory Committee Recruitment 

Staff has advertised the vacancies on the TMWA Standing Advisory Committee (SAC) via 
TMWA’s bill insert and social media. The application deadline is Monday, March 29th. The SAC 
will review the applications at their April meeting and their recommendations will be presented 
at the April Board meeting. 



01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14 
Attachment A 

  Page 1 of 3 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 
 

TO: Board of Directors  
THRU: Mark Foree, General Manager  
FROM: Scott Estes, Director of Engineering 
BY: Bill Hauck, Water Supply Administrator and Conservation Supervisor 
DATE: Jan 11, 2021 
SUBJECT: January 2021 Operations Report  
 

Summary 

• The water supply outlook for the region is fair 
• Lake Tahoe storage is @ 42% of capacity 
• Combined total upstream reservoir storage is 42% of maximum capacity 
• Customer demands are at wintertime levels (~34 MGD)  
• Hydroelectric revenue for December 2020 was $150,344 

 
(A) Water Supply  

 
• River Flows - Truckee River flows at the CA/NV state line are below normal for this 

time of year. Discharge was approximately 320 cubic feet per second (CFS) this morning 
as a result of TROA operations. 

 
• Reservoir Storage - Truckee River reservoir storage is virtually unchanged from last 

month @ 42% of capacity. The elevation of Lake Tahoe is 6225.58 feet (3.52’ below 
maximum storage elevation). Storage values for each reservoir as of 1/11 are as follows: 

 
 
Reservoir 

Current Storage 
(Acre-Feet) 

% of Capacity 
(Percent) 

Tahoe  313,700            42% 
Boca      9,230 23% 
Donner       3,019 32% 
Independence     10,866 62% 
Prosser      5,813 20% 
Stampede           103,604 46% 

 
In addition to approximately 13,900 acre-feet of storage in Donner and Independence reservoirs, 
TMWA has about 21,300 acre-feet of water stored between Lake Tahoe, Boca and Stampede 
reservoirs under the terms of TROA. TMWA’s total combined upstream reservoir storage is 
approximately 35,200 acre-feet (as of 1/11). 



01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14 
Attachment A 

  Page 2 of 3 

 
• Snowpack - Both the Lake Tahoe and Truckee River basins are reporting 70% of normal 

as of 1/11. January, which is one of the three prime snowpack building months, has been 
anything but. There were no major storms through the first 11 days, and there is nothing 
in the forecast through at least January 21st. It is supposed to be snowing this time of 
year, and each passing warm sunny day in the Sierra makes it that much less likely that 
we’ll end the season on a solid note as far as snowpack is concerned. It is still early 
though, and exactly how the second half of the season will go down in the books cannot 
be predicted with much certainty right now. So, this winter cannot be written off just yet. 
 

• Runoff Forecast - Based on the latest snowpack values and pre-existing conditions 
coming into the winter, the runoff forecast is noticeably below average for Lake Tahoe @ 
61% of normal, and 63% of normal for the Truckee River at Farad.   
 

• Outlook - While the snowpack status and the projected runoff forecast is below average, 
there is still enough carry-over storage in Lake Tahoe to help provide normal river flows 
for quite some time after the runoff season ends. This is a very pivotal year in terms of 
the status of the region’s water supply, as another dry winter this time around could 
possibly have us on the brink of our next drought. If the winter storm track doesn’t start 
delivering to our region very soon, projections for runoff are going to decline rapidly. 
With upstream reservoir storage at roughly 40% of capacity, the water supply outlook for 
northern Nevada is not as good as it has been in recent years. However, there is still 
enough carry-over storage in Lake Tahoe to help provide normal Truckee River flows for 
at least the next 12 months (an 83% chance) despite that fact. Furthermore, while the 
likelihood of experiencing our second dry year in a row increases with each passing day, 
the possibility of an average or normal winter at this juncture is also still not out of the 
question. A couple of big winter storms during the wildcard months of March and April 
can also completely change the water supply outlook in the Tahoe and Truckee basins. 
But regardless of how this year (or the next) turns out, TMWA has more than enough 
drought storage and back up water supplies to meet projected customer demand for many 
decades to come even under the most protracted worse than worse case drought scenario 
imagined. 

 
(B) Water Production  
 

• Demand - TMWA’s customer demand averaged 34 million gallons per day for the last 
full week of December. Overall, surface water is providing about 78% of our supply and 
groundwater the other 22%.   

 



01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14 
Attachment A 

  Page 3 of 3 

(C) Hydro Production   
 
Generation - Truckee River flows at Farad (CA/NV state line) for the month of December 2020 
averaged 256 CFS, which is below average. The Fleish and Verdi power plants were on-line and 
available 100% of the time. The Washoe Power plant was still out of service as the flume rebuild 
continues. Below average river flows last month are the reason for the below normal generation 
at Fleish and Verdi. Statistics for the month as follows:     
 

 
Hydro Plant 

Days 
On-Line 

Generation 
(Megawatt hours) 

Est. Revenue 
(Dollars) 

Est. Revenue 
(Dollars/Day) 

Fleish 31   1,198 $  88,567 $   2,857 
Verdi 31     843 $  61,777 $   1,993 

Washoe  0        0         $           0         $         0 
Totals 62              2,041 $ 150,344         $   4,850 

 



01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14 
Attachment B 

Page 1 of 2 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
TO:   Chairman and Board Members 
THRU:   Mark Foree, General Manager 
FROM:   John Zimmerman, Manager, Water Resources  
DATE:           January 12, 2021 
SUBJECT:    Report Water Resources and Annexation Activity 
 
 
RULE 7 
 

Rule 7 water resource purchases and will-serve commitment sales against purchased 
water resources through this reporting period: 
 
Beginning Balance                    4,115.08 AF 
Purchases of water rights                       2.70 AF 
Refunds       0.00 AF 
Sales                       −   66.18 AF 
Adjustments                  0.48 AF 
Ending Balance                               4,052.08 AF 
 
Price per acre foot at report date:  $7,600 
 
FISH SPRINGS RANCH, LLC GROUNDWATER RESOURCES 

 
Through the merger of Washoe County’s water utility, TMWA assumed a Water Banking 

and Trust Agreement with Fish Springs Ranch, LLC, a subsidiary of Vidler.  Under the 
Agreement, TMWA holds record title to the groundwater rights for the benefit of Fish Springs.  
Fish Springs may sell and assign its interest in these groundwater rights to third parties for 
dedication to TMWA for a will-serve commitment in Areas where TMWA can deliver 
groundwater from the Fish Springs groundwater basin.  Currently, TMWA can deliver Fish 
Springs groundwater to Area 10 only (Stead-Silver Lake-Lemmon Valley).  The following is a 
summary of Fish Springs’ resources. 
 
Beginning Balance                       7,696.12 AF 
Committed water rights            −  0.00 AF 
Ending Balance            7,696.12 AF 
 
Price per acre foot at report date:  $41,500 (for SFR and MFR); $36,000 (for all other services)1 

 
1 Price reflects avoided cost of Truckee River water right related fees and TMWA Supply & Treatment WSF charge. 



01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14 
Attachment B 

Page 2 of 2 

 
WATER SERVICE AREA ANNEXATIONS 
 
 There have been no annexations since the date of the last Board meeting. 
 
INTERRUPTIBLE LARGE VOLUME NON-POTABLE SERVICE 
 

None this reporting period. 



01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14 
Attachment C 

  Page 1 of 2 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

TO: Board of Directors  
THRU: Mark Foree, General Manager 
FROM: Marci Westlake, Manager Customer Service 
DATE: January 20, 2021 
SUBJECT: December Customer Service Report 
 
The following is a summary of Customer Service activity for December 2020.   
 
Ombudsman 
 

• Customer called and wanted a better understanding regarding a billing concern.  We were 
able to explain the bill and customer was happy. 

 
Communications 
 

Nothing for the month of December 
 

Conservation (2020 Calendar year) 
 
• 1,457 Water Watcher Contacts 
• 1,597 Water Usage Reviews 
 
Customer Calls – December 
 
• 8,714 phone calls handled  
• Average handling time – 4 minutes, 16 seconds per call 
• Average speed of answer –-22 seconds per call 
 
Billing –December 
 
• 134,102 bills issued. 
• 8 (0.00%) corrected bills. 
• 24,355 customers (18%) have signed up for paperless billing to date. 
 
 
 



01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14 
Attachment C 

  Page 2 of 2 

Service Orders –December (% is rounded) 
 
• 7,319 service orders taken 
• 3,477 (48%) move-ins / move-outs  
• 704 (10%) cut-out-for-non-payment and cut-in after receiving payments, including deposits 

and checks for tamper only 
• 334 (5%) zero consumption meter checks 
• 437 (6%) re-read meters 
• 856 (11%) new meter sets and meter/register/ERT exchanges and equipment checks 
• 330 (5%) problems / emergencies, including cut-out for customer repairs, dirty water, no 

water, leaks, pressure complaints, safety issues, installing water meter blankets, etc.  
• 92 (1%) high-bill complaints / audit and water usage review requests 
• 1,089 (14%) various other service orders 
 
Remittance – December 
 
• 28,627 mailed-in payments 
• 27,975 electronic payments 
• 43,590 payments via RapidPay (EFT)  
• 20,814 one-time bank account payments 
• 8,239 credit card payments  
• 198 store payments  
• 1,070 payments via drop box or at front desk 
 
Collections –December 
 
• 18,573 accounts received a late charge                     
• Mailed 9,231 10-day delinquent notices, 0.07% of accounts     
• Mailed 3,485 48-hour delinquent notices, 0.03% of accounts    
• 1,303 accounts eligible for disconnect 
• 222 accounts were disconnected (including accounts that had been disconnected-for-non-

payment that presented NSF checks for their reconnection) 
• 0.14% write-off to revenue 
 
Meter Statistics – Fiscal Year to Date 
 
• 0 Meter retrofits completed 
• 2,721 Meter exchanges completed 
• 1,488 New business meter sets completed  
• 130,785 Meters currently installed    



TMWA Board Meeting 

Wednesday, January 20, 2021 

Press Clippings 

December 10, 2020 – January 12, 2021 

Fleish Spill Structure Reconstruction Project 

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14



 
01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14



NEWS

Reno doctor, UNR engineer develop new
COVID-19 tool that estimates threat up
to 10 days out
Amy Alonzo Reno Gazette Journal
Published 9:54 a.m. PT Dec. 8, 2020 Updated 4:00 p.m. PT Dec. 8, 2020

Trends in regional COVID- cases can now be predicted up to 10 days in advance thanks to a
new predictive tool that syncs with the Truckee Meadows COVID Risk Meter.

Co-developed by a Reno physician and a University of Nevada, Reno associate professor and
engineer, the new predictive capabilities will allow the community and medical professionals
to prepare for surges if there are not any changes in COVID behavior and to make more
informed decisions up to a week out.

“As a result, as far as I can tell, we are one of the first in the U.S. to have this predictive tool
on our COVID meter,” said Risk Meter task force member and Reno pediatrician Dr.
Ron Aryel, who developed the idea for the predictive COVID tool.

The Truckee Meadows COVID Risk Meter (covidriskmeter.org) uses local COVID data to
inform the community about current virus risk. The meter uses five indicators to give daily
updates on coronavirus threat levels in the community –risk assessment, test positivity, daily
new cases, hospital beds and ICU use.

The predictive tool “will allow us to make sure we have the bandwidth to handle X more
cases,” said Assistant Professor and aerospace engineer Aditya Nair of the University’s
Department of Mechanical Engineering. “Our job is to say what the data will look like seven
days from now so that hospitals know how many staff they need to cover five more beds or 10
more beds.”

Nair analyzed months’ worth of data to turn past numbers into predictions for the future.

“It works very much like a weather forecast,” Nair said. “It has the power to predict how and
when openings should be conducted and how people should plan their lives. And the more

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 1 of 97

https://www.rgj.com/
https://www.rgj.com/news/


data we have, the better the model will perform.”

Amy Alonzo covers the outdoors, recreation and environment for Nevada and Lake
Tahoe. Reach her at aalonzo@gannett.com or (775) 741-8588. Here's how you can support
ongoing coverage and local journalism. 

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 2 of 97

https://offers.rgj.com/specialoffer


NEWS

Rutgers professor discusses science
of hand-washing for coronavirus
Astha Lakhankar
Dec 8, 2020, 9:01 PM

Photo by Courtesy of Donald Schaffner
Donald Schaffner, extension specialist and distinguished professor in the Department of Food Science, said the
coronavirus disease (COVID-19) is easy to remove by washing hands with soap.

Frequent hand-washing is essential for ensuring health during the coronavirus disease (COVID-19)

pandemic, according to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) website.  

Donald Schaffner, extension specialist and distinguished professor in the Department of Food

Science, discussed how hand-washing provides a strong defense against the virus that causes

COVID-19.

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 3 of 97

https://dailytargum.com/section/news
https://dailytargum.com/staff/astha-lakhankar
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/prevention.html


Soap molecules can attach part of themselves to both water molecules and particles like the virus,

he said. This unique property allows soap to remove the virus from hands, along with dirt, oil and

grease particles.

“Really what you’re doing when you’re washing your hands is you're not killing those

microorganisms, you’re just washing them down the drain,” Schaffner said.

He said the COVID-19 virus is easier to remove than more resistant viruses, such as norovirus.

“(The COVID-19 virus) is what we call an enveloped virus, which means it’s actually kind of a wimpy

virus,” Schaffner said. “Which means it’s pretty easy to kill (and) it’s pretty easy to remove.”

The basic procedure for hand-washing includes wetting hands thoroughly, lathering them, rinsing

after 15 seconds and drying them using a cloth or paper towel, he said.

A common misconception about hand-washing, Schaffner said, is that a hot water temperature is

the most effective for removing germs. Research demonstrates that the water temperature used

does not matter.

“What you want to do when you’re washing your hands is ... to use a water temperature that’s

comfortable … so that you can do a good job and really take the time that you need,” he said.

If soap and running water are not readily available, alcohol-based hand sanitizers are a convenient

and effective alternative, Schaffner said.

He also said since groceries pose little risk for contracting COVID-19, washing hands or using hand

sanitizer after handling them is a better course of action than sanitizing the groceries themselves.

The CDC saw a large increase in calls to poison control centers about cleaner and disinfectant

exposures, indicating overuse of these products, Schaffner said.

There has been evidence that incidences of food-borne diseases have gone down during the

pandemic, which may be partly due to hand-washing, sanitation and other COVID-19 prevention

measures, he said.

“I hope the pandemic has made people aware of the importance of good sanitation and of washing

your hands,” Schaffner said.

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 4 of 97

https://www.nbcnews.com/healthmain/norovirus-why-washing-your-hands-isnt-enough-1C8143996
https://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/volumes/69/wr/mm6916e1.htm


ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT WATER, ENERGY & NATURAL RESOURCES

ASU study reveals groundwater generates 43
percent of state GDP

Victoria Harker  December 9, 2020  5 min read  Add comment

A new study highlights the tremendous impact groundwater has on Arizona’s economy and

underscores the need to make sure every community has tools to protect and manage it far into

the future, said Todd Reeve, director of Business for Water Stewardship (BWS), which

commissioned the report.

“Today, Arizona relies on groundwater for 40 percent of its water supply, and sustained access to

groundwater remains essential for industrial, agricultural and municipal uses in Arizona,” said

Reeve, whose organization currently is working with dozens of businesses across the state that

are investing in and advancing solutions to make sure communities, economies and ecosystems

have clean water to flourish.

BWS released the first-of-its-kind study Tuesday during a virtual event for new and returning

state lawmakers who will be tasked with finding solutions to address groundwater overuse and

the effects of the megadrought. The Arizona Chamber Foundation co-hosted the event.

Groundwater generated $1.2 trillion into economy from 2010 to
2018

Conducted by Arizona State University’s (ASU) Seidman Research Institute, the study calculated

the economic impact of groundwater use from 2010 to 2018 in the state’s five most populous

regions: Phoenix, Tucson, Prescott, Pinal County and Santa Cruz County.

  
01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 5 of 97

https://chamberbusinessnews.com/category/economic-development/
https://chamberbusinessnews.com/category/water-energy-natural-resources/
https://chamberbusinessnews.com/author/victoria/
https://chamberbusinessnews.com/


According to the study, Arizona’s groundwater use was responsible for generating about $1.2

trillion into the economy during the nine-year period. When broken down on an annual basis,

that amounts to approximately 43 percent of the state’s annual average GDP.

In Phoenix alone, groundwater generated $102.5 billion of average annual contribution to state

GDP, supporting over one million jobs, the study states.

“These findings show just how essential groundwater is to the state’s economy,” said Tim James,

director of research at the Seidman Institute. “As our state continues to grow and thrive,

understanding the crucial importance of groundwater to the economy will be key in planning for

the future.”

Study evaluated groundwater impact in most populous regions 

The study looked at the economic impact of groundwater deliveries from 2010 to 2018 in the

five most populated regions of the state that are designated as “Active Management Areas”

(AMA) for water management purposes. The AMAs are regulated under the state’s Groundwater

Management Act of 1980.

Among the study findings:

-Approximately 11.7 million acre feet of groundwater was used by agriculture, industrial and

municipal customers during the nine-year period

-Groundwater supplies in the five AMAs contributed to annual employment of 1.4 to 1.7 million

jobs, depending on the year

-More than half of the total groundwater uses, 50.1 percent, took place in the Phoenix AMA

-More than a third of the groundwater, 35.5 percent, was used in the Pinal AMA

-The Tucson AMA accounted for 11.7 percent of total groundwater used

Legislation needed to guide groundwater use statewide 

While the five AMAs are regulated under the groundwater act to ensure adequate water for the

future, the rest of the state is pretty much a “free for all” when it comes to tapping into aquifers,

Reeve said.

Legislation will be needed to protect groundwater in these areas as well, he said. Some of the bills

that have been proposed include incentives for industry, farmers, landowners and others to

conserve water.

Most importantly, the rural areas of the state that rely almost entirely on groundwater will need

tools to carry out conservation and water protection plans based on their local needs he said

  
01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 6 of 97

https://chamberbusinessnews.com/


tools to carry out conservation and water protection plans based on their local needs, he said.

Businesses are key players in protecting water

Businesses also will need to continue to invest in Arizona projects as part of the solution, Reeve

said.

Major corporations like Intel Corp, Waste Management, Microsoft, Cox, Arizona Public Service, the

Coca-Cola Foundation, Procter & Gamble, Reformation, Silk, and Swire Coca-Cola, USA have

invested millions of dollars in recent years on conservation projects to protect communities,

businesses and wildlife habitats.

That was something that was unheard of not so long ago, said Reeve, whose organization is

currently working with dozens of companies on projects across Arizona.

“Ten or 20 years ago, the notion of companies investing their brand and their financial resources

in projects outside of their own operations would have been unheard of,” Reeve said. “And today

we’re seeing this growing commitment, especially across Arizona, in leveraging this business

interest to help shore up Arizona’s water resources and create an environment where these

businesses have predictable water supply and they can follow through on plans to expand, to hire

and to site here in Arizona.”

Five Active Management Area results

The Seidman study analyzed the economic impact of groundwater in the five AMAs:

Phoenix Fact Sheet

Pinal Fact Sheet

Prescott Fact Sheet

Santa Cruz Fact Sheet

Tucson Fact Sheet

To read the full report, go to: The Economic Importance of Groundwater in Arizona.

Business for Water Stewardship

Business for Water Stewardship is a program of the Bonneville Environmental Foundation that

helps businesses advance solutions to ensure that our communities, economies and ecosystems

have enough clean water to flourish. We provide ways for businesses to actively help sustain

rivers and replenish aquifers, promote forward-looking water policies, and boost their reputations

as environmental stewards.

Learn more at: Business for Water Stewardship

  
01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 7 of 97

https://businessforwater.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/ASUstudy_AMA_Phoenix-3.pdf
https://businessforwater.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/ASUstudy_AMA_Pinal-1.pdf
https://businessforwater.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/ASUstudy_AMA_Prescott-1.pdf
https://businessforwater.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/ASUstudy_AMA_SantaCruz-1.pdf
https://businessforwater.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/ASUstudy_AMA_Tucson-1.pdf
https://businessforwater.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/Groundwater-Technical-Report-2020.pdf
http://www.businessforwater.org/
https://chamberbusinessnews.com/


Learn more at: Business for Water Stewardship

The L. William Seidman Research Institute

The L. William Seidman Research Institute serves as a link between the local, national, and

international business communities and the W. P. Carey School of Business at ASU. First

established in 1985 to serve as a center for applied business research and a consultancy resource

for the Arizona business community, Seidman collects, analyzes and disseminates information

about local economies, benchmarks industry practices, and identifies emerging business research

issues that affect productivity and competitiveness.

To read more about the work the institute is doing, go to: The L. William Seidman Research

Institute

Arizona State University Seidman Research Institute

Victoria Harker

VIEW ALL POSTS

  
01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 8 of 97

http://www.businessforwater.org/
https://seidmaninstitute.com/
https://chamberbusinessnews.com/tag/arizona-state-university/
https://chamberbusinessnews.com/tag/seidman-research-institute/
https://chamberbusinessnews.com/2020/12/10/arizona-economy-rebounding-but-coast-not-clear-yet/
https://chamberbusinessnews.com/2020/12/08/arizonas-new-state-senate-finance-committee-chair-makes-business-a-high-priority/
https://chamberbusinessnews.com/author/victoria/
https://chamberbusinessnews.com/


The EPA has a chance to listen and implement water industry leaders’
recommendations on a�ordability using new data, methods, metrics and digita
technologies. Here’s a review of submitted comments to the EPA on its proposed

a�ordability guidance updates. 

By Greg Baird

In the United States, the water a�ordability paradigm is based on a fundamentally flawed convention that t

average water and sewer bill with a combined value over 4.0 percent or 4.5 percent of median household

income (%MHI) is considered “una�ordable.” This metric stems from a 2 percent of MHI benchmark intende

measure community-level a�ordability for wastewater created by the U.S. EPA’s 1997 Combined Sewer

Overflows — Guidance for Financial Capability Assessment and Schedule Development (1997 FCA Guidance

This guidance is intended to assess a community’s financial capability to implement project schedules and

control measures needed to meet Clean Water Act (CWA) obligations. The EPA’s 1997 FCA has erroneously

How Will Water A�ordability b De�ned for 
the Next 20 Years?

DECEMBER 9, 2020
BY CONTRIBUTING

AUTHOR

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 9 of 97



become the defacto standard to measure household a�ordability for the last two decades and is widely use

a financial a�ordability benchmark during utility rate setting discussions.

On Sept. 15, 2020, when EPA released its Proposed 2020 Financial Capability Assessment Guidance (Propos

2020 FCA) asking for comments due back on Oct. 19, 2020, hundreds of utilities reacted at the anticipation o

EPA signaling a change in how the agency considers the financial burdens when developing implementatio

schedules for CWA permits and consent decrees applicable to public utilities. Any new change has been lon

coming as several organizations have been appealing to the EPA to make changes to the 1997 FCA during th

past 20 years.

A key input came from a 2016 Congressional direction for the EPA to contract with the National Academy of

Public Administration (NAPA) to create a framework for “community a�ordability.” The NAPA report,

“Developing a New Framework for Community A�ordability of Clean Water Services” was guided by the

feedback and participation from the American Water Works Association (AWWA), the National Association o

Clean Water Agencies (NACWA), the National League of Cities (NLC), the Brookings Institute, Center for

Progressive Reform (CPR), the Natural Resources Defense Council (NRDC) and the U.S. Conference of Mayor

(USCM).

In an e�ort to further collaborate with local decision makers to help ensure the proper collection and treatm

of domestic sewage and wastewater, the EPA requested comments on the proposed 2020 Financial Capabil

Assessment, which would expand the metrics EPA uses to consider a community’s financial capability to fu

water obligations. While specific and sometimes narrow questions were asked as part of the comments, sev

organizations also provided overall feedback concerning water infrastructure and a�ordability. This critical

feedback sheds greater light on the water industry’s struggle with defining water a�ordability and raises

concerns over elements of the Proposed 2020 FCA.

What Water Sector Organizations Are Saying

The submitted comments from water/sewer utility trade associations, local government organizations inclu

finance and public works, civil engineering associations, underground infrastructure management experts 

manufactures, establish a resounding voice of conscience from the U.S. water sector that state and federal

agencies — specifically the EPA  — should listen to.

AWWA, a 501c3 scientific and educational member association with 50,000 drinking water members, along 

WEF’s comprehensive study of wastewater and NACWA with the nation’s top clean water utilities, have prov

praise to the EPA leadership and sta� in responding to the NAPA report. A 2019 joint funded study from the 

organizations encouraged the EPA to finalize the guidance with the caveat that additional adjustments,

materials and future steps will still be needed. As for the Proposed 2020 FCA, both alternatives are

recommended to be available to all applicants. The new metrics of the lowest quintile residential income

indicator and poverty indicator should be included in both alternatives with a special emphasis on cash flow

modeling and household-level a�ordability analysis of a “total” water household burden (including drinkin

water, wastewater, stormwater, recycling, etc.).

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 10 of 97

https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2020-09/documents/epa_proposed_2020_financial_capability_guidance_september_2020.pdf
https://www.awwa.org/
http://nacwa.org/


The tone of disappointment and concern in not following all of the NAPA revelations and NACWA analysis w

expressed in their collective feedback related to any retention of the 1997 guidance, proposed adjustments

household size and any use of the arbitrary 2 percent as any kind of benchmark. Additionally, clarity was

requested for the linkage between the FCA to any flexible project schedule and the use of the term “useful l

Above all, the EPA needs to clearly state the FCA is only a scheduling tool and does not define water a�orda

in the broader sense. It also should not be used in a way that utility managers will not misinterpret that onc

lowest quintile reaches 2 percent of their income on water costs, that rates have somehow become

una�ordable.

The Role of Local Government

Local governments also have a direct interest in any proposed changes to the FCA. The U.S. Conference of

Mayors, representing cities with populations greater than 30,000, the National League of Cities (NLC)

representing more than 19,000 cities, towns and villages, the National Association of Counties (NACo) with 

counties and 20,000 members of the Government Finance O�icers Association (GFOA) point out that even a

Clean Water and Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Funds (SRFs) and WIFIA loans, local governments are

currently responsible for 98 percent of all water and wastewater expenditures to comply with federal and st

unfunded mandates.

Since 2009, collectively, they have promoted the use of green infrastructure, creating an Integrated Plannin

Framework (IP Framework) and revising the a�ordability guidance. As such, they support the Proposed 202

FCA and its flexibility and transparency, but want it finalized with the following revisions: Remove MHI as a

benchmark which has masked financial burdens, clarify “useful life”, allow flexibility on the schedule of

timeframes for compliance on  project by project basis and clarify how new Water Quality Standards (lead p

PFAS, etc.) will fit in. The emphasis is that the EPA needs to allow enough flexibility to allow for the develop

of a solution that meets that community’s needs and that local o�icials want to work with the EPA to establ

timeframe for compliance that is synchronized with a local government’s ability to invest and operate. Once

again, the imperative is to include all water costs “all in” and not “siloed” and have the communities submit

actual utility billing data to improve transparency and accuracy in determining a�ordability.

The EPA now �nds itself at the crossroads of partnering
with and supporting the industry’s water a�ordability

recommendations

While 85 percent of water utilities and 54 percent of sewer utilities are owned and controlled by municipal

governments, most fall under the public works department or utilities department. The American Public Wo

Association (APWA) with 30,000 members recommends that the EPA support legislative and regulatory e�o

encourage water systems with noncompliance issues to voluntarily partner with successful and compliant

utilities to limit the liability of the “Good Samaritan” water utility. APWA also recommends rate design that 

more accurate and reflective of full cost-of service and that cost-benefit analyses and feasibility studies are

needed. APWA points out that a�ordability varies by community, region and economic conditions and that 

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 11 of 97

https://www.gfoa.org/


use of MHI is arbitrary, does not include average water use and is a grossly inadequate metric for a�ordabili

also stresses the inclusion of stormwater management with CWA compliance and cost considerations. APW

recommends volumetric sewer prices based on indoor flow and that rate making and design consider low f

charges for low volume customers which are o�en low income. APWA explains that even while the new FCA

provide a better picture of what communities can a�ord, it will not, however, resolve the need for additiona

federal support and funding. APWA urges that the “EPA should request from Congress and Congress should

provide substantial increases in federal funding for investment in water infrastructure.”

While the EPA can provide more flexible and extended schedules, public works professionals are concerned

the impact of delaying compliance of water pollution regulations in order to just keep utility rates low. Clea

water agencies have also raised the same fear that schedule delays have real consequences. Many are not

willing to simply accept the public health risks and a scenario where the community and low-income

populations have to wait for water quality improvements.

This raises what some have described as “the bigger policy challenge” and asking the question that, as a na

will we provide communities (low-income populations) the assistance and funding to have access to clean a

safe water? Will the EPA finally address these bigger policy questions?

The American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE) with their 150,000 engineers every four years publish the

Infrastructure Report Card which gave water infrastructure a “D” grade and wastewater infrastructure a D+ i

2017. A stormwater grade is expected in 2021. ASCE highlighted the issues of the 16,000 wastewater treatme

plants that are functioning at about 81 percent of their design capacities while 15 percent have reached or

exceeded it and the chronic trend of underinvestment which continues to widen the financial gap. ASCE

reminds the EPA that while each water, sewer, storm enterprise fund is separate with their own rates, charge

and fees, each requires its own financial assessment of current and future risks and costs to start to underst

the water a�ordability issue of a community. ASCE warns the EPA that any new FCA guidance will once agai

incorrectly adopted as a national a�ordability standard and that each community will still need to struggle 

their own definition of a�ordability and equity.

ASCE suggests the additional federal requirements of the “Drinking Water System Risk Assessments and

Emergency Response Plans” required under America’s Water Infrastructure Act (AWIA) also needs to be

considered. ASCE supports reducing costs and fostering optimization through the use of life cycle cost analy

and recommends that the EPA develop a unit cost template and common standard of metrics as found in th

AWWA Utility Benchmarking publication for performance management. In doing so, they also recommend

separating maintenance costs from operational costs. ASCE strongly recommends that rate studies and cos

service models following the AWWA M1 published guidelines be required and “growth pays for growth” poli

should be updated so developers “buying into the system” can help o�set the cost burden of existing

customers. Many times, growth’s share of the costs fall to the financial burden of low-income customers.

ASCE proposes the remaining useful life of an asset be calculated as part of an asset management and cond

assessment program and the correct remaining life be reflected in the accounting system to increase the

accuracy and valuation of the utility. This more accurate valuation can then update rates and the value of th

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 12 of 97

https://www.asce.org/


utility for privatization, consolidation or regionalization reviews to mitigate a�ordability concerns where a

change in the governance or management model maybe needed. Engineers also recognize that grey

infrastructure projects are not the only solution in meeting compliance issues but the application of digital

technologies, remote monitoring, advanced analytics and digital twins can reduce costs and risks as anothe

means to address a�ordability issues and emerging water quality and contaminant concerns. ASCE has a ut

asset management (UAM) division and water and sewer asset management committee to help promote the

of best practices to reduce risks and the total cost of ownership.

Asset Management

Asset management has been a key solution for consent decrees. In 2003, the Buried Asset Management Inst

– International (BAMI-I) was established to help with the largest and most complex federal consent decree a

Atlanta’s Department of Watershed Management. Through an EPA Cooperative Agreement in 2006, the

Certificate of Training in Asset Management courses (CTAM) were developed. BAMI-I’s response (now at Pur

University) calls to eliminate the 2 percent metric which does not have any real justification. BAMI-I

recommends cost of service rate studies and cash flow models to be conducted for all separate enterprise fu

(water, sewer, and storm) to understand the actual costs to maintain current service levels now, in the futur

and the costs of unfunded mandates. Using the asset management principles of business continuity and co

improvement to evaluate ways to reduce the overall life cycle costs of an asset or treatment process, they c

for new technologies, processes and materials including deploying sensors and developing digital twins to

increase operational awareness. BAMI-I suggests that between the local, regional, state and federal levels o

cooperation the mix of funding and timing of the project should be decided to maximize the life cycle value

the assets and protect the public health.

The underground infrastructure manufacturer’s PVC Pipe Association’s comments explained how sustainab

water resources and service levels connect the entire urban water cycle as described by the US Water Allian

One Water concept to support a�ordability. The PVC Association boldly states that a�ordability needs to be

prioritized with “all water” and the EPA should not presuppose what a�ordability, or the “value of water” is

community. “Water, if prioritized, should never be “una�ordable” otherwise it devalues life.” While

recommending rate studies and cash flow models, life cycle analysis and life cycle assessments to reduce th

carbon footprint, they also would require each project to have a checklist of digital technologies, solutions 

strategies applied for each infrastructure group and only base implementation schedules on cost and risk

analysis.

Xylem, Inc., a global water equipment, instrumentation and digital solutions company also provided suppo

comments. Xylem, as with the other water leaders, recommends analyzing the true economic burden for “a

water services” and incorporating the best available technology, such as digital technologies that improve w

quality and deliver operational cost savings.

Xylem says it believes that “innovation is key to a community’s a�ordability in the immediate and long-term

The deployment of digital technologies, which did not exist in 1997 or when projects “did their research” ne

be included. This includes the use of SCADA, GIS, sensors, IoT, wireless and secured connectivity, data collec

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 13 of 97

https://www.uni-bell.org/
http://uswateralliance.org/
https://www.xylem.com/en-us/


SHARE THIS POST TW

and cloud storage, advanced analytics, and the use of AI, machine learning and digital twins. It also include

development of asset monitoring technologies for distribution, collection, treatment, storm and re-use and

they should be included in the requirements, project plans and implementation schedules.

It is anticipated when finalized, the 2020 FCA will support negotiations of schedules for implementing CWA

requirements for municipalities and local authorities. The EPA has requested stakeholder comments and th

feedback overwhelmingly recommends using new data, new methods and metrics, as well as innovative dig

technologies.

The EPA now finds itself at the crossroads of partnering with and supporting the industry’s water a�ordabil

recommendations. The questions remain – can the federal agency move away from 1997 framework into th

2020s, applying innovation and changing how projects will be scheduled and how a�ordability will be discu

for the next 20 years? Will we as a nation decide to support one water equity for disadvantaged communitie

who need clean and safe water services?

One thing is clear, the water industry leaders stand united as willing partners to deliver sustainable and

a�ordable water services for the nation.

Greg Baird is president of the Water Finance Research Foundation and a frequent contributor to WF&M. As a

management consultant, he specializes in long-term utility planning, infrastructure asset management and

capital funding strategies for municipal utilities in the United States. He has served as a municipal finance o

in California and as the CFO of Colorado’s third-largest utility.

Tags: A�ordability, ASCE, Asset Management, AWWA, EPA, GFOA, Greg Baird, NACWA, Uni-Bell PVC Pipe

Association, US Water Alliance, Xylem, Xylem Watermark

MORE IN RATES & AFFORDABILITY

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 14 of 97

http://twitter.com/share
https://waterfm.com/tag/affordability/
https://waterfm.com/tag/asce/
https://waterfm.com/tag/asset-management/
https://waterfm.com/tag/awwa/
https://waterfm.com/tag/epa/
https://waterfm.com/tag/gfoa/
https://waterfm.com/tag/greg-baird/
https://waterfm.com/tag/nacwa/
https://waterfm.com/tag/uni-bell-pvc-pipe-association/
https://waterfm.com/tag/us-water-alliance/
https://waterfm.com/tag/xylem/
https://waterfm.com/tag/xylem-watermark/


Colorado activates municipal drought response 
plan as 2021 water forecast darkens

by Jerd Smith | Dec 9, 2020 | Climate and Drought, Major River Basins, Water Supply |

Dust clouds roll across drought-ridden fields near eastern Colorado’s Lamar in spring 2013. Credit: Jane Stulp

The State of Colorado has activated the municipal portion of its emergency drought plan for 
only the second time in history as several cities say they need to prepare for what is almost 
certainly going to be a dangerously dry 2021.

Last summer, the state formally activated the agricultural portion of the plan, calling on 
government agencies that serve farmers and livestock producers to begin coordinating aid 
efforts among themselves and with growers.

Now a similar process will begin for cities, according to Megan Holcomb, who oversees the 
drought work for the Colorado Water Conservation Board, the state’s lead water policy 
agency.

Holcomb said the state’s decision to sound the alarm on municipal water supply came in 
response to requests from several cities, who believe the drought has become so severe that 
they need to prepare quickly for whatever 2021 may bring. Normally cities don’t make 
decisions about whether to impose watering restrictions until the spring, when it becomes 
clear how much water will melt from mountain snows and fill reservoirs.

But not this year.

“Even with an average snowpack we will still be in drought in the spring,” Holcomb said.

Colorado Springs, just last summer, enacted permanent three-days-per-week outdoor 
watering restrictions.

Kalsoum Abbasi oversees the city’s water delivery system and its reservoirs. She said the state’s 
decision to activate phase III drought planning makes sense.

“Personally I think it’s a good move for the state to move forward because it will help keep 
these drought conditions at the forefront of the conversation,” she said.

According to the U.S. Drought Monitor, the state is now blanketed in drought, with more than 
two-thirds of its terrain classified as being in extreme or exceptional drought, the worst 
condition.

Colorado has experienced four severe droughts since 2000, but the trend has intensified with 
the drought of 2018 barely lifting before 2020 began seeing searing temperatures and dry 
weather again.

Going into 2021 soils across the state are desperately dry. As mountain snows melt and runoff 
makes its way to streams, a large share of the moisture will be absorbed by the thirsty 
landscape, leaving less for reservoirs and cities to collect.

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 15 of 97

https://www.watereducationcolorado.org/publications-and-radio/blog/author/jerdsmith/
https://www.watereducationcolorado.org/publications-and-radio/categories/climate-and-drought/
https://www.watereducationcolorado.org/publications-and-radio/categories/river-basins/
https://www.watereducationcolorado.org/publications-and-radio/categories/water-supply/


“Soil moisture is a huge part of this story,” Holcomb said. “I also think 2020 is likely the 
hottest year on record globally. Long-term forecasts for temperatures show January 
through October of next year being extremely warm again.”

Colorado is divided into eight major river basins, with the four to the west of the 
Continental Divide feeding the bigger Colorado River Basin, which extends from the Never 
Summer Mountains in Rocky Mountain National Park to Mexico.

Federal forecasts for this system over the next several months have been dropping sharply. 
Paul Miller, a hydrologist for the Colorado River Basin Forecasting Center in Salt Lake City, 
said the amount of water predicted to be generated by this winter’s mountain snows 
dropped to 5.6 million acre-feet in December, down from 6.45 million acre-feet just one 
month earlier.

“Even before this recent change there was cause for concern because this past year was 
very dry and reservoir levels fell,” Miller said.

Local city water officials such as Jerrod Biggs, deputy director of utilities in Durango, said 
there is little time to waste.

Durango lies in the southwest corner of the state. The region has been hardest hit by the 
current drought and was similarly hard hit in 2018.

“All the groundwork we can lay today is worth it. Everybody hopes it’s not needed. But 
sticking our heads in the sand isn’t going to do anybody any good. It’s ugly and it’s getting 
uglier,” Biggs said.

Correction: An earlier version of this article stated incorrectly that the Colorado River flows 
to the Gulf of Mexico.

Jerd Smith is editor of Fresh Water News. She can be reached at 720-398-6474, via email

at jerd@wateredco.org
(mailto:jerd@wateredco.org)

 or @jerd_smith.

Fresh Water News is an independent, nonpartisan news initiative of Water Education

Colorado. WEco is funded by multiple donors. Our editorial policy and donor list can be

viewed at wateredco.org
(https://www.watereducationcolorado.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/WEco-Fresh-Water-News-Editorial-Poli

cy.pdf)

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 16 of 97



Indy Environment: Researchers say climate change is 
making the atmosphere thirstier — and 
increasing the danger of wildfire, drought

We talk about it a lot: Across the Southwest, human-caused warming is changing the way that water falls as 
snow or rain, creating uncertainty around the regional water supplies we rely on. 

Yet precipitation tells only one part of the story. Climate scientists expect another less-discussed variable to 
increase the risks of wildfires and droughts in Nevada and California over the coming decades. That variable is 
known as “evaporative demand,” and it’s effectively a measure of how thirsty the atmosphere is — the extent to 
which the atmosphere is trying to evaporate water.  

That all might sound technical, but evaporative demand has real-world consequences. In a new 
paper, Nevada and California researchers showed how greater atmospheric thirst, mainly driven by warming 
temperatures, could have major implications for drought and wildfire risk.  

“We saw this steady increase in evaporative demand through the end of the century,” said Dan McEvoy, a 
researcher with the Desert Research Institute and Western Regional Climate Center. 

What McEvoy and the paper’s co-authors found was that greater seasonal evaporative demand — a roughly 13 
to 18 percent increase by the end of the century — could dry out the landscape, creating conditions that are 
likely to increase the danger of intense fire and multiyear droughts.  

Recent fires have already been linked to extreme days of evaporative demand. Those extreme days are expected 
to increase, the paper found, and that could result in more wildfire danger. 

McEvoy said the results showed “steadily increasing extreme days.” By the late century, from 2070 to 2099, the 
paper forecasted a four to ten-fold increase in the number of extreme days. 

The paper, published in Earth’s Future last month, helps to fill in a gap around predicting the 
effects of climate change across the state. Drought involves both precipitation trends and evaporative 
demand. But as the state’s newly released climate strategy explains, there remains a degree of uncertainty 
around how climate change will affect precipitation. That’s not the case when it comes to evaporative demand, 
which has risen in Nevada over the past four decades. 

Julie Kalansky, a co-author of the paper and a researcher based out of the Scripps Institution of Oceanography 
at the University of California, San Diego, said both variables must be weighed. 

“When you think about drought just as the lack of precipitation — and without the evaporative demand — you 
are missing a relatively large piece of the puzzle,” Kalansky said in an interview. 

The paper is predictive, but it can be valuable for planning today, researchers said. Fire, land and 
water managers could, for instance, work to include projections for future evaporative demand into planning 
about how to adapt to climate change in Nevada and in California. 

Kalansky said a one takeaway from the paper was that “this drying of the landscape is really important to think 
about and consider in terms of planning for future adaptation and resiliency.” 

As with other research into the effects of climate change, the paper primarily uses a model that assumes 
continued greenhouse gas emissions, what is sometimes referred to as a “worst-case scenario” for climate 
change. But cutting overall emissions could make the effects less extreme. 

McEvoy noted that researchers ran the numbers through a lower-emissions scenario. While the increases in 
evaporative demand were less extreme, they were still significant. The conclusion, McEvoy said, is the 
atmosphere is getting increasingly thirsty, and policymakers should prepare. 

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 17 of 97

https://thenevadaindependent.us20.list-manage.com/track/click?u=bbbf9d0ef8ba9ac0e2f87fc6d&id=3f41a6c94b&e=b9971a45d6
https://thenevadaindependent.us20.list-manage.com/track/click?u=bbbf9d0ef8ba9ac0e2f87fc6d&id=9b96729065&e=b9971a45d6
https://thenevadaindependent.us20.list-manage.com/track/click?u=bbbf9d0ef8ba9ac0e2f87fc6d&id=9b96729065&e=b9971a45d6


Markets

By Megan Durisin
December 11, 2020, 5:03 AM PST

UN Warns New Water Futures May Spark Bubble
for Vital Resource

The United Nations said Wall Street’s new water futures risk an essential public good being treated
like gold and oil, leaving the market vulnerable to a speculative bubble.

CME Group Inc.’s new contract -- which debuted this week -- could lure interest from hedge funds
and banks alongside farmers, factories and utilities looking to lock in prices, said Pedro Arrojo-
Agudo, the UN’s special rapporteur on the human rights to safe drinking water and sanitation. That
risks a price run-up for a resource that “belongs to everyone” and is a vital tool in combating the
Covid-19 pandemic.

“The news that water is to be traded on Wall Street futures market shows that the value of water, as
a basic human right, is now under threat,” Arrojo-Agudo said in a statement. “It is closely tied to all
of our lives and livelihoods, and is an essential component to public health.”

The new futures contract is linked to the $1.1 billion spot water market in California, the biggest U.S.
agriculture market and world’s fifth-largest economy. Supplies face increasing threats from climate
change, rising populations and pollution from mining and farming, the UN said.

CME didn’t immediately reply to an email seeking comment.

READ MORE:

Water ‘belongs to everyone,’ UN human rights official says

New futures raise risk of water being treated like gold, oil

California Water Futures Begin Trading Amid Fear of Scarcity

Three Billion People Live in Farming Areas With Water Shortages

CME’s First Water Futures Are Coming as U.S. West Burns

Why Water Won’t Make It as a Major Commodity: David Fickling

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 18 of 97

https://www.bloomberg.com/authors/AROex4-5Kho/megan-durisin
https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2020-12-06/water-futures-to-start-trading-amid-growing-fears-of-scarcity
https://www.ohchr.org/EN/NewsEvents/Pages/DisplayNews.aspx?NewsID=26595&LangID=E
https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2020-12-06/water-futures-to-start-trading-amid-growing-fears-of-scarcity
https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2020-11-26/three-billion-people-live-in-farming-areas-with-water-shortages
https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2020-09-17/calfornia-water-futures-are-coming-with-the-west-set-ablaze
https://www.bloomberg.com/view/articles/2020-12-08/why-water-won-t-make-it-as-a-major-commodity


A plume of smoke from the 2020 Bear Fire as seen from the Feather River Canyon. Image: Trevor Bexon

Submitted by Danelle D. Harrison, USDA Forest Service Lake Tahoe Basin Management Unit

December is a special time of year when our thoughts turn to family and friends, and communities come together to cel 

the season. It also marks the end of the year. And what a year it was. Together, we experienced unprecedented events 

including a record-breaking wildland �re year in the Paci�c Southwest Region.

The 2020 Fire Year ramped up quickly and during the mid-August �re siege in California, nearly 10,000 �re�ghting pers 

were deployed to active incidents. Our neighbors in Australia, Canada, Israel and Mexico, and the U.S. Department of De 

provided hundreds of additional �re�ghters to assist our strained �re resources. On Aug. 18, the Northern California 

Preparedness level (dictated by fuel and weather conditions, �re activity, and �re suppression resource availability 

throughout the country) rose to 5, the highest level of �re activity and stayed there for an unprecedented 44 days.

By mid-November, approximately 10,062 �res burned nearly 4.2 million acres in California. This made 2020 the largest 

wild�re year recorded in California’s modern history and tested the resilience of weary local, state and federal �re�ghtin 

agencies. California also experienced the �rst large �re that exceeded one million acres.

Guest Column: 2020 Fire Year highlights import
By ThisIsReno December 16, 2020

dangerous wild�re conditions. National Forest lands in the Lake Tahoe Basin were fortunate to not experience any large

but did record a total of 48 �res, 38 of which were caused by human ignition.

Lake Tahoe West Restoration Partnership

Over the last 10 years, the USDA Forest Service Lake Tahoe Basin Management Unit and our many partners have

accomplished signi�cant goals of the Environmental Improvement Program (EIP) by completing forest thinning and

prescribed �re treatments on approximately 84,599 acres of forested lands around Lake Tahoe. Forest health is a chief fo

area for the EIP, an unparalleled partnership working across physical and regulatory boundaries to achieve the environm

goals of the region in and around Lake Tahoe.

The Forest Service and our partners will continue to plan and implement projects such as the Lake Tahoe West Restorat

Partnership to increase the pace and scale of these critical ecological restoration treatments.

The 2020 Fire Year also led to an unprecedented closure of all 18 National Forests in California for several weeks due to

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 19 of 97

https://travelnevada.com/nevada-pride-shopping-guide/?utm_campaign=mkt-fy21-dyn&utm_source=thisisreno&utm_medium=display&utm_content=holiday
https://thisisreno.com/
https://thisisreno.com/subscribe/
https://thisisreno.com/category/news/
https://thisisreno.com/calendar/
https://thisisreno.com/category/en-espanol/
https://thisisreno.com/restaurants/#/
https://www.facebook.com/dialog/feed?app_id=551468291535482&display=popup&name=Guest+Column%3A+2020+Fire+Year+highlights+importance+of+forest+health&link=https%3A%2F%2Fthisisreno.com%2F2020%2F12%2Fguest-column-2020-fire-year-highlights-importance-of-forest-health%2F&picture=https://thisisreno.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/09/Smoke-from-Bear-Fire_Trevor-Bexon.jpg&description=The+2020+Fire+Year+led+to+an+unprecedented+closure+of+all+18+National+Forests+in+California+for+several+weeks+due+to+dangerous+wildfire+conditions.
mailto:?subject=Check%20out%20https%3A%2F%2Fthisisreno.com&body=Hi%2C%20this%20may%20be%20interesting%20you%3A%20Guest%20Column%3A%202020%20Fire%20Year%20highlights%20importance%20of%20forest%20health%21%20This%20is%20the%20link%3A%20https%3A%2F%2Fthisisreno.com%2F2020%2F12%2Fguest-column-2020-fire-year-highlights-importance-of-forest-health%2F
https://reddit.com/submit?url=https%3A%2F%2Fthisisreno.com%2F2020%2F12%2Fguest-column-2020-fire-year-highlights-importance-of-forest-health%2F&title=Guest+Column%3A+2020+Fire+Year+highlights+importance+of+forest+health


Thank you �re�ghters sign in northern California during the 2020 Fire Year. Image: Trevor Bexon

Forest thinning and prescribed �re treatments are proven to be effective methods in reducing excess vegetation, mitigat

wild�re behavior, recycling nutrients back into the soil and reintroducing low-intensity �re back onto the landscape. Lo

intensity �re plays an especially important role in the Sierra Nevada ecosystem and can help prevent large wild�res that

result in landscape altering destruction.

Both the 2007 Angora and 2016 Emerald �res were key examples of how forest thinning and prescribed �re treatments r

the severity of wildland �res. In both cases, when out of control �ames driven by �erce winds reached previously thinne

treated areas of the forest, the �ames dropped from the forest crown to the forest �oor. Once on the ground, �re�ghters

extinguish the �ames allowing more trees to survive.

Image

Craft Wine And Beer

 HOME  SUBSCRIBE NEWS EVENTS EN ESPAÑOL BUSINESSES 

a d v y 1

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 20 of 97

https://thisisreno-sponsors.streetinteractive.com/click/232611?destination=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2F189854401083754%2Fposts%2F3480617682007393%2F&
https://thisisreno.com/
https://thisisreno.com/subscribe/
https://thisisreno.com/category/news/
https://thisisreno.com/calendar/
https://thisisreno.com/category/en-espanol/
https://thisisreno.com/restaurants/#/
https://www.facebook.com/dialog/feed?app_id=551468291535482&display=popup&name=Guest+Column%3A+2020+Fire+Year+highlights+importance+of+forest+health&link=https%3A%2F%2Fthisisreno.com%2F2020%2F12%2Fguest-column-2020-fire-year-highlights-importance-of-forest-health%2F&picture=https://thisisreno.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/09/Smoke-from-Bear-Fire_Trevor-Bexon.jpg&description=The+2020+Fire+Year+led+to+an+unprecedented+closure+of+all+18+National+Forests+in+California+for+several+weeks+due+to+dangerous+wildfire+conditions.
mailto:?subject=Check%20out%20https%3A%2F%2Fthisisreno.com&body=Hi%2C%20this%20may%20be%20interesting%20you%3A%20Guest%20Column%3A%202020%20Fire%20Year%20highlights%20importance%20of%20forest%20health%21%20This%20is%20the%20link%3A%20https%3A%2F%2Fthisisreno.com%2F2020%2F12%2Fguest-column-2020-fire-year-highlights-importance-of-forest-health%2F
https://reddit.com/submit?url=https%3A%2F%2Fthisisreno.com%2F2020%2F12%2Fguest-column-2020-fire-year-highlights-importance-of-forest-health%2F&title=Guest+Column%3A+2020+Fire+Year+highlights+importance+of+forest+health


West Shore forests are overly dense making them susceptible to high severity �re, insect infestations and disease. The L

Tahoe West Restoration Partnership aims to restore forests, meadows, streams, and wildlife habitat across 59,000 acres 

forest from Emerald Bay to Tahoe City and is taking an all lands approach to restoring the resilience of this treasured

landscape.

Lake Tahoe West Restoration Partnership key strategies include:

Learn more about next steps for this innovative project and sign up for Lake Tahoe West Restoration Partnership projec

updates athttps://www.nationalforests.org/who-we-are/regional-of�ces/california-program/laketahoewest.

Looking Ahead 

Increasing thepace and scale of forest thinning and prescribed �re treatments to reduce wild�re risks to communi

and to wildlife;

restoring meadows, managing invasive species, increasing habitat connectivity, and supporting native plants and

wildlife threatened by a changing climate;

restoring streams to reduce erosion, improving native species habitat, and increasing watershed resilience to �ood

and drought conditions;

supporting and building resilience into the local economy;

enhancing engagement with the Washoe Tribe;

working collaboratively with land managers to meet objectives across land ownership boundaries;

increasing smoke forecasting, agency coordination, and public outreach to minimize smoke impacts from prescrib

and managed wild�re; and

managing roads and trails for long-term stability and watershed protection.

 HOME  SUBSCRIBE NEWS EVENTS EN ESPAÑOL BUSINESSES 

a d v y 1

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 21 of 97

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.nationalforests.org%2Fwho-we-are%2Fregional-offices%2Fcalifornia-program%2Flaketahoewest&data=04%7C01%7C%7Cabb36059b8b4440f9af908d8a08b5867%7Ced5b36e701ee4ebc867ee03cfa0d4697%7C0%7C0%7C637435867882324930%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=G0t8m%2BRyi%2BT2itOh27TONEyOKLR54xvhbKsaxZQy2nM%3D&reserved=0
https://thisisreno.com/
https://thisisreno.com/subscribe/
https://thisisreno.com/category/news/
https://thisisreno.com/calendar/
https://thisisreno.com/category/en-espanol/
https://thisisreno.com/restaurants/#/
https://www.facebook.com/dialog/feed?app_id=551468291535482&display=popup&name=Guest+Column%3A+2020+Fire+Year+highlights+importance+of+forest+health&link=https%3A%2F%2Fthisisreno.com%2F2020%2F12%2Fguest-column-2020-fire-year-highlights-importance-of-forest-health%2F&picture=https://thisisreno.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/09/Smoke-from-Bear-Fire_Trevor-Bexon.jpg&description=The+2020+Fire+Year+led+to+an+unprecedented+closure+of+all+18+National+Forests+in+California+for+several+weeks+due+to+dangerous+wildfire+conditions.
mailto:?subject=Check%20out%20https%3A%2F%2Fthisisreno.com&body=Hi%2C%20this%20may%20be%20interesting%20you%3A%20Guest%20Column%3A%202020%20Fire%20Year%20highlights%20importance%20of%20forest%20health%21%20This%20is%20the%20link%3A%20https%3A%2F%2Fthisisreno.com%2F2020%2F12%2Fguest-column-2020-fire-year-highlights-importance-of-forest-health%2F
https://reddit.com/submit?url=https%3A%2F%2Fthisisreno.com%2F2020%2F12%2Fguest-column-2020-fire-year-highlights-importance-of-forest-health%2F&title=Guest+Column%3A+2020+Fire+Year+highlights+importance+of+forest+health


Although large �re activity began to diminish across Northern California in late-November, drought conditions are expe

to continue with signi�cant �re potential and activity anticipated to last through early spring 2021.

Fortunately, we can all play a role when it comes to supporting forest health projects that mitigate wild�re risk. The For

Service and our partners will continue to plan and implement ecologically based projects. Members of the public can he

reach our goals by supporting these projects and learning how low-intensity �re in the form of prescribed �re treatment

bene�cial for the landscape, forests will look different after treatment, and occasional smoke from prescribed �re projec

worth the bene�ts they provide.

Homeowners can take steps to complement the work being done by the Forest Service and our partners by properly man

the vegetation surrounding private property. Homeowners are encouraged to complete and maintain defensible space

improvements and discuss the importance of defensible space with neighbors.

Having defensible space around homes increases the chance that homes will survive the next wild�re. Learn how to requ

free defensible space inspection from local �re districts and learn more about keeping homes safe before, during and aft

next wild�re attahoelivingwith�re.com. As we all know, it’s not a matter of “if” the next wild�re will occur, it’s a matter 

“when.”

My sincere thanks go out to our many partners for their continued support of Tahoe Basin forest health treatments and 

local, state and federal wildland �re�ghters for their hard work, dedication and tireless efforts to save lives, property and

precious natural resources.

While we all wish that the 2020 Fire Year remains unprecedented, recent trends have sh

that we will continue to experience signi�cant and catastrophic wild�re in the years to c

We must all do our part as stewards of these Tahoe Basin lands, to create and sustain res

forests and communities for the bene�t of current and future generations. ~D.D.

 HOME  SUBSCRIBE NEWS EVENTS EN ESPAÑOL BUSINESSES 

a d v y 1

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 22 of 97

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.tahoelivingwithfire.com%2F&data=04%7C01%7C%7Cabb36059b8b4440f9af908d8a08b5867%7Ced5b36e701ee4ebc867ee03cfa0d4697%7C0%7C0%7C637435867882324930%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=E9I%2BUb3wUVDKNBpF%2FBvCriEh5dJ8bTc0ptuNdFCpmS4%3D&reserved=0
https://thisisreno.com/
https://thisisreno.com/subscribe/
https://thisisreno.com/category/news/
https://thisisreno.com/calendar/
https://thisisreno.com/category/en-espanol/
https://thisisreno.com/restaurants/#/
https://www.facebook.com/dialog/feed?app_id=551468291535482&display=popup&name=Guest+Column%3A+2020+Fire+Year+highlights+importance+of+forest+health&link=https%3A%2F%2Fthisisreno.com%2F2020%2F12%2Fguest-column-2020-fire-year-highlights-importance-of-forest-health%2F&picture=https://thisisreno.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/09/Smoke-from-Bear-Fire_Trevor-Bexon.jpg&description=The+2020+Fire+Year+led+to+an+unprecedented+closure+of+all+18+National+Forests+in+California+for+several+weeks+due+to+dangerous+wildfire+conditions.
mailto:?subject=Check%20out%20https%3A%2F%2Fthisisreno.com&body=Hi%2C%20this%20may%20be%20interesting%20you%3A%20Guest%20Column%3A%202020%20Fire%20Year%20highlights%20importance%20of%20forest%20health%21%20This%20is%20the%20link%3A%20https%3A%2F%2Fthisisreno.com%2F2020%2F12%2Fguest-column-2020-fire-year-highlights-importance-of-forest-health%2F
https://reddit.com/submit?url=https%3A%2F%2Fthisisreno.com%2F2020%2F12%2Fguest-column-2020-fire-year-highlights-importance-of-forest-health%2F&title=Guest+Column%3A+2020+Fire+Year+highlights+importance+of+forest+health


During the Trump years, some cities stumbled on meeting climate goals. A change in federal
leadership during the Covid recovery period could supercharge progress. 

Patrick Sisson
December 14, 2020, 10:18 AM PST

The ‘Climate Mayors’ Are Very Ready for a
Biden Administration

St. Paul Mayor Melvin Carter meets with Dr. Jill Biden in October.  Photographer: Stephen Maturen/Getty Images
North America

The climate crisis has come to St. Paul not as fire or flood but as a shiny green beetle:
The emerald ash borer, an invasive insect that’s been eating its way northward in North America,
is devouring a growing share of the Minnesota capital’s tree management budget. Removing
dead trees could cost the city $22 million over the next few years, Mayor Melvin Carter says. The
warming planet has also manifested in the siege of potholes that afflicts the city’s roadways,
since the freeze-thaw cycle now happens more often, steadily increasing municipal maintenance
costs. 

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 23 of 97

https://www.bloomberg.com/citylab?in_source=eyebrow_logo
https://www.swnewsmedia.com/chanhassen_villager/news/local/taking-the-next-steps-to-ward-off-emerald-ash-borer/article_730c921e-6da1-54ef-97b0-bf8ab42c7c86.html
https://www.bizjournals.com/twincities/news/2019/08/06/st-paul-needs-to-double-spending-on-streets-report.html


To help the city meet its climate action goals and do its part to combat climate change, Carter
wants to double-down on bike lanes, pedestrian-friendly street design and public transit. But
keeping up with falling tree limbs and buckled streets is straining St. Paul’s ability to fund basic
services, especially amid the economic downturn triggered by the coronavirus pandemic. And
the federal government has not been very helpful lately. 

“We’ve been waiting for an infrastructure week that never happened during the current
administration,” Carter says. 

Many other U.S. cities have been similarly frustrated in their efforts to cope with a warming
world. The Climate Mayors, a network of local leaders committed to upholding the Paris Climate
Agreement, saw its membership blossom from roughly 80 to a current 468 cities after President
Donald Trump left the international agreement in 2017. During that time, many cities found ways
to push forward sustainability and clean ener�y initiatives, even in the absence of federal
assistance. Others, however, have failed to live up to their lofty goals. As Marty Walsh, Boston’s
mayor and newly named chair of the Climate Mayors, said, “there’s no partner like the federal
government.” 

ADVERTISING

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 24 of 97

https://www.stpaul.gov/departments/mayors-office/climate-action-planning
http://climatemayors.org/
https://www.theguardian.com/environment/2020/dec/11/paris-climate-agreement-54-cities-on-track-to-meet-targets?CMP=share_btn_tw
https://www.sciencemag.org/news/2020/10/us-cities-struggling-meet-lofty-climate-goals
http://climatemayors.org/media/press-releases/climate-mayors-announces-new-chair-boston-mayor-martin-j-walsh/


More from

The ‘Highway Boondoggles’ That the Pandemic Hasn’t Killed

The Slum Next Door to Gangnam Exposes South Korea’s Wealth Gap

San Diego’s Barrio Logan Bounces Back, But Recovery Is Fragile

Phoenix Didn’t Just Feed the Hungry. It Saved Farms and Restaurants.

The group released a statement on Friday, on the fifth anniversary of the Paris accord, to signal
their expectations of what might be possible with a White House that actively helps local
governments and promises to work with them. With new leadership in D.C. taking over during a
critical moment, it’s “absolutely crucial,” says Climate Mayors director James Ritchotte, that the
cities that have stepped up on their own during the Trump years finally have a constructive
federal partner rather than an open antagonist. 

“A fundamental part of what we need to do going forward, to create a green and equitable
recovery, is to reorient how we invest in infrastructure,” says Ritchotte, whose group advocates
for a green Covid recovery, focused on improving public health, equity, and transitioning to a
zero-carbon economy. “Biden is talking about leveraging the federal budget to focus on clean
ener�y and renewable power, just as cities are looking at buildings, transit and climate
investment. There is no silver bullet, just a multi-pronged approach.” 

The next six months will be key, according to Laura Jay, North America regional director for C40,
an international alliance of cities focused on environmental policy. Can the Biden administration
leverage the demand for a Covid recovery and, as the campaign’s Build Back Better slogan
suggests, do so in a way that also dramatically advances environmental and equity concerns? 

Cities are changing fast. 

Keep up with the CityLab Daily newsletter

The best way to follow issues you care about
By submitting my information, I agree to the Privacy Policy and Terms of Service and to receive offers and promotions from
Bloomberg.

 Enter your email Sign Up

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 25 of 97

https://www.bloomberg.com/citylab?in_source=postr_index
https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2020-12-17/7-bad-highway-projects-for-a-very-bad-year?in_source=postr_story_0
https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2020-12-17/seoul-slum-near-gangnam-guryong-exposes-south-korea-wealth-gap?in_source=postr_story_1
https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2020-12-17/san-diego-s-barrio-logan-bounces-back-but-recovery-is-fragile?in_source=postr_story_2
https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2020-12-17/phoenix-used-food-aid-program-to-save-small-businesses-as-well?in_source=postr_story_3
http://climatemayors.org/2020/12/11/climate-mayors-statement-on-the-five-year-anniversary-of-paris-climate-agreement/
https://www.smartcitiesdive.com/news/president-elect-biden-promises-support-us-conference-mayors/589608/
http://climatemayors.org/media/press-releases/climate-mayors-urge-congressional-leadership-to-advance-a-green-and-equitable-recovery/
https://www.c40.org/
https://buildbackbetter.gov/
https://www.bloomberg.com/notices/privacy/?_ptid=%7Bjcx%7DH4sIAAAAAAAAAFWQW0_CQBCF_8s-s2Qv7V54A7mVKCo0UHlbpltYLKW2C2iM_91CxIR5mGTmO-dkMt_IuBR1UDQe9uthVFQT1EKl2diFs-foQhhhBFOGqcRUYM4xpVgrist4OpysY3Uap_PH2SbBWnKAIAMiGQtDbrUBnkkg6zBL00zyJth-lrZytgB7jR4kw5EIk940GYV3dPBp4ejdobjKqCJh0bSPAyZNMb_bqUzUPnz3Gk6skrAuD3f-Lvyb6-3hHNt9mRtvZ_1Eqt6q-_oSPawEbSxbU98g6vjqaFvI_81X93Pcna90PBLR6nLhjS1M5UzhL5LimOctBGZfGrcp6tvi5Gp35eiE7z_IFGYaSyawK5_yuveVZPM3sVwOOAabEioCIKnkXAWGAnCiA0E1MJ4BNBe4sokMZDtQbSHboWxWx9pW3Y0tfEPS80XkfY46VBDFudSa_fwC30GOe-UBAAA
https://www.bloomberg.com/notices/tos/?_ptid=%7Bjcx%7DH4sIAAAAAAAAAFWQW0_CQBCF_8s-s2Qv7V54A7mVKCo0UHlbpltYLKW2C2iM_91CxIR5mGTmO-dkMt_IuBR1UDQe9uthVFQT1EKl2diFs-foQhhhBFOGqcRUYM4xpVgrist4OpysY3Uap_PH2SbBWnKAIAMiGQtDbrUBnkkg6zBL00zyJth-lrZytgB7jR4kw5EIk940GYV3dPBp4ejdobjKqCJh0bSPAyZNMb_bqUzUPnz3Gk6skrAuD3f-Lvyb6-3hHNt9mRtvZ_1Eqt6q-_oSPawEbSxbU98g6vjqaFvI_81X93Pcna90PBLR6nLhjS1M5UzhL5LimOctBGZfGrcp6tvi5Gp35eiE7z_IFGYaSyawK5_yuveVZPM3sVwOOAabEioCIKnkXAWGAnCiA0E1MJ4BNBe4sokMZDtQbSHboWxWx9pW3Y0tfEPS80XkfY46VBDFudSa_fwC30GOe-UBAAA


The answer hangs in part on the results of the Georgia special elections that will determine
Senate control, and thus whether Biden can pass his expansive vision for $2 trillion in climate
spending during his first term. But Jay also sees possibilities in executive actions and at the
agency level. “To me there’s a real opportunity to create a more formalized mechanism to get
cities more integrated early into policy development and implementation, and have mayors play
a more formal role within setting policy at the White House,” says Jay. “With the role mayors
have played in the campaign, the door is already so wide open.”

For cities, the support and funding they get during this moment will go a long way to
determining the long-term success of climate initiatives. “We’re in defense mode, taking care of
the crises right now,” says St. Paul’s Carter, who notes that the city had to overcome a $20
million shortfall from its $636 million budget this year, reducing funding for nearly every city
department, due to the Covid crisis. “We know transportation and buildings are where we can
make the most climate impact. And we know the negative impacts of climate change are going to
hit our low-income and communities and communities of color the hardest.”  

Rescuing major U.S. transit agencies from catastrophic service cuts is one obvious transportation
priority with both climate and equity implications, but it’s hardly the only one. Cities are also
looking for help in transitioning to electric vehicles. In St. Paul, for example, Carter promoted
the expansion of charging stations to support EV adoption, relying heavily on a Department of
Ener�y Grant to install 70 charging stations. But he wants to establish many more; Biden’s
proposed EV adoption plan, which promises to build half a million charging stations nationwide,
offers hope that might be possible. “If there’s no gas stations, it doesn’t matter how nice your car
is,” says Carter. “If we can’t build our charging hubs, then your electric vehicle is just something
cool to show your neighbor.” 

Carter, the city’s first African-American mayor, is especially sensitive to the equity gap in
transportation policy discussions: He ran for city council in 2007 after his neighborhood was
overlooked in the planning for a new light rail line station, even though it had one of the worst
levels of transit service in the city. Carter says there needs to be much more flexibility, and a
better equity focus, on transit funding. He complains that, when St. Paul asks for federal
transportation dollars, it gets on a “20-year waiting list.” To create his city’s first dedicated
funding for bike lanes and sidewalk improvements, the city relied on philanthropic and private
sector partners.

“This ten-year period through 2030 is
crucial. If changes don’t happen in this

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 26 of 97

https://www.nytimes.com/2020/07/14/us/politics/biden-climate-plan.html
https://www.stpaul.gov/sites/default/files/Media%20Root/Financial%20Services/Adopted%20Book%202020%20-%20online_0.pdf
https://www.masstransitmag.com/management/press-release/21201778/mta-headquarters-national-coalition-of-public-transit-agencies-rally-for-significant-and-immediate-federal-relief
https://www.twincities.com/2020/09/18/minneapolis-and-st-paul-to-add-70-electric-car-charging-stations/
https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2020-11-12/biden-means-sales-boost-for-volkswagen-gm-tesla-tsla-electric-car-makers
https://www.startribune.com/melvin-carter-s-historic-rise-from-old-rondo-to-st-paul-s-made-for-this-mayor/478076733/


timeframe, we’re looking at a much
different climate.”

Even in the best of economic times, cities can’t print money or run deficits, says Ritchotte, and
they can’t fully self-fund major infrastructure projects like the transit expansions that voters
approved in places like Austin, or the electric car-share network that St. Paul is trying to build
on.

“Cities have the plans, but they need the market incentives to purchase electric vehicles,
especially from an equity perspective,” says C40’s Jay. “The federal government has a huge role
to play in bridging the gaps between the haves and the have-nots. Cities know where it’s needed.
They need help paying for it.”  

(Disclosure: Michael Bloomberg, the founder and majority owner of CityLab parent Bloomberg
LP, is president of C40’s board of  directors.) 

The same goes for funding to upgrade building ener�y efficiency. A recent Brookings study
argued that new types of financing were needed to help jump-start the massive retrofit programs
required to hit emissions reduction goals. Some of the most important steps Biden’s team can
take involve fully funding or increasing investment in programs that already work. Examples like
weatherization assistance, using the community-development block grant program to fund
efficiency improvements, and the Low Income Home Ener�y Assistance Program (LIHEAP)
“need to be uplifted and amplified,” Ritchotte says. That will magnify the impact of one Biden
campaign promise, a significant investment in retrofitting four million buildings in four years. 

One action the Biden White House could take is to simply raise building ener�y standards across
the board, and help level the playing field. Establishing more federal guidelines and standards
around building ener�y efficiency can increase investment, and as Jay suggests, steer more
federal investment to communities on the front lines of climate change. 

“If we say we’re going to adopt stricter ener�y codes in St. Paul, the argument is always that it’s
going to be harder to do business in St. Paul,” Carter says. “There are always these trade-off
excuses. Having the federal government ready to lead the way on some of these issues would
take away that excuse.”

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 27 of 97

https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2020-10-06/will-pandemic-era-voters-support-public-transit
https://www.stpaul.gov/departments/public-works/transportation-and-transit/twin-cities-electric-vehicle-mobility-network
https://www.sciencemag.org/news/2020/10/us-cities-struggling-meet-lofty-climate-goals
https://joebiden.com/clean-energy/


St. Paul created its own ener�y efficiency loan fund in 2010, now investing $5 million in projects
such as LED light upgrades and similar efforts to cut long-term ener�y costs. But the city is
limited by financial constraints. “If the federal government made some kind of loan funds like
that available, it would create a significant amount of jobs in our community, we’d cut a lot of
carbon emissions from our buildings, and ideally, it would be revenue-neutral because we could
pay it back with ener�y savings,” Carter says. “We’re saving taxpayers money over the long term.
It’s a no-brainer.”

Expanding access to bonds and investments, and setting up larger green banks for infrastructure
investments, could also accelerate local green initiatives. The incoming administration could
push to “align transparency on climate risks and opportunities in capital markets,” says Katie
Walsh, head of cities, states, and regions for CDP North America, an organization that assesses
climate and environmental risk. Updating municipal bond market regulations, which haven’t
been changed in decades, to better value climate risk would place more value on climate-focused
investments. It’s a lever that the administration could pull to empower the financial tools that
fund change. 

“The next administration should rewrite the rules to incentivize the policy and financing we
need to take action,” Walsh says. Phoenix, for instance, successfully issued sustainability bonds,
with the help of CDP, attracting investors to help finance new water infrastructure for the fast-
growing desert metropolis. “This ten-year period through 2030 is crucial. If decisions and
changes don’t happen in this timeframe, we’re looking at a much different climate.”

Biden will arrive in the White House with a daunting array of crises and emergencies requiring
focus and resources. But for cities trying to push climate action beyond the limitations of the
Trump years, the early moves of the new administration will be the most important. 

“If there’s a role for the federal government, it’s to light the way for the path ahead,” says
Carter. “This is a big decision: We’re making a choice between barely keeping the lights on, or
investing in upgraded lights for the future.” 

In this article

SI1
Generic 1st 'SI' Future
26.12 USD/t oz. -0.06 -0.23%

AONE
ONE - CLASS A
10.52 USD +0.05 +0.48%

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 28 of 97

https://www.cdp.net/en
https://www.cdp.net/en/articles/water/5-ways-phoenix-is-leading-on-water-security
https://www.bloomberg.com/quote/SI1:COM
https://www.bloomberg.com/quote/AONE:US


Terms of Service Do Not Sell My Info (California)  Trademarks Privacy Policy 
©2020 Bloomberg L.P. All Rights Reserved

Careers Made in NYC Advertise Ad Choices  Contact Us Help

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 29 of 97

http://www.bloomberg.com/tos
http://www.bloomberg.com/trademarks
http://www.bloomberg.com/privacy
http://www.bloomberg.com/careers/?utm_source=dotcom&utm_medium=footer
http://nytm.org/made-in-nyc
http://bloombergmedia.com/
http://www.bloomberg.com/privacy#advertisements
http://www.bloomberg.com/feedback
http://www.bloomberg.com/help


NEWS

Sisolak extends COVID-19 restrictions to
Jan. 15, eviction moratorium to Mar. 31
Kristin Oh, Chelcey Adami and Brett McGinness Reno Gazette Journal
Published 11:16 a.m. PT Dec. 13, 2020 Updated 7:26 a.m. PT Dec. 14, 2020

Nevada Gov. Steve Sisolak said that due to increased COVID-19 hospitalizations and the subsequent 
strain on Nevada's health care infrastructure, the state will continue with its current COVID-19 
restrictions through Jan. 15.

Sisolak announced the extension of restrictions during a virtual press conference Sunday evening.

"As you all know, Dr. (Anthony) Fauci predicted that Thanksgiving would cause 'a surge on top of a 
surge' and we have every indication that's where the nation — and where Nevada —is headed at this 
time," Sisolak said. "According to state health officials, we are just now beginning to see the effects of 
the holiday in our data."

The continuing restrictions, first implemented on Nov. 22, include:

Limits on private gatherings to 10 attendees, with people from no more than two households.
Limits on public gatherings to 50 attendees, including for churches; and masks became required at all 
times in the company of people outside one's immediate household, including during private 
gatherings inside and outside.
Reservations are required at all restaurants and bars that serve food for in-person dining. Fast food 
restaurants and food courts are exempt from the reservation
requirement. Restaurant and bar capacity was reduced from 50 to 25 percent, and there can be no 
more than four patrons at a table.
Capacity at gyms, fitness and dance studios is reduced from 50 to 25 percent.  Patrons must wear a 
mask at all times, unless actively drinking. If the activity is too strenuous to be done while wearing a 
mask properly, people must seek an alternative. Casino capacity has been reduced from 50 to 25 
percent.

Public gatherings are limited to no more than 50 people, or 25 percent of fire code capacity, whichever 
is less.
Arcades, art galleries, aquariums, racetracks, bowling alleys, mini golf, libraries, museums and zoos all 
are reduced to 25 percent capacity.
Big-box stores that have more than 50,000 square feet must have monitors at public entrances to 
manage capacity
A pause on adult and youth sports tournaments 

Gov. Sisolak announced that he would extend the current evictions moratorium through March 31. He 
noted that the evictions moratorium only applied to tenants unable to pay rent, and not for other lease 
breaches including unlawful activity or nuisance. Missed housing payments must be repaid, however. 

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 30 of 97

https://www.rgj.com/
https://www.rgj.com/news/
https://www.rgj.com/staff/5799558002/kristin-oh/
https://www.rgj.com/staff/4406868002/chelcey-adami/
https://www.rgj.com/staff/4406877002/brett-mcginness/


Sisolak also said he anticipates the first shipment of Pfizer's COVID-19 vaccine to arrive in Nevada on 
Monday. The Food and Drug Administration on Friday granted emergency use of the vaccine, the 
Western States Panel on Sunday reviewed and signed off on the vaccine, and the Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention on Sunday announced it would recommend the vaccine for people 16 years and 
older. 

4:54 p.m. update:

Gov. Sisolak was asked to compare Nevada's less-restrictive response to COVID-19 rates in Las Vegas, 
with the stricter regulations put in place in Los Angeles, even though Las Vegas' per-capita infection rates 
were lower than in Los Angeles. Sisolak cited other
increasing health crises that have been worsened by shutdowns — namely, mental
health, homelessness, food shortages and drug use. 

"We are in a unique position in Nevada; we are reliant on one industry: our hospitality and tourism 
industry," Sisolak said. "We don't have the IT industry, we don't have manufacturing in Southern 
Nevada; we don't have a diversified economy like other states ...

"You've got to balance the health crisis as it relates to COVID diagnosis with — as I said — the use of 
opioids and fentanyl; deaths have increased 50% quarter over quarter. And some of that has to be 
attributed to the lockdown situation and restrictions that are in place."

News: COVID-19: Nevada officials announce expansion of contact tracing app

4:43 p.m. update:

Sisolak said he had been in contact with President-elect Joe Biden and Vice President-elect Kamala 
Harris regarding COVID-19 mitigation efforts.

"We have been in discussion with their teams; they understand the difficulty we've been facing. But 
you've got to understand, they're (not) going to be in office for five weeks. That's a long time from now 
that we have to hang on for. And we need something done, and we need something done now."

Sisolak invited federal officials who didn't believe in the need for additional financial assistance to visit 
Nevada's hospitals, schools and businesses "to show that the need is real."

4:40 p.m. update:

Sisolak suggested further restrictions would be possible if the state's COVID-19 numbers didn't improve.

"I don’t say this as a threat but as a reflection of the precarious position we are in at this time: If we 
cannot work together to bring these numbers under control over the next month, I will be forced to come 
before you again with tougher actions."

When questioned on further restrictions, Sisolak refused to elaborate.

"I don't want to get into the hypotheticals that we'd put into place. That will depend on our numbers at 
the time and what our situation is."

Reno doctors: COVID-19 hits crisis levels, and 'we haven't hit Thanksgiving surge yet'

4:30 p.m. update:

Sisolak praised labor leaders, major employers and government officials for cooperating on business 
liability and worker safety protections earlier in the year, contrasting the state's response with the 
response from the federal government.

"For 9 months the state has been on the frontline of this war against COVID – and for 9 months we’ve 
heard that reinforcements and aircover is on the way — 'just hang tight.' But we don’t see any planes 
flying overhead," he said.

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 31 of 97

https://www.rgj.com/in-depth/news/health/2020/12/11/fda-authorizes-pfizer-biontech-covid-19-vaccine/3870912001/
https://www.rgj.com/story/news/nation/2020/12/13/covid-update-first-vaccine-shipments-inoculations-begin-monday/6527305002/
https://www.rgj.com/story/news/2020/12/09/covid-19-nevada-contact-tracing-app-new-features/3865834001/


"Instead, every day I wake up to a new headline about how those in charge in D.C. aren’t able to 
compromise on getting desperately needed funding to states because Republicans want business liability 
and Democrats want direct and flexible funding to state and local governments ...

"If D.C. needs some guidance on how to reach a compromise, look no further than Nevada." 

4:24 p.m. update:

Sisolak criticized the federal government for asking for further COVID-19 restrictions from state and 
local governments despite not providing further financial aid, which he said would make more restrictive 
shutdowns viable for households.

"The problem we have is that the mitigation policy that most successfully 'stemmed the tide' in Nevada 
was our complete shutdown. And for the White House and feds to send
(recommendations for further shutdowns) without including a big check for Nevadans — a plan for 
providing our state with funding to give our families a safety net in this time of great tribulation is 
downright out of touch and offensive." 

News: Washoe hospitals, care facilities struggling with staffing as COVID cases rise, officials say

Sisolak said the lack of financial assistance is a key reason that casinos have remained open while other 
businesses remain shut down.

"If this has to shut down again, the state loses an estimated $52 million a month ... in gaming tax 
revenue. That doesn’t include room tax, live entertainment tax and more," he said.

"And when I say revenue, I mean the money the state has to give direct assistance to Nevadans in the 
form of schools, public and mental health, food banks, and more. It helps fund the critical services we 
rely on — the safety net Nevadans need. That’s what’s been devastated throughout this pandemic." 

4:15 p.m. update:

Gov. Sisolak announced that he would extend the current evictions moratorium through March 31.

"Keeping Nevadans in their homes to slow COVID-19 was safer than them making emergency shared 
housing or shelter arrangements, which increases the risk of spreading COVID-19," Sisolak said. "That 
still remains true today."

Missed housing payments must be repaid, however. 

"As I have been clear from the start: This moratorium does not — I repeat, does not — relieve renters 
from their obligations to pay rent to their landlords," Sisolak said. 

He noted that the evictions moratorium only applied to tenants unable to pay rent, and not for other lease 
breaches including unlawful activity or nuisance.

4:10 p.m. update:

Gov. Sisolak said that due to increased COVID-19 hospitalizations and the subsequent strain on Nevada's 
health care infrastructure, state will continue with its current restrictions through Jan. 15.

"As you all know, Dr. (Anthony) Fauci predicted that Thanksgiving would cause 'a surge on top of a surge' 
and we have every indication that's where the nation — and where Nevada —is headed at this time," 
Sisolak said. "According to state health officials, we are just now beginning to see the effects of the 
holiday in our data."

The continuing restrictions, first implemented on Nov. 22, include:

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 32 of 97



Limits on private gatherings to 10 attendees, with people from no more than two households.
Limits on public gatherings to 50 attendees, including for churches; and masks became required at 
all times in the company of people outside one's immediate household, including during private 
gatherings inside and outside.
Reservations are required at all restaurants and bars that serve food for in-person dining. Fast food 
restaurants and food courts are exempt from the reservation
requirement. Restaurant and bar capacity was reduced from 50 to 25 percent, and there can be no 
more than four patrons at a table.
Capacity at gyms, fitness and dance studios is reduced from 50 to 25 percent.  Patrons must wear a 
mask at all times, unless actively drinking. If the activity is too strenuous to be done while wearing a 
mask properly, people must seek an alternative.
Casino capacity has been reduced from 50 to 25 percent.
Public gatherings are limited to no more than 50 people, or 25 percent of fire code capacity, 
whichever is less.
Arcades, art galleries, aquariums, racetracks, bowling alleys, mini golf, libraries, museums and zoos 
all are reduced to 25 percent capacity.
Big-box stores that have more than 50,000 square feet must have monitors at public entrances to 
manage capacity
A pause on adult and youth sports tournaments

"I know the mitigation restrictions in place under the current 'pause' are devastating to many 
Nevadans who just want to go back to normal, who are worried about their jobs, their businesses, 
keeping their homes, and getting their kids back to school," Sisolak said. 

"But as I’ve said for nine months now: We must do what we can to protect the health and safety of 
the public. That remains more important than ever as we experience these record numbers."

4:05 p.m. update:

Gov. Steve Sisolak on Sunday evening said he anticipates the first shipment of Pfizer's COVID-19 
vaccine to arrive in Nevada on Monday. The Food and Drug Administration on Friday granted 
emergency use of the vaccine, the Western States Panel on Sunday reviewed and signed off on the 
vaccine, and the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention on Sunday announced it would 
recommend the vaccine for people 16 years and older. 

Sisolak said the state had conducted a "test run" of the distribution process last week to ensure 
smooth distribution of the vaccine once it arrives.

Original story:

Gov. Steve Sisolak will update Nevadans on the state's COVID-19 response at 4 p.m. Sunday. 
RGJ.com will carry live video of the press conference.

Nevada is currently reporting a 21.5 percent test positivity rate over the last 14 days and has the 
highest number of hospitalized patients per capita at 602 per million residents, according to the 
Covid Tracking Project. To date, the state has reported 186,833 cases and
2,539 deaths. 

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 33 of 97



Restrictions announced Nov. 22 included limiting private gatherings to 10 attendees,
with people from no more than two households. Public gatherings limits also were reduced from 250 
people to 50, including for churches; and masks became required at all times in the company of 
people outside one's immediate household, including during private gatherings inside and outside.

From Nov. 22: See the new Nevada COVID-19 restrictions announced by Gov. Sisolak

Other restrictions announced Nov. 22, which remain in effect, include:

Reservations are required at all restaurants and bars that serve food for in-person dining. Fast food 
restaurants and food courts are exempt from the reservation
requirement. Restaurant and bar capacity was reduced from 50 to 25 percent, and there can be no 
more than four patrons at a table.
Capacity at gyms, fitness and dance studios is reduced from 50 to 25 percent.  Patrons must wear a 
mask at all times, unless actively drinking. If the activity is too strenuous to be done while wearing a 
mask properly, people must seek an alternative.
Casino capacity has been reduced from 50 to 25 percent.
Public gatherings are limited to no more than 50 people, or 25 percent of fire code capacity, 
whichever is less.
Arcades, art galleries, aquariums, racetracks, bowling alleys, mini golf, libraries, museums and zoos 
all are reduced to 25 percent capacity.
Big box stores that have more than 50,000 square feet must have monitors at public entrances to 
manage capacity
A pause on adult and youth sports tournaments

Reno doctors: COVID-19 hits crisis levels, and 'we haven't hit Thanksgiving surge yet'

Three weeks since new Nevada COVID restrictions announced
On Sunday, Nov. 22, Sisolak announced a strengthened mask mandate and other new restrictions 
which began on Tuesday, Nov. 24, and remain in effect until at least Dec. 15. Sisolak at the time said 
the restrictions would be in place for three weeks.

"From the start of this pandemic, there aren’t any decisions that don’t have negative consequences. 
Weighing the loss of jobs and businesses versus the loss of health and lives is painful, without a perfect 
solution," Sisolak said during the announcement. 

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 34 of 97

https://www.rgj.com/story/news/2020/11/22/nv-covid-19-restrictions-nevada-gov-steve-sisolak-statewide-pause-announcement/6386868002/
https://www.rgj.com/story/news/2020/12/08/covid-19-hits-crisis-levels-doctors-warn-post-thanksgiving-surge/6494564002/


View this email in your browser 

PBS Member Stations in Reno, Las Vegas to 
Air 24th Annual Lake Tahoe Summit 
TAHOE CITY, Calif. (Dec. 15, 2020) - The Tahoe Fund announced today that 

the PBS member stations in Reno and Las Vegas, Nevada will rebroadcast the 

24th Annual Lake Tahoe Summit. The event occurred virtually for the first time 

on August 25, 2020. Hosted by U.S. Senator Catherine Cortez Masto, the 

theme for this year’s Summit was “Resilient Tahoe.” Presentations reflected the 

legacy of bi-state cooperation and bipartisan collaboration, while looking ahead 

to future environmental challenges. David Wise, Nevada native and two-time 

Olympic gold medalist, delivered a keynote on the importance of resilience. 

The program will be seen on PBS Reno on Sunday, December 27, 2020 at 

1:00pm or on Vegas PBS Jackpot! (COX 111) on Sunday, January 3, 2021 at 

9:00pm. 

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 35 of 97

https://mailchi.mp/tahoefund/pbs-member-stations-in-reno-las-vegas-to-air-24th-annual-lake-tahoe-summit?e=1aa1dd6ccd
https://tahoefund.us3.list-manage.com/track/click?u=35efff919b958fbb40d07e202&id=e2e9c7ef85&e=1aa1dd6ccd


“I’m delighted that our state’s PBS stations are broadcasting this year’s Lake 

Tahoe Summit,” said Senator Cortez Masto. “Protecting the lake’s fragile 

ecosystems, promoting economic stability and working toward a sustainable 

future are all crucial to the long-term well-being of one of Nevada’s greatest 

treasures. I hope this broadcast engages more Nevadans in this important 

conversation and reminds us all of the resilience of Lake Tahoe and its 

surrounding communities.” 

“This is the first time the Annual Lake Tahoe Summit will be broadcast in its 

entirety on public television,” said Amy Berry, Tahoe Fund CEO. “As the 

organizing sponsor, we are thrilled to partner with PBS to expand the audience 

for this important event." 

Joined by members of Nevada’s and California’s congressional delegations and 

governors, as well as scientists and conservationists, the Summit focused on 

the success of public-private partnerships to protect Lake Tahoe and the 

challenges confronting the Tahoe Basin during the COVID-19 pandemic and in 

the future. 

The 2020 Lake Tahoe Summit included remarks from U.S. Senator Cortez 

Masto (NV), U.S. Senator Dianne Feinstein (CA), U.S. Senator (now Vice 

President-elect) Kamala Harris (CA), U.S. Senator Jacky Rosen (NV), 

Congressman Tom McClintock (CA), Congressman John Garamendi (CA), 

Congressman Mark Amodei (NV), Governor Steve Sisolak (NV), Governor 

Gavin Newsom (CA), and Randy Moore, regional forester, USDA Forest 

Service, Pacific Southwest Region. 

The program also featured a scientific presentation delivered by Dr. Monica 

Arienzo, assistant research professor at Desert Research Institute about 

microplastics, the “invisible invader” at Lake Tahoe. 

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 36 of 97



December 15, 2020 | News Release

Error Correction Means California’s
Future Wetter Winters May Never Come
Correcting for the double-ITCZ bias, a persistent error in many climate 
models, reveals that future U.S. Southwest winters will be drier than expected

Brendan Bane, PNNL </people/brendan-bane>

RICHLAND, Wash.—California and other areas of the U.S. Southwest may see less future 

winter precipitation than previously projected by climate models. After probing a 

persistent error in widely used models, researchers at the Department of Energy’s 

Pacific Northwest National Laboratory

<http://www.pnnl.gov/> estimate that California will likely experience drier winters in the 

future than projected by some climate models, meaning residents may see less spring 

runoff, higher spring temperatures, and an increased risk of wildfire in coming years.

Earth scientist Lu Dong, who led the study alongside atmospheric scientist Ruby Leung 

<https://www.pnnl.gov/people/lai-yung-ruby-leung>, presented her findings at the 

American Geophysical Union’s fall meeting on Tuesday, Dec. 1, and will answer questions 

virtually on Wednesday, Dec. 16.

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 37 of 97

https://www.pnnl.gov/people/brendan-bane
https://www.facebook.com/dialog/share?app_id=269100523864066&display=popup&href=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.pnnl.gov%2Fnews-media%2Ferror-correction-means-californias-future-wetter-winters-may-never-come
http://twitter.com/share?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.pnnl.gov%2Fnews-media%2Ferror-correction-means-californias-future-wetter-winters-may-never-come&text=Error%20Correction%20Means%20California%E2%80%99s%20Future%20Wetter%20Winters%20May%20Never%20Come
mailto:?&subject=Error%20Correction%20Means%20California%E2%80%99s%20Future%20Wetter%20Winters%20May%20Never%20Come&body=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.pnnl.gov%2Fnews-media%2Ferror-correction-means-californias-future-wetter-winters-may-never-come


As imperfect simulations of vastly complex systems, today’s climate models have 
biases and errors. When new model generations are ref ined and grow increasingly 
accurate, some biases are reduced while others linger. One such long-lived bias in 
many models is the misrepresentation of an important circulation feature called the 
intertropical convergence zone, commonly known as the ITCZ <https://
earthobservatory.nasa.gov/images/703/the-intertropical-convergence-
zone#:~:text=the%20intertropical%20convergence%20zone%2c%20or,and%20southern%2 
0hemispheres%20come%20together.&text=the%20itcz%20is%20the%20band,the%20cent er%20of%
20the%20image.>.
The ITCZ marks an area just north of the Earth’s equator where northeast trade winds 
from the northern hemisphere clash with southeast trade winds from the southern 
hemisphere. Strong sunlight and warm water heat the air here, energizing it along 
with the moisture it holds to move upward. 

As the air rises, it expands and cools. Condensing moisture provides more energy to 
produce thunderstorms with intense rainfall. From space, one can even see a thick 
band of clouds, unbroken for hundreds of miles as they move about the region. 
“The ITCZ produces the strongest, long line of persistent convection in the world,” 
said Dong. “It can influence the global water cycle and climate over much of the 
Earth,” including, she added, California’s climate. 

Doubling down on climate model bias
Many climate models mistakenly depict a double ITCZ: two bands appearing in both 
hemispheres instead of one, which imbues uncertainty in model projections. 
Scientists refer to this as the double-ITCZ bias. Variations in the wind and pressure 
systems that influence the ITCZ add to that uncertainty. 
“There’s a lot of uncertainty in California’s future precipitation,” said Dong, who 
described climate models that project a range of winter wetness in the state 
averaged over multiple years, from high increases to small decreases. “We want to 
know where this uncertainty comes from so we can better project future changes in 
precipitation.” 
To peer through the effect of the double-ITCZ bias and create more accurate 
projections, Dong and atmospheric scientist Ruby Leung analyzed data from nearly 
40 climate models, uncovering statistical and mechanistic links between the bias and 
the models’ outputs. The lion’s share of the models they analyzed projected a 
sharpening of California’s seasonal precipitation cycle, bringing wetter winters and 
drier fall and spring seasons. 

Less water, more fire
Those uncovered relationships, Dong said, now cast doubt on estimations from CMIP5 
<https://www.wcrp-climate.org/wgcm-cmip> models that projected wetter winters in 
the future. Models saddled with a larger double-ITCZ bias, it turns out, tend to 
exaggerate the U.S. Southwest’s wetter winters. They also understate the drier winters 
in the Mediterranean Basin, which also
features pronounced wet winters and dry summers similar to California, under 
warming climate scenarios.

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 38 of 97

http://www.pnnl.gov/
https://earthobservatory.nasa.gov/images/703/the-intertropical-convergence-zone#:~:text=The%20Intertropical%20Convergence%20Zone%2C%20or,and%20Southern%20Hemispheres%20come%20together.&text=The%20ITCZ%20is%20the%20band,the%20center%20of%20the%20image.
https://www.facebook.com/dialog/share?app_id=269100523864066&display=popup&href=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.pnnl.gov%2Fnews-media%2Ferror-correction-means-californias-future-wetter-winters-may-never-come
http://twitter.com/share?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.pnnl.gov%2Fnews-media%2Ferror-correction-means-californias-future-wetter-winters-may-never-come&text=Error%20Correction%20Means%20California%E2%80%99s%20Future%20Wetter%20Winters%20May%20Never%20Come
mailto:?&subject=Error%20Correction%20Means%20California%E2%80%99s%20Future%20Wetter%20Winters%20May%20Never%20Come&body=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.pnnl.gov%2Fnews-media%2Ferror-correction-means-californias-future-wetter-winters-may-never-come


Winter precipitation includes more than just rain. Winter moisture levels influence 
snowpack in mountainous areas, like this California waterway, and other factors 

that shape climate processes throughout the year. (Photo by © 12019 | Pixabay.com)

Correcting for the bias reduces winter precipitation projections to a level that’s 
roughly equal to California’s current winters, amounting to little change and no 
future wetter winters. In the Mediterranean Basin, said Dong, the correction means 
winter drying will be intensif ied by 32 percent.
“An important implication of this work,” said Dong, “is that a reduction in estimated 
winter precipitation will likely mean a reduction in spring runoff and an increase in 
spring temperature, and both increase the likelihood of wildf ire risk in California.” 

Learning from climate models
Though the study’s focus was restricted solely to winter precipitation, said Leung, its 
implications reach to all seasons.
“The implications aren’t just about how wet things will or won’t be,” said Leung. 
“When people think about precipitation, they tend to think about how much rain 
they’ll get. But precipitation has a lot of implications, like snowpack in mountainous 
areas, for example, and that means whatever changes we see in winter 
precipitation will have subsequent implications for springtime or even summertime. 
The impacts don’t just affect winter; they’ll be felt throughout the year.”
The f indings do not bode well for agricultural production, as over one third of the 
country’s vegetables are grown in California soil, and two thirds of its fruits and nuts 
are grown on California farms, according to the California Department of Food and 
Agriculture. Almonds and grapes, two especially water-hungry crops, were among 
the state’s top producing commodities, bringing in a combined $11.5 billion in 2019
<https://www.cdfa.ca.gov/statistics/#:~:text=the%20top%20producing%20commodities%2 0for,grapes
%20%e2%80%94%20%245.41%20billion>.

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 39 of 97



A scorched Northern California landscape remains after wildf ire passed through the area, 
leaving charred vegetation. Increased risk of wildf ire is one potential effect of drier winters, 
which PNNL scientists project for California after probing the double-ITCZ bias. (Photo by © 

Michael Neil Thomas |Shutterstock.com)

Over 4 million acres <https://www.f ire.ca.gov/incidents/2020/> and nearly 10,500 structures 
burned in the state’s 2020 wildf ire season. The f ire season has grown longer, according 
to Cal Fire, which cites warmer spring
temperatures as one of the reasons forests are now more susceptible to wildf ire. 
Dong and her research partners hope the f indings will better inform resource 
management groups as they prepare for coming wildfire seasons and plan for drier-
than-expected winters.
The double-ITCZ bias is prominent in all CMIP5 climate models, said Leung, as well as 
CMIP6 models, the most recent generation, though the latter were not considered in 
this work. “If you look at the whole ensemble of models,” said Leung, “you see quite 
similar biases.”
This research was funded by the Department of Energy Office of Science Biological and 
Environmental Research as part of the Regional and Global Modeling and Analysis 
program area.

Pacif ic Northwest National Laboratory draws on signature capabilities in chemistry, Earth 

sciences, and data analytics to advance scientif ic discovery and create solutions to the nation's 

toughest challenges in energy resiliency and national security. Founded in 1965, PNNL is 

operated by Battelle for the U.S. Department of Energy's Off ice of Science. DOE's Off ice of 

Science is the single largest supporter of basic research in the physical sciences in the United 

States and is working to address some of the most pressing challenges of our time. For more 

information, visit

the PNNL's News Center. Follow us on Facebook, LinkedIn, Twitter,

and Instagram.

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 40 of 97

https://www.fire.ca.gov/incidents/2020/


It took 10 days for a Reno hospital to turn a parking garage
into a wing for Covid patients. Now it has 700 beds

 Updated 4:53 AM ET, Fri December 11, 2020
By Madeline Holcombe, Sara Sidner and Julia Jones, CNN

Reno, Nevada (CNN) — When Rosalia Martinez heard that a Reno, Nevada, hospital was turning their parking
garage into a Covid-19 wing, she couldn't help but laugh at the idea.

But now she and her husband of 35 years, Luis, are both patients at Renown Regional Medical Center.

"It's scary, you know, you don't expect to go to work and be working out of a parking garage," said Janet Baum,
nursing manager of the site. "We've made it a hospital, so we don't consider it a garage anymore."

As the US su�ers another surge of cases, hospitals all over the country have felt the strain on their hospitals' bed
capacity. Washoe County, the region Renown serves, now has 10 times the number of cases that it did a couple
months ago.

CNN correspondent goes inside field hospital Trump called 'fake' 03:19

US LIVE TV
01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 41 of 97

https://www.cnn.com/profiles/madeline-holcombe
https://www.cnn.com/profiles/sara-sidner-profile
https://www.cnn.com/profiles/julia-jones
http://www.cnn.com/2020/12/10/health/us-coronavirus-thursday/index.html
https://www.cnn.com/
https://www.cnn.com/us
http://cnn.it/go2


The idea came together earlier in the pandemic and out of concern for the community, and the building went from
garage to health care center in about 10 days, said hospital CEO Anthony Slonim. Now that numbers are climbing
and more people are being admitted, 700 hospital beds are filling the parking spots.

Rosalia Martinez was admitted to the hospital before her husband.

"When I found out she was sick; I cried. I thought she was going to die," Luis Martinez said. Now, he is recovering
from the virus as well, four beds down.

"He coughs at nighttime, I can hear him. And if I yell, he can hear me," Rosalia said. "He knows that I'm still alive."

Though coronavirus patients in parking spaces may sound odd, Luis Martinez said he feels safe there. The space is
clean, and the sta� is working hard to make sure they are all attended to, he said.

"I had just finished a seven day stretch in the intensive care unit. There had been patient after patient, after patient
who was not surviving this illness and beyond the physical exhaustion of working a hundred hours that week, I was
mentally fatigued," Dr. Jacob Keeperman, medical director of Renown Transfer and Operations Center, said. So, he
posted a tweet thanking his teammates.

So, it stung when President Donald Trump and a wave of Twitter users responded to his post saying the makeshift
unit was fake.

The feedback he received online made that the worst day of the pandemic for him, he said.

"This is not fake. This is as real as it gets," Slonim said. "And we take pride in knowing that we're here."

Other places struggling with lack of bed capacity have also
resorted to unorthodox solutions.

It took 10 days for the hospital to convert its garage into a hospital wing.

US LIVE TV
01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 42 of 97

https://www.cnn.com/
https://www.cnn.com/us
http://cnn.it/go2


In March, Central Park's East Meadow turned into a 68-bed
field hospital, and another 1,000 beds were added that month
when the US Naval Ship Comfort docked in New York City.

"This is like an additional hospital just floated right up to our
shores, and now it's going to help to save lives," New York
Mayor Bill de Blasio said at the time.

In November, El Paso, Texas, brought in an additional 10
morgue units and 1,500 medical professionals -- with the help
of the National Guard and inmates -- to deal with the growing
death toll.

Related Article: New York's Central Park
and harbor are now home to makeshift
hospitals

US

World

Politics

Business

Opinion

Health

Entertainment

Tech

Style

Travel

Sports

Videos

Audio

Coupons

Search CNN...

US LIVE TV
01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 43 of 97

https://www.cnn.com/2020/11/25/us/el-paso-texas-curfew-covid-thanksgiving/index.html
https://www.cnn.com/2020/03/30/us/new-york-coronavirus-cases-deaths/index.html
https://www.cnn.com/2020/03/30/us/new-york-coronavirus-cases-deaths/index.html
https://www.cnn.com/us
https://www.cnn.com/world
https://www.cnn.com/politics
https://www.cnn.com/business
https://www.cnn.com/opinions
https://www.cnn.com/health
https://www.cnn.com/entertainment
https://www.cnn.com/business/tech
https://www.cnn.com/style
https://www.cnn.com/travel
http://bleacherreport.com/
https://www.cnn.com/videos
https://www.cnn.com/audio
https://coupons.cnn.com/
https://www.cnn.com/weather
https://www.cnn.com/
https://www.cnn.com/us
http://cnn.it/go2


Weather
More

US

FOLLOW CNN

Terms of Use Privacy Policy Do Not Sell My Personal Information AdChoices About Us CNN Store Newsletters

Transcripts License Footage CNN Newsource Sitemap

© 2020 Cable News Network. A Warner Media Company. All Rights Reserved.
CNN Sans ™ & © 2016 Cable News Network.

US LIVE TV
01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 44 of 97

https://www.cnn.com/weather
https://www.cnn.com/more
https://www.cnn.com/
https://www.cnn.com/us
https://facebook.com/CNN
https://twitter.com/CNN
https://instagram.com/cnn
https://www.cnn.com/terms
https://www.cnn.com/privacy
https://www.cnn.com/about
https://store.cnn.com/
https://www.cnn.com/newsletters
https://www.cnn.com/transcripts
https://www.cnn.com/collection
http://cnnnewsource.com/
https://www.cnn.com/sitemap.html
https://www.cnn.com/
https://www.cnn.com/us
http://cnn.it/go2


For at least the past decade, Reno’s rise as a home for technology, office and other business industries has been evident. 
Tolles says the pandemic has only sped up the process of others discovering what Northern Nevada has to offer.

“Our tax structure is really advantageous, our open air lifestyle is advantageous,” said Tolles, who moved to Reno from the 
Bay Area roughly 25 years ago. “I think you will see a number of very interesting companies who have thought about Reno 
in the past, actually make the move to Reno.”

Tolles understands COVID-19 has wreaked havoc on some business owners, though none of his tenants have had to fold 
operations. He says avoiding a second shutdown - and the hope of another stimulus - should allow most restaurant and 
retail businesses to survive.

Experiential retail will always be viable, Tolles says. But he does see the new avenues of shopping and conducting business 
brought to the forefront by COVID-19 causing shift going forward.

“If you asked me one I’d really be worried about, it’d be malls,” said Tolles. “I think dense indoor shopping that can 
compete with online shopping are dinosaurs that will have to evolve into a more diversified product.”

And according to Tolles, Northern Nevada has proved to be on the best places in the country to adjust and diversify 
operations.

“We’re this wonderful melting pot of gaming, university, small business, Reno-Tahoe,” said Tolles. “We have this wonderful 
art influence because of Burning Man. Recreation.”

“We’re really our own unique, special quilt of different interests.”

And as time goes on, Reno’s only catching the interest of more people looking for a new home for their families and 
businesses.

“I think people have experienced Reno, who haven’t in the past. They’ve realized what we really have to offer,” said Tolles. 
“Whether you like it or not, we’re going to get more populated, we’re going to have more Californians living here.”

“For everything we love and the reasons we live here, people are discovering. I think, 10 years from now, we’re going to be 
a more vibrant and interesting place.”

To learn more about Par Tolles and Tolles Development Company, head to https://www.tollesdevelopment.com/.

Copyright 2020 KOLO. All rights reserved.

By Mike Stefansson
Published: Dec. 16, 2020 at 12:44 PM PST | Updated: 21 hours ago

RENO, Nev. (KOLO) - If there’s a city poised to bounce-back from the COVID-19 pandemic, one longtime local real estate 
developer says it could be the Biggest Little City.

“I hate to say, but COVID accelerated a lot of good things happening in Reno,” said Par Tolles, owner of Tolles Development 
Company in Reno.

Tolles, whose portfolio includes the Sticks development in Midtown and the new Village at Rancharrah in South Reno, says 
stricter lockdowns in California led to more people coming to Northern Nevada for “a sense of normalcy”. He adds many 
businesses have already established a hub in Reno, while commuting to bigger cities like San Jose and San Francisco.

“Where Reno was considered a satellite city for the Bay Area, it is now a satellite city for the Bay Area,” said Tolles. “We are a 
Zoom town.”

Pandemic could accelerate Reno’s rise says longtime local
developer

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 45 of 97

https://www.tollesdevelopment.com/
https://www.outbrain.com/what-is/default/en
https://www.kolotv.com/video/2020/12/17/fighting-covid-together/?traffic_source=Connatix
https://www.kolotv.com/video/2020/12/17/covid-vaccine-safe-according-district-health-officer/?traffic_source=Connatix
https://www.kolotv.com/video/2020/12/17/thursday-web-weather/?traffic_source=Connatix
https://www.kolotv.com/video/2020/12/17/busiest-time-year-us-post-office/?traffic_source=Connatix
https://www.kolotv.com/video/2020/12/16/local-church-reacts-th-circuit-court-ruling/?traffic_source=Connatix
https://www.kolotv.com/video/2020/12/17/wreaths-across-america-changes-due-covid-/?traffic_source=Connatix
https://www.kolotv.com/video/2020/12/17/wreaths-across-america-changes-due-covid-/?traffic_source=Connatix


By Ron Dungan
Published: Wednesday, December 16, 2020 - 6:33pm
Updated: Thursday, December 17, 2020 - 8:22am

 Download mp3 (840.52 KB)

Drought Keeps Lake Mead Levels Low,
But There Is Plenty Of Winter Left

National Park Service
Lake Mead on the Arizona-Nevada border.

Last week’s storm did little to ease the drought in Arizona’s reservoirs. But there’s still
plenty of winter left.

The Bureau of Reclamation makes two-year projections, based on weather and water
levels in Colorado River reservoirs, and its most recent projections have been dire.

That could set the stage for an Arizona water shortage in 2022. Snowpack in the
mountains is now 69% of normal, but Patti Aaron, a spokeswoman for the bureau, says a
little snow could go a long way.

"This early in the season a little bit can change that percentage quite a bit," she said, "so
there’s still just a great deal of uncertainty and variability right now."

The water level at Lake Mead is about 40%.

Like Arizona Science Desk on Facebook

Arizona Science Desk

We use cookies on this site to enhance your user experience. Please review
our privacy policy for more information. OKOK

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 46 of 97

https://kjzz.org/staff/1566
https://www.facebook.com/arizonasciencedesk/
https://kjzz.org/privacy-policy


Is Farming with Reclaimed Water the Solution to a Drier Future?
In drought-prone California, several farms are demonstrating the benefits of growing food with relatively abundant post-treatment water supplies.

DECEMBER 17, 2020

Carolyn Phinney stands in the field at CoCo San Sustainable Farm. (Photo credit: Cirrus Wood)

BY CIRRUS WOOD (HTTPS://CIVILEATS.COM/AUTHOR/CWOOD/)

(http://www.facebook.com/)(http://twitter.com/)(mailto:?

subject='Is

Farming

with

Reclaimed

Water

the

Solution

to a

Drier Future?'

via

Civil

Eats

&body=Is

Farming

with

Reclaimed

Water

 (/)

Search...

X

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 47 of 97

https://civileats.com/author/cwood/
http://www.facebook.com/
http://twitter.com/
mailto:?subject=%27Is%20Farming%20with%20Reclaimed%20Water%20the%20Solution%20to%20a%20Drier%C2%A0Future?%27%20via%20Civil%20Eats%20&body=Is%20Farming%20with%20Reclaimed%20Water%20the%20Solution%20to%20a%20Drier%C2%A0Future?%20-%20https://civileats.com/2020/12/17/is-farming-with-reclaimed-water-the-solution-to-a-drier-future/
https://civileats.com/


the

Solution

to a

Drier Future?

-

https://civileats.com/2020/12/17/is-

farming-

with-

reclaimed-

water-

the-

solution-

to-a-

drier-

future/)

O n a Saturday in late October, Carolyn Phinney stands hip-deep in a half acre of vegetables, at the nucleus of what will one day

be 15 acres of productive farmland.

“You can’t even see the pathways,” she says, surrounded by the literal fruits of her labors. The patch is a wealth of herbs, tomatoes,

eggplants, peppers, kale, winter squash, and zucchini. So much zucchini—fruits the size of bowling pins hidden under leaves as big

as umbrellas. “Zucchini plants are supposed to be 30 inches across. Ours are 8 feet,” she says. “Everything looks like it’s on steroids.”

Phinney, pictured above, is the farmer behind CoCo San Sustainable Farm (https://www.salads4schools.org/) of Martinez, California,

a farm built on reclaimed land, using reclaimed water, and started with a simple mission: to get kids to eat more vegetables.

In 2010, Phinney learned local school districts served pizza more often than salad because produce cost four times more than cheese

and bread. She set out to make vegetables in her county more affordable—or free, if possible. The effort has paid off. Since May of this

year, Phinney has grown and donated more than 13,000 pounds of produce to local food banks and school districts. All of it from just

this half acre. Phinney is the farm’s only full-time employee, and she has worked with a team of volunteers to get the food in the

ground so far.

tps://civileats.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/201216-reclaimed-water-cocosan-farm-drought-california-farming-sea-mist-2-summer-vegetables-credit-cirrus-

 (/)

Search...  

X

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 48 of 97

mailto:?subject=%27Is%20Farming%20with%20Reclaimed%20Water%20the%20Solution%20to%20a%20Drier%C2%A0Future?%27%20via%20Civil%20Eats%20&body=Is%20Farming%20with%20Reclaimed%20Water%20the%20Solution%20to%20a%20Drier%C2%A0Future?%20-%20https://civileats.com/2020/12/17/is-farming-with-reclaimed-water-the-solution-to-a-drier-future/
https://www.salads4schools.org/
https://civileats.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/201216-reclaimed-water-cocosan-farm-drought-california-farming-sea-mist-2-summer-vegetables-credit-cirrus-wood.jpg
https://civileats.com/


C

ood.jpg)

mmer vegetable harvest from CoCo San Sustainable Farm.

“We could produce several hundred thousand pounds of produce [if we were] in full production,” she says, referring to the 14.5 acres

of bare earth and citing a time only a few years away, when the remaining land will be irrigated and planted in vegetables.

Phinney’s achievement is all the more remarkable considering the location. Prior to Phinney, Contra Costa County had used the 15-

acre property as a dumping ground for excavated subsoil trucked in from elsewhere. The ground was so poor that even weeds

struggled to grow there. However, as prospective farmland, the place had two big things going for it. It was cheap—Phinney leases

the land for a dollar a year—and it came with a free and near limitless supply of water.

The farm is located on sanitary buffer land owned by the Central Contra Costa Sanitary District (https://www.centralsan.org/)

(CCCSD) and is adjacent to their water treatment plant. Phinney irrigates all her crops with reclaimed wastewater, which she says is

nutrient rich, safe, free, and abundant. And for Phinney, the water is the real secret to growing such healthy, high-yielding plants.

Around the same time Phinney was trying to fix school lunch, she met Mike McGill, board president of CCCSD, and learned that the

county discharged around 50 to 200 million gallons of treated wastewater per day into nearby Suisun Bay. After treatment to remove

solids and sterilize microbes, the water remains high in nitrogen, phosphorus, potassium, and micronutrients. Liquid fertility,

according to Phinney, who felt the county was just dumping it.

“I said, ‘With all that free water, too bad you don’t have any free land,’” says Phinney.

As it turned out, McGill had a lead—albeit on land that was literally both dirt cheap and dirt poor—and had been looking for years to

divert more of CCCSD’s wastewater away from the bay and towards projects that demonstrate the value of recycled water.

alifornia is one of the most intensely cultivated states in the union, one where agriculture represents a $50 billion industry

(https://www.cdfa.ca.gov/Statistics/). But the state is also among the most water-strapped; for that reason it’s the home of the

nation’s first future’s market for water (https://www.cnn.com/2020/12/07/investing/water-futures-trading/index.html) and much of

the state is once again in drought (https://droughtmonitor.unl.edu/CurrentMap/StateDroughtMonitor.aspx?CA). Yet most of its

farmers get their water from the same sources as towns and cities—aquifers, rivers, reservoirs, and snowpack—putting population

and food production in competition with each other.

Wastewater reclamation

could be a way to recharge

aquifers and prevent

saltwater intrusion in coastal

cities.

Wastewater reclamation could be a way to alleviate some of that pressure and is already common practice elsewhere in the state,

mostly as a way to recharge aquifers (https://www.ocwd.com/gwrs/) in Orange County (which reclaims and purifies 130 million

gallons of water a day) and prevent saltwater intrusion in coastal cities (https://www.montereyonewater.org/210/Castroville-

Seawater-Intrusion-Project-O). On a smaller scale, many California cities use treated wastewater for landscaping. One flashy example

is the water features of San Francisco’s Golden Gate Park, whose lakes, fountains, and waterfalls are filled with treated wastewater

(https://sfwater.org/modules/showdocument.aspx?documentid=11707).

The water Phinney uses falls under Title 22 of California’s Code of Regulations (https://www.watereducation.org/aquapedia/water-

recycling-and-title-

22#:~:text=Title%2022%20of%20California's%20Code,water%20is%20discharged%20and%20used.&text=Wastewater%20treatment%20s

which, in addition to landscaping, allows for the application of sterilized, treated wastewater to agricultural crops. CCCSD’s

wastewater treatment process involves a primary treatment of sedimentation, a secondary biological treatment which uses micro-

 (/)

Search...  

X

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 49 of 97

https://civileats.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/201216-reclaimed-water-cocosan-farm-drought-california-farming-sea-mist-2-summer-vegetables-credit-cirrus-wood.jpg
https://www.centralsan.org/
https://www.cdfa.ca.gov/Statistics/
https://www.cnn.com/2020/12/07/investing/water-futures-trading/index.html
https://droughtmonitor.unl.edu/CurrentMap/StateDroughtMonitor.aspx?CA
https://www.ocwd.com/gwrs/
https://www.montereyonewater.org/210/Castroville-Seawater-Intrusion-Project-O
https://sfwater.org/modules/showdocument.aspx?documentid=11707
https://www.watereducation.org/aquapedia/water-recycling-and-title-22#:~:text=Title%2022%20of%20California's%20Code,water%20is%20discharged%20and%20used.&text=Wastewater%20treatment%20standards%20are%20set,California%20Department%20of%20Public%20Health.
https://civileats.com/


Thank you for being a loyal reader.

We rely on you. Become a member today to read unlimited stories.

BECOME A MEMBER (?PN=EDIT_PROFILE)

organisms to dissolve suspended organic compounds, and then disinfection with UV light. The treated wastewater is then filtered

through a dual media filter and then another round of disinfection with sodium hypochlorite (liquid bleach) to produce recycled

water. The resulting water is approved for all agricultural use in California, including root crops.

Still, few municipalities are following Phinney’s lead and using treated wastewater directly for food production. But that’s not

because it hasn’t been proven safe.

In a landmark study from the 1980s, crops of artichokes, broccoli, cauliflower, lettuce, and celery were irrigated with Title 22

wastewater in the Monterey Wastewater Reclamation Study for Agriculture

(https://www.montereyonewater.org/DocumentCenter/View/142/Monterey-Wastewater-Reclamation-for-Agriculture-Study-PDF)

(MWRSA). The study took place in Castroville, California, located in the fertile Salinas Valley. Cities and farms in the Salinas Valley

both draw from the same aquifer. In the early 1970s, as evidence piled up that groundwater was being severely overdrawn between

the two, risking saltwater intrusion from the Pacific, the region turned to recirculating treated wastewater.

(https://civileats.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/201216-reclaimed-water-cocosan-farm-drought-california-farming-sea-mist-3-michael-mcgill-credit-

cirrus-wood.jpg)

 (/)

Search...

X

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 50 of 97

https://civileats.com/2020/12/17/is-farming-with-reclaimed-water-the-solution-to-a-drier-future/?pn=edit_profile
https://www.montereyonewater.org/DocumentCenter/View/142/Monterey-Wastewater-Reclamation-for-Agriculture-Study-PDF
https://civileats.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/201216-reclaimed-water-cocosan-farm-drought-california-farming-sea-mist-3-michael-mcgill-credit-cirrus-wood.jpg
https://civileats.com/


(https://civileats.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/201216-reclaimed-water-cocosan-farm-drought-california-farming-sea-mist-7-michael-mcgill-credit-

cirrus-wood.jpg)
Michael McGill, board president of Central Contra Costa Sanitary District, holds a jar of reclaimed water. (Photo credit: Cirrus Wood)

At the end of five years, the study concluded no discernible difference in levels of bacteria, viruses, or heavy metals in the soil of crops

irrigated with wastewater compared to test groups irrigated with well water. Nor were the levels any different in the crops

themselves. While the study did suggest that treated wastewater could increase nitrate levels in surface groundwater, the same effect

was also found in two of the fields irrigated with well water. The study did not find any negative impact to farmworker health or crop

marketability.

The Central Contra Costa

Sanitary District alone could

deliver 20,000 acre feet of

water—or about 20 million

gallons—annually to farming

communities.

Most of the agricultural practices suggested in the MWRSA have since been adopted in the Salinas Valley on operations such as

Ocean Mist Farms (https://www.oceanmist.com/natural-resources) in Castroville, which uses 9,000 acre feet of reclaimed water

annually on its fields of artichokes.

There have been several studies of the agricultural potential (https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/pdfdirect/10.1111/j.1936-

704X.2018.03291.x) and environmental impact (https://iopscience.iop.org/article/10.1088/2515-7620/ab915e/pdf)  of reclaimed

wastewater in California in the 30 years since. So why hasn’t the practice been more widespread in the state?

 (/)

Search...

X

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 51 of 97

https://civileats.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/201216-reclaimed-water-cocosan-farm-drought-california-farming-sea-mist-7-michael-mcgill-credit-cirrus-wood.jpg
https://www.oceanmist.com/natural-resources
https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/pdfdirect/10.1111/j.1936-704X.2018.03291.x
https://iopscience.iop.org/article/10.1088/2515-7620/ab915e/pdf
https://civileats.com/


Get the latest. Delivered every week.

We rely on you. Become a member today to read unlimited stories.

SIGN UP (?PN=MANAGE_NEWSLETTERS)

“Quite frankly, we have too much water in Northern California,” says CCSD’s McGill. Laws regulating water use—and reuse—in

much of the state have been determined [based] on presumed abundance. “There’s not a lot of pressure except during times of

drought to reuse treated wastewater.”

That may sound odd considering the state went through several severe droughts between 2011 and 2018, and has regulated surface

water for more than a century. But groundwater rights are determined by land ownership. Anyone who owns property above an

aquifer can drill in, start pumping, and take as much as they want.

Which sets up a classic tragedy of the commons. Without oversight, private individuals have little incentive to conserve a public

resource. Overdrawing groundwater has caused the land to sink in the Central Valley (https://www.usgs.gov/centers/ca-water-

ls/science/land-subsidence-san-joaquin-valley?qt-science_center_objects=0#qt-science_center_objects)—in some places by as much

as 28 feet—and farmers have to drill ever deeper wells to sustain their livelihood. During the same severe drought, some towns went

completely dry (https://www.theguardian.com/us-news/2015/apr/20/east-porterville-california-drought-bottled-water-showers-

toilets).

In 2014, then-Governor Jerry Brown signed a package of laws collectively known as the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act

(https://water.ca.gov/Programs/Groundwater-Management/SGMA-Groundwater-Management)(SGMA). The package set up local

groundwater sustainability agencies to oversee and manage groundwater use with the goal of restoring the state’s aquifers to

sustainable levels within 20 years. The state’s most overdrawn basins had until the end of January 2020 to draft their plans, which

means they are still close to two decades away from sustainability.

It’s up to those local agencies to determine what counts as a sustainable aquifer, and to ensure that pumping does not exceed

recharge, especially in the heavily agricultural Central Valley. Injecting treated wastewater into the aquifer is certainly one option.

Another is to use it directly for irrigation instead of groundwater.

A corollary would be to import wastewater from further away, treating populated areas as auxiliary aquifers. During the height of the

last drought, when the Central Valley experienced a roughly two trillion gallon annual deficit, the Bay Area was dumping roughly one

trillion gallons of treated wastewater into San Francisco Bay.

Such a scenario would mean neither cities nor farmers would have to cut back on water use. For example, CCCSD could build a 35-

mile pipeline, diverting their wastewater from Suisun Bay to fill irrigation canals in the Central Valley. “To some extent, farmers

would love that,” says McGill.

Just from the CCCSD alone such a project would deliver 20,000 acre feet of water—about 20 million gallons—annually to farming

communities. Albeit, such a pipeline would cost between $2 and $3 million per mile to build, but inexpensive when compared to the

$15.9 billion estimate for the state’s Delta tunnel project (https://www.sacbee.com/news/local/environment/article245150370.html).

“There are an awful lot of

water practices based on

abundant, free, available

 (/)

Search...

X

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 52 of 97

https://civileats.com/2020/12/17/is-farming-with-reclaimed-water-the-solution-to-a-drier-future/?pn=manage_newsletters
https://www.usgs.gov/centers/ca-water-ls/science/land-subsidence-san-joaquin-valley?qt-science_center_objects=0#qt-science_center_objects
https://www.theguardian.com/us-news/2015/apr/20/east-porterville-california-drought-bottled-water-showers-toilets
https://water.ca.gov/Programs/Groundwater-Management/SGMA-Groundwater-Management
https://www.sacbee.com/news/local/environment/article245150370.html
https://civileats.com/


water. But as the population

grows, the climate changes,

and not as much water ends

up in the snowpack, we’re

just not going to have as

much available.”

The region hasn’t embraced reclaimed water but it’s not entirely for lack of trying. In 1997, the nearby Dublin San Ramon Sanitary

District (DSRSD) approved plans for reinjecting treated wastewater into the source aquifer. Since both municipalities and farmland

drew from the same source, groundwater reinjection was the shortest route to supplying both with much needed reserves. However,

after the district invested $24.5 million, the public outcry was so intense the plan was scuttled

(https://www.sfchronicle.com/science/article/Will-the-yuck-factor-sink-California-water-6536166.php)  in the early 2000s.

Some critics reject using water derived from sewage outright. “People think, ‘Oh, poop water,’” says Phinney. But their numbers are

dwindling. Orange County, which tends to be on the conservative side, has embraced the term “Toilet to Tap

(https://www.nationalgeographic.org/article/toilettotap/),” so neither Phinney nor McGill see much reason the rest of the state can’t

follow suit, rethink attitudes, and reuse water. In 2016, DSRSD even came back to the idea

(https://www.danvillesanramon.com/news/2016/04/01/tri-valley-water-agencies-exploring-toilet-to-tap) .

But as for applying treated wastewater directly to crops, like Phinney is doing, there’s not much in the way of opposition. Neither

Phinney, McGill, nor other sources contacted for this story were aware of agencies, organizations, or individuals actively combatting

the use of reclaimed water for food production.

There might not be much opposition because the state doesn’t have much history with it, and very little reclaimed water goes

towards agriculture. A University of California, Berkeley paper from March 2020 estimates that less than 1 percent

(https://iopscience.iop.org/article/10.1088/2515-7620/ab915e/pdf)  of agricultural water comes from reclaimed wastewater. For many

Californians, water reclamation isn’t a top shelf issue when the current system of distribution works well enough.

(https://civileats.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/201216-reclaimed-water-cocosan-farm-drought-california-farming-sea-mist-6-crops-credit-cirrus-

wood.jpg)

Peppers growing at CoCo San Sustainable Farm.

 (/)

Search...

X

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 53 of 97

https://www.sfchronicle.com/science/article/Will-the-yuck-factor-sink-California-water-6536166.php
https://www.nationalgeographic.org/article/toilettotap/
https://www.danvillesanramon.com/news/2016/04/01/tri-valley-water-agencies-exploring-toilet-to-tap
https://iopscience.iop.org/article/10.1088/2515-7620/ab915e/pdf
https://civileats.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/201216-reclaimed-water-cocosan-farm-drought-california-farming-sea-mist-6-crops-credit-cirrus-wood.jpg
https://civileats.com/


Like the story?  
Join the conversation.

SEE 2 COMMENTS

But that could soon change. “There are an awful lot of water practices based on abundant, free, available water,” says McGill. “And, of

course, as the population grows, the climate changes, and we come to recognize not as much water ends up in the snowpack

(https://www.sacbee.com/news/california/article240400651.html), we’re just not going to have as much available.”

“The real bottom line here is we can’t use our water just once,” says Phinney. Fifteen acres of vegetables may be a good place to start,

but it’s just a start.

Top photo: Carolyn Phinney stands in the field at CoCo San Sustainable Farm. (Photo credit: Cirrus Wood)

Cirrus Wood is a freelance reporter based in the Bay Area. Read more > (https://civileats.com/author/cwood/)

Climate (https://civileats.com/category/environment/climate/)

Farming (https://civileats.com/category/farming/)

Water (https://civileats.com/category/environment/water/)

READ MORE ABOUT

MORE FROM

Water

 (/)

Search...

X

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 54 of 97

https://www.sacbee.com/news/california/article240400651.html
https://civileats.com/author/cwood/
https://civileats.com/author/cwood/
https://civileats.com/category/environment/climate/
https://civileats.com/category/farming/
https://civileats.com/category/environment/water/
https://civileats.com/


T

Bob Fulkerson

he developer behind the StoneGate development in Cold Springs is requesting the City of Reno to is

bonds to help pay for $36 million in infrastructure costs.

For nearly two years now, the developer has been seeking to have the city approve the creation of a specia

assessment district and issue bonds to help pay on the front end for the installation of infrastructure,

including streets, sewer and improvements to the Highway 395 interchange residents of the future

development will use.

The request has already drawn opposition before being heard by the City Council at its next meeting in

January.

“This is another way that developers want to be subsidized by the public for their

profit-making schemes,” said Bob Fulkerson, local activist, development director and

co-founder of Progressive Leadership Alliance of Nevada.
“And they’re going to try and ring as much money out of the public as possible—and it

just shows that not only is this project an environmental disaster via the leapfrog

sprawl of putting a city the size of Fallon on the backside of Peavine with all of that

inherent traffic and climate change inducing pollution it will cause, but, it sounds like

… they want to fleece the public financially as well,” he added.

There are multiple types of special assessment districts (SADs). In Reno, homeowners may be familiar wit

482special assessments placed on their properties when the sidewalks surrounding them need to be fixed up.

City Council asked to issue bonds to pay for 
StoneGate Infrastructure

By Jeri Davis Published: December 20, 2020 Last Updated on 

When the city fixes the sidewalks, only the homeowners whose houses abut those sidewalks are assessed f

for their repair. SADs associated with these types of projects are common in Reno.
In this case, however, the developer is seeking the creation of a construction district—and it comes at a mu 

higher price tag than any SAD the city has ever approved before.

When this idea was first floated in early 2019, the developer was seeking more than $50 million in bonds 

issued by the city. However, according to the city’s own SAD guidelines, the appraised value of the proper 

needs to be at least 1.5 times the amount of proposed bonds. The property in the StoneGate development 

therefore would only warrant the issuing of $36 million in bonds.

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 55 of 97

http://neighbornv.org/careers/
https://thisisreno.com/
https://thisisreno.com/subscribe/
https://thisisreno.com/category/news/
https://thisisreno.com/calendar/
https://thisisreno.com/category/en-espanol/
https://thisisreno.com/restaurants/#/
https://www.facebook.com/dialog/feed?app_id=551468291535482&display=popup&name=City+Council+asked+to+issue+bonds+to+pay+for+StoneGate+infrastructure&link=https%3A%2F%2Fthisisreno.com%2F2020%2F12%2Fcity-council-asked-to-issue-bonds-to-pay-for-stonegate-infrastructure%2F&picture=https://thisisreno.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/11/stonegate-02-1-of-1.jpg&description=The+developer+behind+StoneGate+in+Cold+Springs+is+requesting+City+of+Reno+to+issue+bonds+to+help+pay+for+%2436+million+in+infrastructure+costs.
mailto:?subject=Check%20out%20https%3A%2F%2Fthisisreno.com&body=Hi%2C%20this%20may%20be%20interesting%20you%3A%20City%20Council%20asked%20to%20issue%20bonds%20to%20pay%20for%20StoneGate%20infrastructure%21%20This%20is%20the%20link%3A%20https%3A%2F%2Fthisisreno.com%2F2020%2F12%2Fcity-council-asked-to-issue-bonds-to-pay-for-stonegate-infrastructure%2F


The reasoning behind forming a construction district has to do with the fact that the bonds will be used to 

for infrastructure that does not yet exist on land where there are no individual property owners, other tha 

developer, to which fees may be assessed.

The bond money would pay for this infrastructure, which will eventually be owned by various 

government agencies. The developer would at first pay the assessments on property in the district, then 

any builders to which subplots of the land are sold and eventually individual homeowners in the 

development.

When this funding model was first proposed, City Council Member Jenny Brekhus was the lone voice on t 

council to oppose it.

Brekhus said that while the bonds would not be backed by the city’s general fund and would be secured by 

land itself—which the city could foreclose on if the developer or subsequent landowners failed to make the 

assessment payments—the city’s credit rating and ability to take on new debt in the future could be damag 

the bonds were ever defaulted on. She told This Is Reno that she will again oppose the proposal for these s 

reasons.

Deborah Lauchner, finance director for the city, said she thought it unlikely the bonds would ever go into 

default.

“The risk would be if the developer just walked away from the entire
NEWS EVENTS EN ESPAÑOL BUSINESSES development, and then … we foreclose on the 

property,” she said. “And then

own property … way outside of town that we really can’t service very well. An then our recourse would be to 

sell it and try to recoup the money for the bon The city itself is not responsible, but that would be where the 

risk would lie. we’ve really worked on tightening up those agreements to make the risk as minimal as 

possible.”

Lauchner also explained that there are additional steps that will need to be t to get the plan approved, 

including forming the district through an ordinanc part of the reason the process has taken this long, she 

said, is that not only is price tag large, but the plan is also fairly novel for Reno.

Deborah Lauchner

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 56 of 97

https://thisisreno-sponsors.streetinteractive.com/click/246752/c197691/z80248?destination=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2Fnationalautomobilemuseum%2F&
https://thisisreno.com/
https://thisisreno.com/subscribe/
https://thisisreno.com/category/news/
https://thisisreno.com/calendar/
https://thisisreno.com/category/en-espanol/
https://thisisreno.com/restaurants/#/
https://www.facebook.com/dialog/feed?app_id=551468291535482&display=popup&name=City+Council+asked+to+issue+bonds+to+pay+for+StoneGate+infrastructure&link=https%3A%2F%2Fthisisreno.com%2F2020%2F12%2Fcity-council-asked-to-issue-bonds-to-pay-for-stonegate-infrastructure%2F&picture=https://thisisreno.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/11/stonegate-02-1-of-1.jpg&description=The+developer+behind+StoneGate+in+Cold+Springs+is+requesting+City+of+Reno+to+issue+bonds+to+help+pay+for+%2436+million+in+infrastructure+costs.
mailto:?subject=Check%20out%20https%3A%2F%2Fthisisreno.com&body=Hi%2C%20this%20may%20be%20interesting%20you%3A%20City%20Council%20asked%20to%20issue%20bonds%20to%20pay%20for%20StoneGate%20infrastructure%21%20This%20is%20the%20link%3A%20https%3A%2F%2Fthisisreno.com%2F2020%2F12%2Fcity-council-asked-to-issue-bonds-to-pay-for-stonegate-infrastructure%2F


“For Reno, we haven’t done this large scale,” she said. “This will be the largest one that [the council has]

considered, and I’ve been working with them for nearly two years to get it to this point where we can take 

council. And then council gets to decide if they want to keep moving forward on it or not.”

While this type of funding plan is largely new for Reno—with only a few, smaller projects like work on

Somersett Parkway having been financed through similar means—it has become increasingly common in

Southern Nevada and in other states since the housing bubble burst preceding the Great Recession. Since

time, commercial lenders for projects like the StoneGate development have become harder to find. And th

COVID-19 pandemic has exacerbated this.

“What I’m hearing is that, with the pandemic, a lot of the commercial lending—those lenders sometimes a

backing off on commitments they had made pre-pandemic,” Lauchner said.

The next step toward getting the construction district plan approved will be taking the Development and

Financing Agreement (DFA), which includes an appraisal and an engineer’s report on assessments, to the

Reno City Council. This DFA is expected to be presented to the Reno City Council on Jan. 13.

This Is Reno reached out the developers of the StoneGate development for comment but did not hear back

prior to publication of this story. This story may be updated should we receive a response.

JERI DAVIS

Jeri Davis came to Reno from rural Nevada in 2004 to study anthropology at the Univer

of Nevada, Reno. In 2012, she returned to the university for a master’s degree in journali

She is the former associate and news editor of the Reno News & Review and is a recipien

first-place Nevada Press Association awards for investigative and business reporting. Jer

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 57 of 97

https://thisisreno.com/
https://thisisreno.com/subscribe/
https://thisisreno.com/category/news/
https://thisisreno.com/calendar/
https://thisisreno.com/category/en-espanol/
https://thisisreno.com/restaurants/#/
https://www.facebook.com/dialog/feed?app_id=551468291535482&display=popup&name=City+Council+asked+to+issue+bonds+to+pay+for+StoneGate+infrastructure&link=https%3A%2F%2Fthisisreno.com%2F2020%2F12%2Fcity-council-asked-to-issue-bonds-to-pay-for-stonegate-infrastructure%2F&picture=https://thisisreno.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/11/stonegate-02-1-of-1.jpg&description=The+developer+behind+StoneGate+in+Cold+Springs+is+requesting+City+of+Reno+to+issue+bonds+to+help+pay+for+%2436+million+in+infrastructure+costs.
mailto:?subject=Check%20out%20https%3A%2F%2Fthisisreno.com&body=Hi%2C%20this%20may%20be%20interesting%20you%3A%20City%20Council%20asked%20to%20issue%20bonds%20to%20pay%20for%20StoneGate%20infrastructure%21%20This%20is%20the%20link%3A%20https%3A%2F%2Fthisisreno.com%2F2020%2F12%2Fcity-council-asked-to-issue-bonds-to-pay-for-stonegate-infrastructure%2F


(/)

Winn… 52° (/weather)

-25% -25% -25% -25% -25% -25%

-25% -25% -25% -25% -25%

-25% -25% -25% -25% -25%

Ezra Mid Century Console

Neat and tidy is the name of the game with this re�ned yet practical
storage solution thats an easy �t in a living room, den or study.

$798

-25%

NEWS

Cleaning Up Trash in the Truckee River

It was a good day for a trash cleanup, for an area that desperately needs it. That would be the Truckee

River near downtown Reno.

If you haven't been down to the Truckee River Bike Path in a while, it's a sad scene, especially as you get close to downtown Reno. The Wells

Underpass has become a sizeable camp out area for the homeless. Trash and debris doesn't just end up on the ground, but also in our

beautiful Truckee River. It breaks your heart to see it. Volunteers pull out what they can. Group leader Grant Denton of the Karma Box Project

told me volunteers and a county funded program called the River Stewards pull out "anywhere between 40 to 60 bags of trash a day."

Wednesday, December 23rd 2020, 1∶30 PM PST by John Potter

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 58 of 97

https://www.ktvn.com/
https://www.ktvn.com/weather
https://cat.da.us.criteo.com/delivery/ck.php?cppv=3&cpp=-QLcTlMLrjg_1HdYZy6IdmBFWJlh_-9FJyjUEb5K7zgSL0ZkQYQC8faKWW0ZsCR29a2AK9OJmmK_0kiiGt_yVufrjovlAI9B9CO4T6lZfJkprL48w5E6-3pDqw1NxKLmbc3k6tu1wcaK3a__1iGPmF4QJNZrz7i2wYRXXZFC3GN6SvI8_7_R-jHOCbvwGpcGV3Evlyq0cjcVxuMGtG1Uw5GMuuH4lg5_HgOkyX8DKFPRbLFn1QM14JDM39WQ4BsngRzU-9bjHrvFE21gMpvVm7En5zqSUD8qdBqMW9Gjp9SbGfKnb26GhXH-MVZ9A5Cmf9XogwOfXwFlP3CPUNbxq6crJhKVf5bMOVa1QZNzGDvsA3cXYcdWWDhy5t9oVxCWWvdsPpRdoJSIRbfd-sT7QbflNw25rIMDatvzN6SCygtVwX5cthBo2Mvh6CrY8dX-cZU9Ng&maxdest=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.joybird.com%3Futm_source%3Dcriteo%26utm_medium%3Dcpc%26utm_content%3D%26utm_campaign%3Dacquisition_upperfunnel%26utm_term%3Dcriteo_customer_acquisition
https://cat.da.us.criteo.com/delivery/ck.php?cppv=3&cpp=dKWQBVMLrjg_1HdYZy6IdmBFWJlh_-9FJyjUEb5K7zgSL0ZkQYQC8faKWW0ZsCR29a2AK9OJmmK_0kiiGt_yVufrjovlAI9B9CO4T6lZfJkprL48w5E6-3pDqw1NxKLmbc3k6tu1wcaK3a__1iGPmF4QJNZrz7i2wYRXXZFC3GN6SvI8zR1F5FZHDLYVKLB2A9IRy-vlbb1RvZpD7KNjaqif0E1ze4BT4rgsCJHJzS_zMB0ZmIWS5rQ103g4VGckuo7gw-1fN0SCyM-MoLL9LZK-7x0lgImJM2JUW5P4RQBwO2wLLHDzkzPt-__BfKDmGrVF2cDcn7NxL0C5lInuhlXTHbM__rZtgvDKpnp-1fLNeIsMIi4A5CrU8pHojDArT-xddznHDM8ja1D89VWOxGbrnL_Tocgc9lhM6X-EXKvRucPHbbJyeWbP4nKiDWdV-ebeuLgaNi19InxXgPBsa6tYg-A&maxdest=https%3A%2F%2Fjoybird.com%2Fstorage-consoles%2Fezra-storage-console%2F%3Futm_source%3Dcriteo%26utm_medium%3Dcpc%26utm_content%3Dezra-console%26utm_term%3Dcriteo_customer_acquisition%26utm_campaign%3Dacquisition_upperfunnel
https://cat.da.us.criteo.com/delivery/ck.php?cppv=3&cpp=pPy_j1MLrjg_1HdYZy6IdmBFWJlh_-9FJyjUEb5K7zgSL0ZkQYQC8faKWW0ZsCR29a2AK9OJmmK_0kiiGt_yVufrjovlAI9B9CO4T6lZfJkprL48w5E6-3pDqw1NxKLmbc3k6tu1wcaK3a__1iGPmF4QJNZrz7i2wYRXXZFC3GN6SvI8mdzbkF1BWIYBPBHBu-PaJlvWSl9Vw8vHXblhQqWzl5ldvX4QU7CGO2_JXrYll4byDZsSXocJy9OLMkW_Z9GCy_aC64Q9qViIil22i95b1O7vjBw5bO-3NoYxpHvVxs-1trT_iFRiRI-E7PTZpNY17Jgjmccynv6pzRCenOLu0XgFjGlTW4mux3LsoQvOimo3KqKmEA-bBVBssyrDyRm1tKCYufNRa3xn0o3I7ncYu2UKebWEDYe_7h-R_SM6GgyIFNKqPyww8G70YMSWzSFFh1sdosKH1rWf4dXJ5ZuNTFw&maxdest=https%3A%2F%2Fjoybird.com%2Fdining-tables%2Fremy-dining-table%2F%3Futm_source%3Dcriteo%26utm_medium%3Dcpc%26utm_content%3Dremy-dining-table%26utm_term%3Dcriteo_customer_acquisition%26utm_campaign%3Dacquisition_upperfunnel
https://cat.da.us.criteo.com/delivery/ck.php?cppv=3&cpp=5yDcfFMLrjg_1HdYZy6IdmBFWJlh_-9FJyjUEb5K7zgSL0ZkQYQC8faKWW0ZsCR29a2AK9OJmmK_0kiiGt_yVufrjovlAI9B9CO4T6lZfJkprL48w5E6-3pDqw1NxKLmbc3k6tu1wcaK3a__1iGPmF4QJNZgCNY9KCqNYpD9QgkJ2jbsmER7TgtYAvzCdvUroA9ZeLCbiBy5mAyxqOTecS7Uvzmbaent11lVoik5YqEHhCY7zbMgh4rEr2wnqTC65oPUsKM037uuULjnls0p1ujW3UN5Nsakx1MWNrN-f1CHKjevUV0s6xlw241v04wgxH42oCPFfkng0fudO1TbmWI-mD3hJ5domivpwbj93H177LJiLDU6fzPAZHX_83fLXjNh8TooDPcCndCT7r8a9RKGNoNDDKGWXfiDEJXFvDEg9kCfsSvQCWToo6LemqDYEOBe7bQxxMFTwJ_znCFa7cv6Q9I&maxdest=https%3A%2F%2Fjoybird.com%2Fpillows%2Fminka-bolster-pillows%2F%3Ffabric%3Droyale_ash%26utm_source%3Dcriteo%26utm_medium%3Dcpc%26utm_content%3Dminka-bolster-pillow%26utm_term%3Dcriteo_customer_acquisition%26utm_campaign%3Dacquisition_upperfunnel
https://cat.da.us.criteo.com/delivery/ck.php?cppv=3&cpp=_KWr51MLrjg_1HdYZy6IdmBFWJlh_-9FJyjUEb5K7zgSL0ZkQYQC8faKWW0ZsCR29a2AK9OJmmK_0kiiGt_yVufrjovlAI9B9CO4T6lZfJkprL48w5E6-3pDqw1NxKLmbc3k6tu1wcaK3a__1iGPmF4QJNZrz7i2wYRXXZFC3GN6SvI8z8wjCzZclDEq24nFZI_35HMmJew0iummVBA1o4XZt40gUdQ95Yqp9Hp2S0ivzS_HQLTL-TQH7DMoS1kGXMZe5Ep28FTeaVZBV1Srl7zVv52lcHnvoE9TTHE-DytNc5IA8I58ipNrd5PPbhgWFkiuTfrzO52ZuuUBacIHhFy4HdCuYxvXKMtunDHbOaVKTLtf7ndDUgQTqkZ3yMcQ1BqdggS2d8MoPsZs3CZ_baacV8hvsMORoSwv_EFRHyKfqX6zPSPHuu57dXbqElGcmBZsyX44_ADmf-JDQpbmV-nKBB8&maxdest=https%3A%2F%2Fjoybird.com%2Fdining-tables%2Femery-dining-table%2F%3Futm_source%3Dcriteo%26utm_medium%3Dcpc%26utm_content%3Demery-dining-table%26utm_term%3Dcriteo_customer_acquisition%26utm_campaign%3Dacquisition_upperfunnel
https://cat.da.us.criteo.com/delivery/ck.php?cppv=3&cpp=S4GUI1MLrjg_1HdYZy6IdmBFWJlh_-9FJyjUEb5K7zgSL0ZkQYQC8faKWW0ZsCR29a2AK9OJmmK_0kiiGt_yVufrjovlAI9B9CO4T6lZfJkprL48w5E6-3pDqw1NxKLmbc3k6tu1wcaK3a__1iGPmF4QJNZrz7i2wYRXXZFC3GN6SvI8mpbUEbI60ql0UQXpspGvf-nOHVbs8A7i3D2xm1rz12Bg-p3D4tIBwVTQIHxefmj0f2qlthF1aM-HKd0X6eEfclT_LrzV82aWYkrQMwowSN1XTC23Fa9yNUdOaSQiDLnjki-4NPdjm-vYPjmC60h92C_fXaVzFlxxGI2nvOuyTFeChNpjwLBefByqwFmBw9X7SSAF_dcuSZVFc7f1xkzpvZP5Jxo0a6X3Sm44K3Lz9CV_lOmZqVIQWLtA8WzEKTC0JebGwoF8zZ48PxaeTq86i-_-U9SBoCVclGnqRwlig6E&maxdest=https%3A%2F%2Fjoybird.com%2Fapartment-media-consoles%2Fauden-apartment-media-console%2F%3Futm_source%3Dcriteo%26utm_medium%3Dcpc%26utm_content%3Dauden-apartment-media-console%26utm_term%3Dcriteo_customer_acquisition%26utm_campaign%3Dacquisition_upperfunnel
https://cat.da.us.criteo.com/delivery/ck.php?cppv=3&cpp=z3PLslMLrjg_1HdYZy6IdmBFWJlh_-9FJyjUEb5K7zgSL0ZkQYQC8faKWW0ZsCR29a2AK9OJmmK_0kiiGt_yVufrjovlAI9B9CO4T6lZfJkprL48w5E6-3pDqw1NxKLmbc3k6tu1wcaK3a__1iGPmF4QJNZrz7i2wYRXXZFC3GN6SvI88YKrqOI-ZT1Z55rwQgaHcMKcvc3CLnISEvwYyT85lKkTbY7vPJCOIHkszaY9FEqHEO5xdmvbaviwob1jzFmg31W5qSKpHfe80rUUTjI2VTocj7WJi8ROgETwwu_hpa8cCm5dEghPvXrx96ZrCv9QTG5gHcYDPWM1RJP1NWNJbQbJB3E7h2WI_ZW9HNJk4wDuwBbfUsfhfeP6y3XA8tTAkLzEPMsdTG4s4EWqLIRx3EktKQJPuETs2lyDlu65uT2vATF4CfOE7QrGSd5JK1iB3qXDxGp00dyPO1XdxktyDYE&maxdest=https%3A%2F%2Fjoybird.com%2Frugs%2Fazrus-black-rug%2F%3Frugs%3D7%25279_ft_x_11%25272_ft%26utm_source%3Dcriteo%26utm_medium%3Dcpc%26utm_content%3Dazrus-rug%26utm_term%3Dcriteo_customer_acquisition%26utm_campaign%3Dacquisition_upperfunnel
https://cat.da.us.criteo.com/delivery/ck.php?cppv=3&cpp=xU_TtFMLrjg_1HdYZy6IdmBFWJlh_-9FJyjUEb5K7zgSL0ZkQYQC8faKWW0ZsCR29a2AK9OJmmK_0kiiGt_yVufrjovlAI9B9CO4T6lZfJkprL48w5E6-3pDqw1NxKLmbc3k6tu1wcaK3a__1iGPmF4QJNZrz7i2wYRXXZFC3GN6SvI8FINb4YEBm1khUpOUKAOyWWSo_49v-sqtnD3PqcA0Eg0RV1JRICaxPfKCnub90PTZWeMMkTBZ5zB8EBIMTrlkMr2St3Sft3pW-1WX6q4iq1bvjRf3p9Nx-cKHwjETFoHYvamwVao6J-BUFsobTq60IW9EYslw9-Vm9tb09Tzz971mQdtUw4OGIqGibJRJki0pnod5FwnLlIxmUx2YAqVoHm5e1EHrgxL9BcReXCdqUOxR8tl3HIOcDes5bfqH2EcdzTkrlFdKS9bq3LyHinFQ3rWOJqCeFRiH3xqlN3MtnU4&maxdest=https%3A%2F%2Fjoybird.com%2Fsleeper-sofas%2Feliot-twin-sleeper%2F%3Ffabric%3Dantonio_cedar%26wood_stain%3Dmocha%26utm_source%3Dcriteo%26utm_medium%3Dcpc%26utm_content%3Deliot-twin-sleeper%26utm_term%3Dcriteo_customer_acquisition%26utm_campaign%3Dacquisition_upperfunnel
https://cat.da.us.criteo.com/delivery/ck.php?cppv=3&cpp=eIwQdFMLrjg_1HdYZy6IdmBFWJlh_-9FJyjUEb5K7zgSL0ZkQYQC8faKWW0ZsCR29a2AK9OJmmK_0kiiGt_yVufrjovlAI9B9CO4T6lZfJkprL48w5E6-3pDqw1NxKLmbc3k6tu1wcaK3a__1iGPmF4QJNZrz7i2wYRXXZFC3GN6SvI8D5FKHe4wzsXCYUXh4_s9U02WAPBSFC7loEhRKrKHURiKxkWsI-qU6xlocjweKssCM0syYnpOKEb8VUZrFiytgDMtG21kjXMJYXtDbGfpV6PTH6WmczDi3wty_UeUZscvo2omvRYr9PaMiPKqNt_CstZH7GxxZkfDHc_nXhkithg_NBkLMZy6SQ7it6QpPSMn4i5oSCTNQ9SxVaclwhcSXH2AhORbKvDYZJ9LmMjSj4i_A51OPyYZ9GaHwnx4LEzGHIfIT3v40pxOYegLz3OTZjEfVMRj8J0iAM7fvOEAf6M&maxdest=https%3A%2F%2Fjoybird.com%2Frugs%2Fdawn-rug%2F%3Frugs%3D2%25275_ft_x_8_ft%26utm_source%3Dcriteo%26utm_medium%3Dcpc%26utm_content%3Ddawn-rug%26utm_term%3Dcriteo_customer_acquisition%26utm_campaign%3Dacquisition_upperfunnel
https://cat.da.us.criteo.com/delivery/ck.php?cppv=3&cpp=C_XJilMLrjg_1HdYZy6IdmBFWJlh_-9FJyjUEb5K7zgSL0ZkQYQC8faKWW0ZsCR29a2AK9OJmmK_0kiiGt_yVufrjovlAI9B9CO4T6lZfJkprL48w5E6-3pDqw1NxKLmbc3k6tu1wcaK3a__1iGPmF4QJNZrz7i2wYRXXZFC3GN6SvI8ta5OQ9m_3OsW4xGZpDKY7qJox7u7shFbXkFfeKQUATHgWEW4zqV0nhQtl6iYmf1O8n4DEf7LH936-gIBWCEQZQH1gvwueyueaL7CerMjFtBTuOWAyDe6O-vksRxT0MnCsVzIxzAcsIalZLZUKIkC9JQlYfc2kZ7I-OBHdGjE_kwLZGOEu1LitkGImVoSl2p7RURxfOyQF-oFgo2ubOXcB8ynPBYcVlZzz9qX56q3XTdL9FAA8GrkbpnQA4jXXshqAUxcGm_mdPvCYfwlX6JQqiau1EYWcDrKeZQM0cPJw1Q&maxdest=https%3A%2F%2Fjoybird.com%2Frugs%2Faggy-rug%2F%3Futm_source%3Dcriteo%26utm_medium%3Dcpc%26utm_content%3Daggy-rug%26utm_term%3Dcriteo_customer_acquisition%26utm_campaign%3Dacquisition_upperfunnel
https://cat.da.us.criteo.com/delivery/ck.php?cppv=3&cpp=xCBq5FMLrjg_1HdYZy6IdmBFWJlh_-9FJyjUEb5K7zgSL0ZkQYQC8faKWW0ZsCR29a2AK9OJmmK_0kiiGt_yVufrjovlAI9B9CO4T6lZfJkprL48w5E6-3pDqw1NxKLmbc3k6tu1wcaK3a__1iGPmF4QJNZrz7i2wYRXXZFC3GN6SvI8cAzRSqgb9zQuDWdCSZUG7Ek1cv8uZgMuYE2mi4ny9gDph0ExAvIdrSJxP-bhZ64yoAp1xv9CowqCaFso8NTdUZzaZojxmu4eMLXmDqFU68ON4xjy_vDix7Pj7V11kdZM6GfbWEHsIkUhG8dJHkccetp2dk2qRUTc9rxY1vDjNmyFwoxuojgmzcIVI2RiIhR1npMbO0BJ4eCPfyTuuJdQ6-XDIYvdfKuZX3uOR--btCj-pT8xsdhHIUrq8z-PrUaJaHnRpcVNmpC2MarSRx-QapgJEdXZzK3OqqAYBVJIskE&maxdest=https%3A%2F%2Fjoybird.com%2Fnightstands%2Fgreta-nightstand%2F%3Futm_source%3Dcriteo%26utm_medium%3Dcpc%26utm_content%3Dgreta-nightstand%26utm_term%3Dcriteo_customer_acquisition%26utm_campaign%3Dacquisition_upperfunnel
https://cat.da.us.criteo.com/delivery/ck.php?cppv=3&cpp=zO-VEFMLrjg_1HdYZy6IdmBFWJlh_-9FJyjUEb5K7zgSL0ZkQYQC8faKWW0ZsCR29a2AK9OJmmK_0kiiGt_yVufrjovlAI9B9CO4T6lZfJkprL48w5E6-3pDqw1NxKLmbc3k6tu1wcaK3a__1iGPmF4QJNZrz7i2wYRXXZFC3GN6SvI8JvvE19ZVwhEZEfZzAhI2T4dq6eBIR4u2iMh2199lSk5XmBaitI6tShReL8t8rqHkeD8cRrjmP61XNI27afVJOwodljOBzfK-Nbi-HnliKbtzT78iKlQwBVjjGUR6qY7ySmVQ_6_ZLvXDic6SljktFZ6cBsSiuScJ2T15QUkXFrVdexg7JMi9zkBx2pSya-Jzix1shBAUCb3o-0VfjHU7vdPtx4Ij6QQE6uz8ZrzhVatMHRutMuFy7ppkaz4hQbzbKLrcizoO3B_TXT0fyY-kGGvuR1bfkF40ycB2pGwLqXw&maxdest=https%3A%2F%2Fjoybird.com%2Frugs%2Faina-rug%2F%3Frugs%3D7%252710_ft_x_10%25273_ft%26utm_source%3Dcriteo%26utm_medium%3Dcpc%26utm_content%3Daina-rug%26utm_term%3Dcriteo_customer_acquisition%26utm_campaign%3Dacquisition_upperfunnel
https://cat.da.us.criteo.com/delivery/ck.php?cppv=3&cpp=ZSD45VMLrjg_1HdYZy6IdmBFWJlh_-9FJyjUEb5K7zgSL0ZkQYQC8faKWW0ZsCR29a2AK9OJmmK_0kiiGt_yVufrjovlAI9B9CO4T6lZfJkprL48w5E6-3pDqw1NxKLmbc3k6tu1wcaK3a__1iGPmF4QJNZrz7i2wYRXXZFC3GN6SvI87B5_XW5mI0bHS2hZHkwTN46Exgg7bZYIzd-zY0OvlOzEbP2YUHeB5aGB3Alt1q3Mu0AB0Zbzc2YXFHJZbyskWHNMThJWxiNy7onkf9wCviExhbprvob-5MkcYhXaKhd-OOsqIJIVHhRlXDNmiMpbJUQ8T_pVgGazXHfYMBGsuFgxRgF35GFv8U3Tgbm3oWQXwqKzU0HYsXu3HujTKMfbkmTgcSaumLakmyB9uC1LDk6wu7X3QloANQR0AAxzAD0wpGRGbvqqCr0cuLWTycbbiwFtiY5TxapB_4FLvfzSUro&maxdest=https%3A%2F%2Fjoybird.com%2Fmedia-consoles%2Fabbey-small-nightstand%2F%3Futm_source%3Dcriteo%26utm_medium%3Dcpc%26utm_content%3Dabbey-small-nightstand%26utm_term%3Dcriteo_customer_acquisition%26utm_campaign%3Dacquisition_upperfunnel
https://cat.da.us.criteo.com/delivery/ck.php?cppv=3&cpp=AHEesVMLrjg_1HdYZy6IdmBFWJlh_-9FJyjUEb5K7zgSL0ZkQYQC8faKWW0ZsCR29a2AK9OJmmK_0kiiGt_yVufrjovlAI9B9CO4T6lZfJkprL48w5E6-3pDqw1NxKLmbc3k6tu1wcaK3a__1iGPmF4QJNZrz7i2wYRXXZFC3GN6SvI83BcnqeTpF7SEccdpNsJ0VIYHnuf2hsiRSaLLzah3DLzsQ0mNDZvU0c3tMSkpCxvXbwmDc9YK1q_XCe6_xXa7Q9iJ7dW7PWlBOgtbDx_4IjcajdBEWq-nj-5rBrezCHKPqtH2jFQ6eeykqjhY_ePDl4o5VRiP3RhoKsrla3BhXCZHdzfPtYAgr2QKT6kCGY9nbXMDwR6hcA-7ZDWYAntJy4tCKAqR7jgd2LqszgDFUyvl4I1256MgwY-2mL-26gO-DNDpgsTTYKhK0RbLEQeNEY2DorlAJQLB0vqz3Yzit1E&maxdest=https%3A%2F%2Fjoybird.com%2Fnightstands%2Ftina-nightstand%2F%3Futm_source%3Dcriteo%26utm_medium%3Dcpc%26utm_content%3Dtina-nightstand%26utm_term%3Dcriteo_customer_acquisition%26utm_campaign%3Dacquisition_upperfunnel
https://cat.da.us.criteo.com/delivery/ck.php?cppv=3&cpp=L27E61MLrjg_1HdYZy6IdmBFWJlh_-9FJyjUEb5K7zgSL0ZkQYQC8faKWW0ZsCR29a2AK9OJmmK_0kiiGt_yVufrjovlAI9B9CO4T6lZfJkprL48w5E6-3pDqw1NxKLmbc3k6tu1wcaK3a__1iGPmF4QJNZrz7i2wYRXXZFC3GN6SvI8T8GOBtPOtbA048rBmGevLI1vLs08vdmugIcozNEmd2ipMyTaCTcUTq-bCA0yZDeUw6orwqEwfxt8KNUxQGwo1wLH8Bsg7dzAsJb8F31lB6DnNo8M37I6hRRLjp9cytersjqtRn65RmATf-_k75wMuGQVouz4tmQym5IurFBXcv5rSqBxyRJUah5tFbHsVHWMPTpaLHybJJ0yRGeefCQp4GYh4q_5x0R5XboObjHB-gv3UA6HCRMjCVnYMd6r--rA2r-aI-P1mQqqlI-mRcwmMLNKDqW4hFq9LJ6m3DZsRYs&maxdest=https%3A%2F%2Fjoybird.com%2Fapartment-chairs%2Fhughes-apartment-chair%2F%3Ffabric%3Dlucky_turquoise%26wood_stain%3Dmocha%26utm_source%3Dcriteo%26utm_medium%3Dcpc%26utm_content%3Dhughes-apartment-chair%26utm_term%3Dcriteo_customer_acquisition%26utm_campaign%3Dacquisition_upperfunnel
https://cat.da.us.criteo.com/delivery/ck.php?cppv=3&cpp=H9aE31MLrjg_1HdYZy6IdmBFWJlh_-9FJyjUEb5K7zgSL0ZkQYQC8faKWW0ZsCR29a2AK9OJmmK_0kiiGt_yVufrjovlAI9B9CO4T6lZfJkprL48w5E6-3pDqw1NxKLmbc3k6tu1wcaK3a__1iGPmF4QJNZrz7i2wYRXXZFC3GN6SvI8JICMGHWsxZ2gU4iG7iP9oBYP7Ya4o2Fdcz3Ub9TFNac1TDgpDaSM-nXGNP92uWk4JYS6Qz-IueHLHExZ5jDpfNJYohnhMOltZWLFCZTpNX_4CIUhXYUfw1PPJ1FvHGbrC88hQKeQKiUn6R18p8wnfkJj29C483Xw3_NF5gn_DrFb3wB9T5iNY3ElCXc8733er1NsP-LJ8mYoG4T_NlDN2LhrU57VipW-fivPoLXRruc5BoGBj15YnqUe9a5iaUhdrZf79XREloHWtF9P9LGe8yFRwp9dIPE7RZLsshTRTdM&maxdest=https%3A%2F%2Fjoybird.com%2Frugs%2Flila-rug%2F%3Frugs%3D9%25273_ft_x_12%25276_ft%26utm_source%3Dcriteo%26utm_medium%3Dcpc%26utm_content%3Dlila-rug%26utm_term%3Dcriteo_customer_acquisition%26utm_campaign%3Dacquisition_upperfunnel
https://cat.da.us.criteo.com/delivery/ck.php?cppv=3&cpp=llMUf1MLrjg_1HdYZy6IdmBFWJlh_-9FJyjUEb5K7zgSL0ZkQYQC8faKWW0ZsCR29a2AK9OJmmK_0kiiGt_yVufrjovlAI9B9CO4T6lZfJkprL48w5E6-3pDqw1NxKLmbc3k6tu1wcaK3a__1iGPmF4QJNZrz7i2wYRXXZFC3GN6SvI89uZkuR8PHJLsdo5feuOhyydtqbPNjLHfAegXDaj1yuh55RP_RoKiog_P8l3P3tbhZ6rK54KAU-DIX4pEgSafU2lu_CNQtAQjTEWsVU98-1c3SVTfnk1ZqS3hUMnyf65fAJYVO04q265if5-f6klsKLo0ve6tgQXXlsiJbaPk2XJw9ju_-aXmvqxrkcLQolCBoulNXjz2xIrySsMAWBPQ4OLrHI3u4dQoUstrT-3q8xjH3n8js2_ttYfMlNki26AwikLdolmfzkVZXTzffDkP3YWrA4d1NLe3i--G2cWhN3E&maxdest=https%3A%2F%2Fjoybird.com%2Fmedia-consoles%2Fauden-media-console%2F%3Futm_source%3Dcriteo%26utm_medium%3Dcpc%26utm_content%3Dauden-media-console%26utm_term%3Dcriteo_customer_acquisition%26utm_campaign%3Dacquisition_upperfunnel
https://cat.da.us.criteo.com/delivery/ck.php?cppv=3&cpp=dKWQBVMLrjg_1HdYZy6IdmBFWJlh_-9FJyjUEb5K7zgSL0ZkQYQC8faKWW0ZsCR29a2AK9OJmmK_0kiiGt_yVufrjovlAI9B9CO4T6lZfJkprL48w5E6-3pDqw1NxKLmbc3k6tu1wcaK3a__1iGPmF4QJNZrz7i2wYRXXZFC3GN6SvI8zR1F5FZHDLYVKLB2A9IRy-vlbb1RvZpD7KNjaqif0E1ze4BT4rgsCJHJzS_zMB0ZmIWS5rQ103g4VGckuo7gw-1fN0SCyM-MoLL9LZK-7x0lgImJM2JUW5P4RQBwO2wLLHDzkzPt-__BfKDmGrVF2cDcn7NxL0C5lInuhlXTHbM__rZtgvDKpnp-1fLNeIsMIi4A5CrU8pHojDArT-xddznHDM8ja1D89VWOxGbrnL_Tocgc9lhM6X-EXKvRucPHbbJyeWbP4nKiDWdV-ebeuLgaNi19InxXgPBsa6tYg-A&maxdest=https%3A%2F%2Fjoybird.com%2Fstorage-consoles%2Fezra-storage-console%2F%3Futm_source%3Dcriteo%26utm_medium%3Dcpc%26utm_content%3Dezra-console%26utm_term%3Dcriteo_customer_acquisition%26utm_campaign%3Dacquisition_upperfunnel


Today (Wednesday) Grant led his Karma Box Project group knee deep into a cold, trash-filled Truckee for another cleanup, to help bring back

what fishermen have always called "The Big Tricky," also known as the heartbeat of this community. As he put it, “There's not a single person

who's been out here for any length of time who isn't connected to this river somehow."

Today’s group of 25 thought cleaning the one area by the underpass would take an hour. That was wishful thinking: "You got layers of trash.

You start pulling one layer, you got another layer underneath it and one underneath that. Its a...there's a lot of trash in there."

We saw plenty of food containers, bike parts, containers and cups. Clothing, chairs, shopping carts and cardboard. Shoes, toys and even TV

sets. Grant said "You got blankets, you have bedframes, you have tires, springs. Just random, random things." At the same time, he doesn't

exactly blame the homeless: "You know, we have a magical bus that drives in front of our house that takes the trash. These guys don't."

Grant's Karma Box Project gets some help. The River Stewards, a county-funded program, finds homeless volunteers and gives them incentives

to clean up trash along the river for 4 hours a day. The Karma Box Project's goal is collecting over 420 yards of trash from the camps to bring

back the river. As Grant puts it, “It all starts with trash, because we all have that in common, you know?"

For now, it's the best that can be done here...until the day a permanent solution can be found.

Of course the Karma Box Project is always looking for volunteers. We have a link to their Facebook page, below:

https://www.facebook.com/karmaboxproject/ (https://www.facebook.com/karmaboxproject)

OVERNIGHT REPAIR

TREATMENT

$64.00

HEALTHY 

LOOKS GOOD 

ON YOU! 

SHOP NOW

Around the Web

Nevada Seniors with No Life Insurance Get

a $250k Policy for $18/month
Smart Lifestyle Trends

(https://trends.revcontent.com/click.php?

d=3guYyixOS2saL1UsYy3TnNDzS6epMWqO8JMa5eRETuyr%2FrtGta00ED5CkS3aokoEGfa%2BP%2Bcd44i%2B46n0XUpEGacplfbs%2FEdsRpRq2buEXVGMQZcBhO4gfDrzAzUfHsqU7h

Nevada Launches New Policy For Cars

Used Less Than 50 Miles/Day
ProvideInsurance

(https://trends.revcontent.com/click.php?

d=hT1MG%2Beh5fn%2BOuuCQBuNgErkYXHq1Lx49WG%2F6d1%2FQrd8ikcfh5DdLdlPnknCKsEBjlUHjUeHmsJuygwr4rF8ne

Emery Mid Century Dining Table
JOYBIRD

(https://trends.revcontent.com/click.php?

d=Nj%2FbKCcqEWJtxACBWlx4B%2FFBHnL6yW34K%2BtkAQ

(https:
cppv=
fYn2oy
9WBjv

(https://privacy.us.criteo.com/adcenter?
cppv=3&cpp=HChZoNsnmvmJQO2rdeL9vSUe7ld5NID1Q3uz2M_2J
dKToFFWK7kFBFUmntNIN6WOvbsLsLI2TaInxVibxr5Eaxg5odsK6Xz

Ads by Revcontent

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 59 of 97

https://adclick.g.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjsuG0J2F4xrtHZE6Um9rt-zc4bPsMfOR_IFRGR5yRL3WkklMZaXvNrjuYmWrfP3mm6qvEZmEnm7zgR2_G4pXucqJTNw9pL1lr1s4u5-qxnTaLWz2tXTbwZTX9mISim91k5GNPW6wAKMp&sig=Cg0ArKJSzLblneUFg66g&urlfix=1&adurl=https://clickserv.sitescout.com/clk/29f0ea6394c8181d/96d229317e56863a/0-0/0///~_aid_~5fff7e49c3f06eba02280068//cidentLy8vLy8/oout0%3Fr%3Dhttps://www.drhorton.com/All-Promotions/nevada/632-work-from-home-in-reno%3Futm_source%3Dcentro%26utm_medium%3Dbanner%26utm_content%3Dreno-wfh-2020%26utm_campaign%3Dhome-office
https://www.facebook.com/karmaboxproject
https://www.steelhouse.com/relevantads
https://trends.revcontent.com/click.php?d=3guYyixOS2saL1UsYy3TnNDzS6epMWqO8JMa5eRETuyr%2FrtGta00ED5CkS3aokoEGfa%2BP%2Bcd44i%2B46n0XUpEGacplfbs%2FEdsRpRq2buEXVGMQZcBhO4gfDrzAzUfHsqU7hqcQEGBVPE4p880ZRoqcsEPLx5PdOcKPtzP1yIeqwVYbMXT1ewsuky%2B74XTcG1qYS7kc1%2BLtvNKNoykOHG39XZLH3QkBexTEzy%2BkNm1KDjDebqjPD798wdUq5Iky97qtPaHuWrK%2F3OZtfXeSWt7b%2F61Tm%2F6EEvycWvUoF%2FGVYtlVxoofYSHx00EbvEV25nKwCLmrZr6qDWJPyR8S4sXiaQ756cAOZ8HqkRfL7yoWb4kcx7NMDmMpxJkXvuaCOCP8PzTz7hzrct7H%2BMfpkkXn5lgCJ0KwiAGEveZejC9SUtePnJhJXfiJBRfHZ8z5wCQZybh6zQr%2Fxt3qvNybSZR1XJBPcZNbYY%2F2JvcUgQLYKyH%2F6Jyhi9FaogXhtP%2BYpNB2y0JmpEOdJGfOV3NsoE2ZzxsFoY9fn9%2Bju3RROe2FHwFRkH5oNxuXn7NJzBdS3J20cZ8be0ykGsK9Uiwi%2BAKnpSZJ4UgDv7jFnJYGHESwwF0wSOGSQGkzoVppgKvIY4r8FzrNhTtuwIgElnRdx%2Bz%2Fz0le3Ntao4%2BB86FZ0pZM75l%2BUHkJ0D1udXPAzKuDQiMP5m%2Fki%2FOo6nsltWSDcwMt1dFRIU4BoEo2vb1z%2BtNNBCEWtMMTQTywgpMWDoZ09IrUgP3%2BE2ZphOKtY6BpKx5m2y%2FgQOYp61AEETVboBS5sZgqUDQ8z9jWb1QzG6X6SvzkRhAIM%2BpFnZUZwIMyhlHG1Oqy02zrFfoPqDSpGheJwGlvpuStB0yHN0Vii5mYab03qEDbpBuqcCAxFvupMgznqelUqYa2OHLPBqU7roagMccGzdBd40iowuWHnVEUwwQrupLts2N8Yo4jp71YVGEoSXupmymBewXhZQZ%2Bl55%2FaK9gbr1CmtziIpE373D5do0%2Fq4eA2RDEYQEXdwcqE6pbvUve2OiCBrbrsCRA82sY40ohRhffek21Mh6v6Lqe9uE4zeri%2B8V1jXoC6lD2NX%2BOcm5UWsXrLFHi0CIjoHYDJtbotjyZbeqvPY%2BCNfgM3%2F2QrMWIW%2FGcNnzfqnf83otS0o4twxpXsixl%2FfczfUqemZm2a9ARE2FwDDsZRcV7fqthPUl817y%2Fmw8Fb6aYXdstw%3D%3D&s2s=1
https://trends.revcontent.com/click.php?d=hT1MG%2Beh5fn%2BOuuCQBuNgErkYXHq1Lx49WG%2F6d1%2FQrd8ikcfh5DdLdlPnknCKsEBjlUHjUeHmsJuygwr4rF8neNK%2FsysZ7jbduBWDZienmbZFFzXQR7R7UnS2arP82XMHaZIm7TvvHKw0LhV8NOofM%2FvhDaZJlgpXOj2wzudVBeX6fPnVbe6CypjrVY2lYOX6HbnmayO%2FAPfmT4V90riJdH1JoG6X4XSspjtUFIKFOsV9au7vxVKNXT9DWTqHaTMTkf%2BcGvU4CxZIU6jcv3hQC5ce02tr8mb50D1V3A%2Fs2G4TAoaZ5vACtV6uTeAIfCwa%2Fi1Kn0DyFv768wUeUczZdbbHQK4ZQVvaDm7f%2B60Ima2tKRnj5fLnufj1Cvk%2FoMCCTc%2FI3%2BThkYIidgmcUfw1VpBHe9F0XGavI2uP%2BIzXgUyinlotBxAnP%2B%2BCsflBDOThBM5RqdpWDV3JLriaNXyVwkF4WDWaGHRjVrUStp%2FqoYMjDkDkq5xg7BH9dVAm3Q%2BJuT2XwpUuTyRgLsKxEOBB68w8aw7PTur0CkOaEyRl%2FsgzOW1%2Bhqhp9fCwhVDW1Lx6uej0m0SmiSvt12fxXZPC1MwHBDOnFUguUlgShJ3ZT0JuhfbWVw%2F7X2k96soP%2BeQL3G0Q2fU%2F3HBuQRU5ahkGzSPjudex%2B%2BnrJ%2BFc8brML11nNDh3FzGdoyIhWhZXb902IaqpFe8y%2F96J3HJTx3UZJhxKoGCE3xCOAM20ZklWEUsNkiJ8xs0EN%2FgU%2FeOkZj7BCNd1DvcANlPAXSZNCc5Jw56Yd2m0IXfRvJ6IbljLcESkA5bndNHYvxg61bvPY7yYLf4tywDHiHz52f49q5ua1EI316DefxKcmxg56sL6aErRqklCkc%2FqpTKgErE0xZMLp8BAzFoZeb9Eu0m2Wv%2BggF0Qik8BucuYXj61%2FH1ZD59%2Fhp078jYibimbjMWSgt4VIEmkb%2Fy8hgnOBqVAgXyRknEybceRWpw1TOzC%2BkVJhu1pFq3MDdaWdVN2G3lvKrczsnkNaQVrJXsjtzzoy3XPGRx%2FglerKODILBOubJ%2B%2BBY5HjZZYzMmHR1nvxoBe59G9TpJOmwYJPpVyrR%2B81JeEc5LQQKs9SAfTR61dICiW%2BU5kGelEPP9m0p7YmM%2F6IKaXo4hhivGJqCzrG9ksDWLgCyJZkeX40ObrjMfasBgNSLD26TH8NoUdrOgg9xoSnrKelvDqZjnEmZynh1n%2BqiuOqe86JmUV4BVoClMF3ygVo6cYh7mSuppt5JKHFdvmLlfB1gFUMnI3hVfOt0f0vtLOxJYT%2BfQ9u6Q3%2FuS0ud%2BNglhKggZfboBYoJ1RKZgrmVlaTTaGF4%2BYJDnYuAVIGFQ2F0MfrCAEY338fk3eKcErI13IELSs1eHguft%2BKl7tdpMylgB%2FIQa21mWe3TbMO5w6Kq42fAXcXT%2BTCAKH4B%2BAcHJ0CSpr%2BxJeqlDEMAMQyPiGrHEJztQIR%2FaysKH%2FQUZYn0Po7oMjRoVkNAhDL0oOo%2BVnka3KBv%2BkzUxJc4C1INWNKXwXIhVrZ3QE9CeekdByIlm%2BJKSkeYcgAOzuYX%2B%2FR1P0XiF6m4T0ohY4bCQTlDsP0u%2Fx2kcxwdnJlHeXi59i3URiPWzu6TCAz05lc3vTYxlX1p4Ka5IRJukxszNk%2FXCLnBWAnc3eMYvXj3jCnc%2FtQHm5gyR%2Fmfm%2FaOuuC0xnIxQkcTSfMm9dr0IHsKz90ysyQD6jAyahfDXKOdr9Kcooe897nQlGE4oI1q%2FBdBJlFRcS3H%2BdQj77RPYK101tn0CxLyjcUwDWccsJxggEIWiebX5lrU8cvQvzzXcYWd%2BgCoLiVuuyurrIf8joUeUQdr%2B7Qy3DN3HPnamZfQLMgW8kIWs%2F1AA0L066EVbmS%2BB3iKgk7sPGmRQ194xOGuI%2FdieHya76HtjDfLWopBWqeI5at%2FvgkMmSH%2B6uOLUlx4k96UBelA%2BrPA%2FU2ZnreBJn9I1%2FIxkBr0GWQQe8uLMNwiw1j86C0jRFYr50Ou6DGrnx9r0RztwMouDv9Ad11OYBsdNaNL6JbHal9lhrGdmYhGLFaXE0gWPaTAScvIsIHuh%2B1oVzLvK7Ns4ZSrSwO164iGTQqpPM6cvNkLb%2FX2lq9u2FAQO8tSvK2s1yHy1sTWjWTMBq%2FYEc2okfvtJ75GC8ejslagXoFS5gZz3D3aUFAwy3aQNDi%2BGKGSysqwLeD3OIHk4QUX1sdIv7T%2BNlSal9Vo7OUjqvdHIikBaL3D45jS9LY5k7NbN0dTG%2BJwVwuLBkcQPpgmes08yoE046aoEqT9%2FG4%2BFn7bfxHEE1HKGUJvJpJEcs%2FUdA5FX3%2FXzOsmW6v%2FXTx0s4l6LbU%2FF%2FNRsO6bNzFILbndNIBUvAJbUY6mGzQ%3D%3D&s2s=1
https://trends.revcontent.com/click.php?d=Nj%2FbKCcqEWJtxACBWlx4B%2FFBHnL6yW34K%2BtkAQ1eezAiZqFdQcdp9sWbWdjruBAqJukH3hU5gtWGU4EKAzlsrv5uM1QussAM3sU1bpTSDC1CJRwevodWrmimjQQfI%2BWGxTP6nQwMFrf3eUMUhBQ7QoeWzSzNDjGGyleMZVCjrcx701lhiT2mEf8my25mjyjqrCrxi2XjLjfzdBL1sPQXqok1l7KWz9wSdbXvoh76YTKyXCPpG7r53c8HiuAqEccBo%2BM6tR2IYKqAlS18npJRuRKiJ5tJeHPIJZLBGct88RunFqsbu2nIb8mrtqm5%2FlELX4tDMKIvOQfXUH5gkdquuOp2sRy2yBzCKYBPVDTIMCR3oTGh%2FWD71eUGG2utTQsjwiptuxxAZ986ZUbgLV0Ud2Lg2i%2BVdbdDLHaVDwfoi5VtY8DIsnQUGY8sQjssNs2O243jCPEaPgITS66eoD%2F03IlDi4gGKFMQXj1m2YzC%2Fv77ZYX%2BcAdB3h2McOytDzIWYyVNfZrcOrlmbAKy4WRmP2u5%2F9NHQrP5d7b9Sk7J1jVvVfz6%2FSaRErr2cCIkyZdbkYKQjA3H%2BUuW7sHstORUcN%2BaEd8OO1PVsNFViH%2FVoJJ%2FTFXgOo3CPP9H9FG%2FwiKPnB7Xs%2F4z5ToSGSJw8M5eELz8aX95FaXEfSbZm65FS8zOKG7iUILgc1HS%2FThttH9qZd%2FdMwrajJDtRiYmM67u2GS9W25s5yPDGBqSH6MKNQ%2FncdYYgBBekNcexj5U4UNS2S5rs0KU9vzhrLj0UxzX2s4tHxae7WXRZP7KP4vLgzdE5gn9Qnm4piUTiFixn6Wiv40zbrFhaJCkyROF5%2FXo9Vca36rGBnhJxr5zKZzM00mHRjcLINc8CLPOWaHFpcsf3xR9TnlWjwMtmmQrvi%2BLDH1oi%2BO%2FpOjwp6mhFr7%2BwGejTyeYFuGbPlkF6WV0MihEXypiB%2B6yPRoOp7ZsXXYqobnc0O4o2CRk0JAHFsFBVz86al4gclVCkmUlbCGhjeUTsOIKRpJnlBwXlFT6wVWpnV762A4du3PQAw5vaCxa64ftqyMBhWofjTFTo5pjW2igwLWXzh5x5Ld5q2wE6XXFL79edG7tOHkGTYooj2TsQTzE7JljnJb%2BGQFCkB9xXXwvshskOqlsaeq%2FjDo%2FF4Kl6wvGonxxvDt0UMMUoPBWBrOhcHga%2F2vEjm9rMz%2B2mCTUz9OCCCMMHW9reTWRFzZUTLfQWYiru97MXCX8HZW8FI1zlM8TJb%2FCwOSD4LjLKzd1N4VSJCiTXOg9cw3I%2BE6UKuT8oqjHPNO0olFgpvQOL0B9rk%2Fq1jbHWe9UDq5kWOmMZKzOZ8eaGB3vFdgUXes5Djbd7b2oPd%2FGXMkhltMFioFYfsadGujcdx798DxJYm7iA05PV3KmFG5uBP12yVAjYDa1viRit6ZujG1xtZlaUUMxx1yRMIh18%2FgciKFdaNYwLAt26yFrxtO99%2B1sdxWepTJeZb%2BwiNqh81D%2Bfrgg%2B71Ck%2BvQhNfhfQt9L2%2BBRi%2F5c4opNRMQPSFgYWMAwt9wpxZ1yniYtHVVSmdodyufhV8BB4jP710q%2FQjgs9%2Fn%2FheYlw0jhdZo0cg22VBU4cTyttMqVk667VkR6AqT2dsQTuQLiqATFtOaX5ieGcqcLs7i%2BqHgUJnAGMqjko%2F4ZghLKjCf8L0i7YbPdEsQywUvH%2FtLiDl9CJsURlz3EQs9DzkWdMXTHv8hq03Do0sJvwbcGy9sHpFv5p52HNJbkrgzxMBYiZy%2BxSItW56RIywHewxh&s2s=1
https://privacy.us.criteo.com/adcenter?cppv=3&cpp=JldrE9snmvmJQO2rdeL9vSUe7ld5NID1Q3uz2M_2JjVldVHdn1rmCwIYOK_PvyQ0wxgryMfwolagEg5Kb6ixZ2Mwdx4kUF-fYn2oyFYqkKB-9WBjvM_F_s0GM2BUQszv7LdK8JjnCgzMEQTrmi5W_DPisc0
https://trends.revcontent.com/click.php?d=IQ3DlHRP0%2FaDQ%2BgHs6VSc7YAkdzCsQBxEeB6id4XtzWxOlDFNluGd6c8qX4gjxpgxEwV2TadsOCUYTlHSYZ5jNmoS6dWXOWUCW4MQVtnAeDNvYirWxjyV0ce3OOZtrRE87e9wvTMyBex9NuZ6GBopjIoid4hFzfowkerOc9mcd%2FBzksX8Sd9K%2FFXB3tYnUf5g07J06vZIu3m1PP%2FValiID%2B7qdSQFLua8fiCv1dhPD6TTvfUvLi%2FDPJ8B04YlitA8PQCUsOxkPi21ei1UFEmWz1uHZafeIG8CiUX01LlTM3sy0EwUvn6ykEC3yqkrrfFphWOPvKS8ZghJGd%2BUjrG5Cobgv0PoqhjyPWUhT1QabKCETHRQbSqGcExKdv7OijSe4OdPqxhXCyZwwLRG%2BiOGdH7esnhj%2F6FiaXEAtPYEvau9KembCM3%2F%2B3cabb8xjV%2B%2BbjColRmqQIyxih0A0NHDdMqfER9wvWbE8%2BjR37WSG5fuavGyJzbUSdnUBjVm2CgM%2Fb2P0LVG%2Fm70AwG2IxENwkqOUqmwotxp48jHYwwrhBtHFVbDZJ4qS1fDnnLSK48RMbDI%2Fc2gJkM63B9wXwHWkQRr9frXpC49DYvAxghGEd24AYHDMlMAHSs4JwNKqMlJ23n2j9IyXtLdtZooIbz1at1xtAcaQypZeNgQcMevf7ziD3JXG0tEw8lvxdP9%2FE8OuTxzW7Uev%2FlsuYw1aWFnc%2FL8GQzW2FCNlDEgqTWetW780NX6frA5qvYfDRRpH78YUgwD8Ltca8Atsz3PpXr8llimGZj9Ri2AsIhvzF2CqNkeQDemlVkoLf8FsknLfJzH%2BySkWYCVskoD9gTDZwO2H1rRtCpeOO5JxCRPYzzVT7%2BYkVfCzWQzpYoAHDDw%2F4%2FXbn70ViWmtZlC02oMQg0Kvnb4%2F0UfTru%2BRTIov3Hw5InxRK%2FTKg0bogGMh4Th%2FSj5P5VB0jk2UynWTdXAKuPhBm5%2FmUvapDbnN7JfCqb0DR6I%2F7kH2Ky8ITvPxrTTQ8QZeXE56CCc956DYzSG7AGgwVGQPu4aFOaAeierEliNTRORF0nYd8XwJOooH4L9pCXgWNppRciyWIdgEjMSgjdbILeXzcaooWN07NAX8duHTTPQORAFj0XL%2F%2Bneu%2FQtGC3VIxYD2MDJ6oVoH2j9DOLT9lAmfaj2p1noLs0WeMRHMzIXME1p5ObrSuLukUsuN4YPESlCs1dyDRuG0K33adPKTrTHNNWBP1LKFmRlatV7%2BjiZvVjLi8Br6xlK7qV0TTISDVfkZq61J%2BKhNHC1yBYTxNqH%2F7faTa%2FYSByFo9nbwL24Haq6h5UNPPLXGw8VRtqt4LUiMM0ETA1EBnkRUzb2aJYqh4zwINoCa3CjEeM1b0q2ghTqGLZaSWUeoeq7fen6Ez%2FbnNEAhDDq%2BsOczJ%2BA9lraeYYGbvHINAZzFDCyvd3Ozttejz7KZOnvmuXG342iW9Pb%2FVQDamEExHHq1pR2WcE8Gw%2F7cuh%2FgfIMu2t6h2OLH007rqFM%2BhR1iRzFMtgw0m6zsV%2BKljg07lbTw%2B3YDs8bB1f2r1R53gCLTSWkJ97MQT3BeGz%2BSvQVPaSGMJn65bbgxCOeJ6%2BPjkWfZF3JX00GLvx8KytTznvdPWsV1JM1V5Lz7DuruOOTB2KZAQQ%2FUATocq3B7H%2Fk5TLSl%2Fh%2FO3BukpcLLzKjBYz0L%2FwU8WXwWAc96p3fjuCL1ctgoYsSTpmKOTjDWehpL6E%2BnH%2BZkHYkhLeJFmkGA80M%2BWFFBF3y6dIY3ZAp%2B%2FUhIhIxwPAgcEU%2BQ%2FyKXofkdqsaDFK%2BcUvvZdlQ1DmWmOXMXfswb5WKjQf4y8%2B2LQsT1IKrQA2goQAxHSjvh7lApVf%2BhS6hoHRKNDQKvijsdRrYAeASPi3STjcjySgc14IxQbSSe1FwoT6m8iUZaejcYRmzUq%2Fv1Liw0ADoy6EaUFn%2FdjQMpqkxE4KWAQ7IWOmHjuHBvjKIdZcJH3rtwyhYnmlKDFWmlm7KOVR5J0Xu6QoeKBaXLrG%2FSH%2B5YiWwCCcPQtPsIszqmQUEZ2y7Beq9A3TfmMYSmqH0Zqiaz6h9B5eDKHRU07eptwM0K4TI9v%2F95Ac9F7GY%2BRhEN7z6yzHpsqioC2P0v%2BxuQDkgZPGvOMk3MqJojawuXdRellkmJDEa2blBj%2BGq5kAaGSydEBzuhkPBbYu7tgt01NM9pVV4ligIqXgHMC55O%2FJnjxIek83ANRMPQcLGIW2jPPDN8mvpi19hVNmGLFzYOek5eC76nJsCQ2XTE4AHS1247WJMR4pqiC7lXW68FKKyNUUf9NM3hZkDx%2BC5Ga3TOXFYgFVxDncAG1BnezZZsFI%2FQpR6jh%2BUeWUbnLi4pZajyM2LujnDSsq4nVrmVAirzv42fHhYk4%2BRk%2FUP6F2eUWdDQ826DLR0prAgn%2Fj&s2s=1
https://trends.revcontent.com/click.php?d=DGw5iv2JWwvJeLeyGd7zfd0nS3tTZB2TLsV1xotmTnkjsOZa%2BpjwcCf5elQQIenPKNnceQQkuZQn2xAxV%2FmawZOKxVSjUl4uiRHU4lSJLCRC5tbQcXmykl%2F735RXmnuhCymMiJF3XtlTcvAT0ZhZ7TeE%2F1ZuHdvmFRLcaie8oyNvJap4nsF5EVMP0QLWBq3%2BOricQsHJ13GbeFASVQXmizSQvnjwcd%2FymxBVbeOMY9odu%2FWVCwDtSdon1ErpwipQpUDImQu0aYe9Lyx%2Fr8IOwrHIS2pfSd1lklxf7g6zsI8N7%2B84JJUvnd%2BPnPo7qWZQTYe7qUwmXKQxXQE3IOmaGrkgIlOf4sO91iCK326LNPvTWUpjNPd%2BVyotQdwPtew9oK%2Bo0RG2%2F6MDJ3LgiDmMM5mbEZNtjItiEiiNYIppqOQyj1YTE1bkipiMZj6q57pvDk09F%2F%2Fc5wp6clxXwL8WBGX2K%2By38kSl0fBmuSoHMxxmCMkUaNXCvolMcUDktAJPRyNAsvK%2FeO7oNdCChZvRKL9WL97m6flobEYhtCIulH3S8cOj8VN8ewvUky7QOo8U37s3Dmq%2BIfJ4vlYh76jmn0P9eMhs3EP9xAkKwAc8nfsq6L1h2ACpm16YyQlYOjXCyPS%2BJEHsrGkARmQfWnSIF2WI%2Fvo0law2l4pqUJXDhSD0NLXk0O6r5a97I60wZA9aKULKTjglcxnlk2y08HndMagaesUaeMJhfHLakYUTM7y23kTkH0b2QcYiITcwMZZ1vBlFIX9%2FBS0G4ly2DU%2BoxMKhSVZD5FyyZ7BpH%2FjVhaHBEuvL4ELkEAuBXDQyxyetAjxoi3jokzz6MDF0hAfpVODCOdsLOU6ZyGXXKiIcksULHAUXB2k4fL3c0FVFY2vNnUAFV3mlQJzW%2Fnf9DFzrLeK1JAvj0VUw7SpaCVcrCTR2SNr3GgPCaOWhJDveXxESKzOj2yuLDfx%2BbIs5YCnYLkQuMx1olgymxiMhJngFR0MG8hzrRiw8D%2FAXxfzyLaxzarky%2B4OdlA5BJoQ3c%2Fbwa%2BJkEsuBwts8O%2BiCxBZIm1lsr6LM0h8VQHFyRBoK%2BOTgUjo6r7g0mio5VfZUP4%2FJFCMSQVjIvDnBDU2WdXQPJCOg455i0jJnHJNmonoQHkVpI%2F19GrSh3TG6iPh7FgOCXzhzSdhhQqv2x1JSBJX%2BYuhgJ3OZKFkQMgiF5GCrgzSFrzWG0nv0eATzWnriGW9sybvMB1RSetUyxWYcE7oWbbuNV5SNI4uFwSMFhwwoLTAzzd%2B5IMcP%2BaXvz4JkW0Dfp%2FO8Eq52yrH1t4P7uKMjACBi4JvAoQ27wJhA2mY9uT1gMd0B%2B96W5dtAspGpXt%2FpweKspRFHYLI4d%2BL1RRLl8jsRiAow%2FoFUOjw0lptjy%2BlOq4i2WdTQAwsE2Gesqr46ZfmoHnvUsVOQ9r6kFrc3LKhiv%2BBaCVBYDYIT%2BV0psDdu1hwYpIn2hkWCQ9oYSH%2Ft%2BYggcTHgmQn4NXjaaps2mPXuF2PE9TwzkUa9NB8ctl36bLoJO642tuB6ESUXokg%2BwT8Ggl0%2BzOYIX88NY5ITrzDde9fLZ3TziliKdI4KBGAoFG%2BQ7FM0ceUssVDIazmlUwvAsSwP4JexjJeObKfHTDSvDpiViW2L%2B%2B7LsvDhIenqP3MJ5nOeoQO%2BFmLPe35%2Budy2O90DhpxVL%2BwaeD7p5OHggG9e3AJ2ZoDznav6gZQccwjzMvI66kkLVQlaXa1f4QFukJQ58qpTM83BMdkyqX40np9xqvvlIKhjf6w3yLFNj6u3lhcmL%2FDZu29lpVPWGtktQe6cvGhEVDrZAhyvp1APhLTq4sqj%2BBh6ioLhUTum&s2s=1
https://privacy.us.criteo.com/adcenter?cppv=3&cpp=HChZoNsnmvmJQO2rdeL9vSUe7ld5NID1Q3uz2M_2JjVldVHdynUJxbuqr8hqMfy2L1aBp7p9U6_9vszi-dKToFFWK7kFBFUmntNIN6WOvbsLsLI2TaInxVibxr5Eaxg5odsK6XzYd7dGjfI_gBqmsbUbZab5AMXjZcFx9TnCrNV9rY9h
https://trends.revcontent.com/click.php?d=R9p07KRI4gdoF0V%2BqsILnQRY0%2BqCKlUeCZ62gSxDXs7HIOcx9PQwjRT3LktUhWDgslpQvmXV14ifEKD37jbVEaH6NsR%2B5KbZKnEreQiRge54fGz1y6hzcwWQkcTDWaH9%2BKZ9ALlb6rWwpyEJ3cZ77%2FO0KrVnccVbeHOUlPEYsfrVdJlFMard5B4FZRD2QNNePyZW4eomr6T2PWDeYCd6d4aj3%2BGp%2BpbQlbJ2djU2VXC0gJa6XrCrCy1LckrBrUBx2iz4cu%2BB4uhSUXd%2Bfc6cJOpLIxIZsGSLqDcts9ca8P2%2B1DaesoCjg6kTZx%2FnEA09JPvtUrGunQK4XqSePNLQ8sPT%2FT1s9rPpHTw0eoQVDT%2B9dRIk4nVlNIVzLaZztQamKhsHTOALrvZGzDkax4nCKKRQ5wdG7mRLo1y85BuTMXLZLkGVoRVOiWGDDJ%2FnUvp1q3UWvNPiGiLlZLyqkWBADMuT8053FWd1pMjqar01cYKVcEofUshzbRKNVfuIbw89lPbjLdZL7dlmFsrEiYL1crGMsig%2B1OQEadGJhND%2Fd26dhfMwdgTwBKzaX8c9v1M5krTj5xlbFrBLYkQLdN8ArL6X3Rj6APJPzDOvrYGOHNqhZtecWLGzGtM%2Ba4FbN4RYUkqWOAYMNRuRKNBGsJCt2JuXwVjvy%2BQXsxslXLLDhsbFBbB7jT3Xm8iPCDrU43UVqhzbvV3RZPYE5l2LWTL4j2vyVmhV1Vt3WLQXBtzDqfCEQ2EzehfUaeCOogd2p7IwEObqj9mVRw7cM0Un8PB%2BmeBEkwP0rchyk%2BCPUlihwQN8TWBOVxWAkMwpwJCL6isA0WB8kyj7pwpA%2B30JReVl5wNURCFFVNt9lOQ50PcXCSgCV2oCp7PITf0uO9nSkDlcZFDWBkWNTTIJc9JvHzMfgkcWAE5kqETaPJGyJ4sLvkkAzoDiHEslm7u9H6ro903iJk48DUWivUaSGgGg9UtAj587F9IpTnsP0eX3ILcpZyIOg9aOryZo8Q6c3GosDxd9Y61IabR8n4dNbWfWLU4XDu%2FT612z2dKt220%2B7LELnvtnPa8%2BNTNEt%2Fw9bPEc5VAkTLb%2B%2FzdTjK%2Fx7EEbpswTPF6ILyjajonWfDdPhBhylsAn9S0LxMrvBgBm%2BQS9Z01Fu%2BVdcLP5Polk2JScLa%2BWjbYE%2BsqiehSxG3%2Fa96%2FL2EFk7J8TeBD%2BCw5zug6fy96DpCE%2Bum0KS36WaYjXmdjsnBLFA7vx5NNRB5bvr54ieQXbuaMBF5ixZjsGyZl6f2adScCozWn18Nc66Ve%2Bt7ZftUM0CMUzR0kJp%2Ffg6qofZka0dH%2BAYVGkddiFQtffV9Xtet0wNpQLmluvImiWCx3FofAo6oRVq%2BzcuzlYGW42cc4FNKDosV9AjmocmZz8gDMfg28bKedN9fSReunIpxZPZg7Tl%2BMRaKMAd7lgw%2FTifGSWA2ayV7zRFbiZ5%2FYPfCjso6FyfVVSlt5AVcku9UTFupFYl5IcICJP0Psv8OiLzK7Jdttolv5lH8IjhkCV8%2BRHuXQooi6%2FpmjBXjuNNlPD3uilU0EqeK7eVQGdl%2Bzsn%2F2NsfKXfML7DQj4Ec9XCD3N%2FDq9Mw%2Fm8%2Baq7G6xCKBE9Vj4UXernSdofHmFUoB41xSL%2Brk0oI%2F0pgGxyUGBDgU7QyHz6GrdxZbby2mJ1AGMcnHYqChh3uE24K5RJ7wrs5oXTwj9BLDeAsKCyOr%2Fypcm1RkVKJn3BHj2TAJrqmP1TO%2FiqjzKbGw%2BRFuaC2GjdmGCIwSkhtKxYE%2BreuQMmCFZTUOTIPQsuJjOQGP%2Bu5PhfOUQS%2B1FokCHYafIfBRfT6Tmms%2BuK4CBPwGn391sEozsnTFMWffgZb508E%2F4LqO8ACrRD7W%2FVAq0XDEw7TTPP3kDGF7tuqK7vhFg8OLzxUnhG1thwNU6jmuD0zmmFzzPBuG6fjINvMhf3UBx5XwBIOHj%2BEfrq8e5bqCyxjTguzV1tVr3JZuin8dCODkXjE%2BKvB2MVpEnLKLGwlbRdT3jHryTsbwpABDzMx7kI8OKtJMLBuJxZIAQeeKUVPHSJ7f9qTpcB%2FXVWZDg40bPYWmIIUyYJpvsfpe1AGrC%2Fe83NG48PxIUGsTqVdZI1lgg6HK73ZMGkYJyhbVh0gp6D7l%2FbFuyBxGt44QfVouvPE8V5n6voVAnpJ9X6oifhMQGrLI0pJwaK4pAGfflTnfEQcKLPup%2BoV0oggAak8JFNl%2FDf6HucMDxdGuGMtCKp%2B%2Bq5Y2ot5cw8SNAVtGMngOHSCGt0wavEAdT8kjvxmvMEU3lIM21%2BmfdUcbn0NbclXtVzfcE2nzwxIpM6f6eFYdZ7RtGpsfjsLuNYnQ8XxoLVIvU%2FvqPRkNLFUl0MdoU%2BnQg%2FgTQIA%3D%3D&s2s=1


NEWS

Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe's newly elected 
chairwoman ready to face COVID-19 challenges
Marcella Corona Reno Gazette Journal Published 6:00 p.m. PT Dec. 29, 2020 Updated 7:47 p.m. PT Dec. 29, 2020

Janet Davis has seen the devastation that the novel coronavirus has wreaked upon her people and in 
other tribal communities.

On Dec. 26, Davis was elected as councilwoman for the Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe.

“I was excited,” Davis, 60, said in a recent interview. “I will be only the second chairwoman elected to the 
position in all of history in our tribe.”

Davis, who currently serves on the Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe Council, said several of its 
intergenerational families have been affected by COVID-19. That includes a few of her own family 
members, some of whom succumbed to the illness.

According to the Pyramid Lake Tribal Health Clinic, there have been a total of 171 cases, 127 recoveries 
and four deaths. As of Dec. 29, 40 individuals remain quarantined at home. 

News: Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe rolls out vaccines for elders, essential workers

The Tribal Health Clinic has also received the Moderna COVID-19 vaccine and began to vaccinate elders 
within the community this week. That includes residents who are 70 years old or older. 

The pandemic has also impacted the tribe economically after community leaders decided to isolate the 
tribe from outsiders as a precautionary measure earlier this year.

The Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe is governed by 10 tribal council members who are elected bi-annually in 
December.

According to the tribe’s election results, Davis beat former Chairman Vinton Hawley, who was previously 
elected in 2016, in the general election by 14 votes. Hawley could not be reached for comment.

Meanwhile, Anthony Sampson, who is currently serving as chairman, lost the election in the primaries.

Davis will give up her seat on the council once she's sworn in on Jan. 8.

“I just want to be involved with our community and help our people do better,” she said.
“That’s my passion and always will be my passion. That’s what inspired me to run for the position.”

Davis, a former elementary school teacher for the Washoe County School District, said she’s looking 
forward to continuing to serve her community as chairwoman.

She previously served on the Pyramid Lake High School Board and was formerly on the committee for 
the Indian Health Services, an agency within the Department of Health and Human Services responsible 
for providing health services to Native Americans.

According to a report from Indian Country Today, Four Directions Inc., a native voting rights advocacy 
organization, prevailed in federal court to establish polling places on the reservation just shortly before 
the 2016 presidential election.

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 60 of 97

https://www.rgj.com/
https://www.rgj.com/news/
https://www.rgj.com/staff/4406593002/marcella-corona/
https://www.rgj.com/story/news/2020/12/29/pyramid-lake-paiute-tribe-rolls-out-covid-19-vaccines-elders-essential-workers/4082658001/


According to a report from Indian Country Today, Four Directions Inc., a native voting rights advocacy 
organization, prevailed in federal court to establish polling places on the reservation just shortly before 
the 2016 presidential election.

Davis said community leaders created a plan to address voting concerns in the midst of the pandemic. 
Residents could drive by the voting poll, honk their horn and receive a ballot.

“It was like a drive-in,” she said. “There were 482 registered voters and 339 of them voted.”

Still, she said many tribal members who live off the reservation did not have an opportunity to vote—
mostly because they’re not allowed to.

“I think maybe the process needs to change so more people feel like they’re included,” Davis said, citing 
her Tribal Constitution. “Only those members that reside within the boundaries of the Pyramid Lake 
Paiute Tribe were allowed to vote. So, off-reservation tribal members don’t get to vote. That was part of 
why people were upset.”

More: For Pyramid Lake Paiute Reservation, ballot collection will help its members vote Her biggest 
challenge was reaching people during her campaign. She said she dropped off flyers door-to-door. Still, 
she didn’t feel safe doing that.

“So, I had to do mail-outs, but I wasn’t able to greet people," Davis said. "That was a challenge to reach 
out to people during the pandemic.”

Steven Wadsworth was also elected as vice-chairman, beating his opponent, Sherry Ely-Mendes, by 65 
votes.

According to Davis, only four positions were open on the council. Edward Ely III, Harriet Brady and 
Nathan Dunn were all voted onto the council, each to serve two-year terms.

Davis said Natalia Gonzales was also elected to finish out the remainder of Davis' term on the council.

Davis' hope is to reunite her people.

“We have suffered from the pandemic, and we haven’t been able to gather as one,” Davis said. “Our 
funerals traditionally, the whole community comes out and feed, and we go through the whole process of 
burying our people.

“But we haven’t been able to celebrate those lives or pay our last respects to them like we normally 
would.”

Marcella Corona is a reporter covering local underrepresented communities in Northern 
Nevada.Support her work by subscribing to RGJ.com.

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 61 of 97

https://www.rgj.com/story/news/politics/2020/09/28/for-paiute-tribe-ballot-harvesting/3564340001/


NEWS

With low snowpack, region could be
headed into second drought year
Amy Alonzo Reno Gazette Journal
Published 3:25 p.m. PT Jan. 4, 2021

Northern Nevada and the eastern Sierra are entering the start of what could be a second
drought year as area snowpack is already below normal.

As of Monday morning, snowpack was 71 to 78 percent of median in the Lake Tahoe, Truckee
and Carson basins. 

In the Tahoe basin, there is an average of 7.2 inches of water content at measuring sites,
down from the usual median amount of 10 inches. 

At Mt. Rose, there are 9.2 inches of water content in 36 inches of snow -- the median is
usually 14.5 inches of water.

A series of storms this week could drop the equivalent of 1 inch of water in the mountains
and boost those numbers about 10 percent, but “it doesn’t make up for the fact that we are
behind where should be,” said Jeff Anderson, hydrologist for the National Resource
Conservation Service Nevada, which measures annual snowpack.

Data collected so far this year show that precipitation totals are already 7.2 inches below
average for the water year, which started October 1.

The region was 15.7 inches below average for precipitation during the last water year,
meaning the region is about 22.9 inches behind normal, Anderson said. An average water
year brings 44.1 inches of moisture to the mountains.

The area relies on three to four large atmospheric rivers annually to produce substantial
snowpack. 

“These are storms that go on one after another after another dropping 4 to 5 feet of snow,”
Anderson said.

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 62 of 97

https://www.rgj.com/
https://www.rgj.com/news/
https://www.rgj.com/staff/4406961002/amy-alonzo/


The region hasn’t seen one since winter of 2019-20, according to the National Weather
Service. 

With last year’s drought, the region started drawing down on area reservoirs. Anderson said
if this year stays below average and next year is also a drought year, local water users will feel
the effects such as reduced water allocations or conservation measures. 

Lake Tahoe is currently at 43 percent of capacity, down from 74 percent last year. Truckee
Basin reservoirs, including Donner, Independence, Stampede, Boca and Prosser, are at 41
percent of capacity, down from 75 percent last year, and Lahontan Reservoir is at just 23
percent of capacity, down from 51 percent last year.

A side effect of the dry year the region has experienced so far is that a lack of rain in the
mountains prior to recent snowstorms left the soil dry under the snow. In the spring, the first
inch of two of snow will seep into the ground rather than into area streams, continuing to
impact reservoir levels.

“If it turns out this winter is a bust, we’re now in the second year of a drought,” Anderson
said. “Conditions are getting more serious for needing a good snowpack.”

Amy Alonzo covers the outdoors, recreation and environment for Nevada and Lake
Tahoe. Reach her at aalonzo@gannett.com or (775) 741-8588. Here's how you can support
ongoing coverage and local journalism. 

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 63 of 97

https://offers.rgj.com/specialoffer


HOME > FARM BUSINESS > REGULATORY > WATER

     

Wider swings of "want" and "plenty" for California water supplies could raise the attraction of future's exchange water contracts to

commercial growers as they try to mitigate their water costs.

The water futures contract idea is merely a financial tool; It does not wheel an ounce of
water.

Water futures trading index elicits questions, concerns

Todd Fitchette

Serving: West    Register Log In

Crops Livestock Markets & Quotes Farm Business Max Armstrong

Regions Events COVID-19

      Weather Continuing Education WATCH: This Week in Agribusiness Advertise Podcasts

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 64 of 97

https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjstDanCztjPc5wrZiUmTMCqLuyI0v_E18ZlHbZozIxC0SiSXO1A81r0QRP9Y4DgTlnHg4-o5L0oPWJ-TGPx2fXyDp2zVSs-6pEKHQ3coKQAaX10mbIBpezroYt4NpTwBud-FZrAm_5wVIDlXwkNkIu5e9HMJmLjY2Va9SpRp_L5JKsG1lKHUj7Su0RFg-nytsbVuViQ1W_Zw__hWft5-mih1oO50xCcNlr1Bq-Sr2DSe5uUuLmmZyrLoaKiRka-xETG6e-RzWwZpiC7rkKMMDRBgqvFXI-yp6bPY1C10-BoM3Mxk_VwdPAArCTGN49S3lH76kQjOY-3hQlwdrkxbHLjH39aMD2DZPm8odifpo4f7xjowcSyF2gE&sig=Cg0ArKJSzFkuKF1UgSAW&adurl=https://www.farmprogress.com/agenda/sign-farmprogress-text-alerts
https://www.farmprogress.com/
https://www.farmprogress.com/farm-business
https://www.farmprogress.com/farm-business/regulatory
https://www.farmprogress.com/farm-business/regulatory/water
https://www.farmprogress.com/penton_modal/nojs/print/428417
https://www.farmprogress.com/penton_modal/nojs/forward/428417/0
http://www.facebook.com/sharer.php?u=https://www.farmprogress.com/water/water-futures-trading-index-elicits-questions-concerns&t=Water%20futures%20trading%20index%20elicits%20questions,%20concerns
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=https://www.farmprogress.com/water/water-futures-trading-index-elicits-questions-concerns&title=Water%20futures%20trading%20index%20elicits%20questions,%20concerns&summary=Trading%20water%20futures&nbsp;in%20California%20is%20nothing%20new,%20according%20to%20those%20involved%20with%20water%20and%20financing.%20While%20those%20in%20the%20finance%20industry%20say%20it%20will%20bring%20a%20sense%20of%20transparency%20to%20water%20pricing,%20a%20longtime%20water%20manager%20says%20the%20realities%20remain%20to%20be%20seen.&source=Farm%20Progress
http://twitter.com/share?url=https://www.farmprogress.com/water/water-futures-trading-index-elicits-questions-concerns&text=Water%20futures%20trading%20index%20elicits%20questions,%20concerns
http://pinterest.com/pin/create/button/?url=https://www.farmprogress.com/water/water-futures-trading-index-elicits-questions-concerns&description=Trading%20water%20futures&nbsp;in%20California%20is%20nothing%20new,%20according%20to%20those%20involved%20with%20water%20and%20financing.%20While%20those%20in%20the%20finance%20industry%20say%20it%20will%20bring%20a%20sense%20of%20transparency%20to%20water%20pricing,%20a%20longtime%20water%20manager%20says%20the%20realities%20remain%20to%20be%20seen.&media=
https://www.farmprogress.com/
https://www.farmprogress.com/ag_supersite_modal/location/West
https://www.farmprogress.com/search/node
https://www.farmprogress.com/penton_modal/nojs/register/basic
https://www.farmprogress.com/penton_modal/nojs/login
https://www.farmprogress.com/
https://www.farmprogress.com/
https://www.farmprogress.com/
https://www.farmprogress.com/
https://www.farmprogress.com/farm-business/farm-life/max-armstrong
https://www.farmprogress.com/
https://www.farmprogress.com/events
https://www.farmprogress.com/coronavirus
https://www.facebook.com/FarmPress4/
https://www.farmprogress.com/taxonomy/term/31/brands_feed/rss.xml
https://twitter.com/farmpress
https://www.farmprogress.com/weather
https://agceuonline.com/
https://www.farmprogress.com/week-agribusiness
https://marketing.farmprogress.com/request-information
https://www.farmprogress.com/farm-progress-podcasts


Todd Fitchette | Jan 04, 2021

Trading water futures in California is nothing new, according to those involved with water and financing.

While those in the finance industry say it will bring a sense of transparency to water pricing, a longtime

water manager says the realities remain to be seen.

The water futures contract idea is merely a financial tool; It does not wheel an ounce of water. Unlike

other commodity futures trades, where the buyer is guaranteed the volume of commodity purchased

through the futures exchange, it does not work that way with water, according to Tom Birmingham,

general manager of Westlands Water District in central California.

It cannot work that way, Birmingham continues, because of the complexities of how water is conveyed

and stored.

"What is di�erent about water as a commodity is the ability to transport it," Birmingham said.

"I think about this in the context of existing futures markets, but water is not like soybeans or pork

bellies in large part because the availability of water is determined by factors beyond anyone's control,"

he continued. "Unlike moving these other commodities, it is very di�icult to transport water from one

region to the other, so I'm going to be very interested to see how the trading of water futures as a

commodity works."

Roland Fumasi, head of Rabobank's RaboResearch Food and Agribusiness division for North America,

agrees in part.

"These futures contracts don't do anything to help growers get more water but they do allow growers

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 65 of 97

https://www.farmprogress.com/author/Todd-Fitchette
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjsv_nZJOWw3P8OEPAgRjc6ug8eZNVN6Um_zdEv5rHejCtO-qH0F3m3bQrhQZsH16fLCZTSlu22NdSRaFK12U2BUDd9nhPmqKzyebFG8RubrZmCZiqOnj2fRvTkbxaVzrdj5rHI1zZZW3clmhxAjAzBulWuF0mbsu0P2_9hGshcfdx8BqBtgAN0w32cOXUHY9X6KuReImiVIP9xGoNmEw5nh-CLsdYbU3bMn5Ahei4xqkB5YI3yB-sn3yzpEMIK594anYfHLxamIw6DF-Hla0WGSyAqVvQqRwzN6qpGeAezF-X2iR1ruCXUJcnn2xBnYWa-_64RtVUIJqr3vaef8sYcTeHvGxquLzj4fUrTPJZpi-CNrCIVs&sig=Cg0ArKJSzI3EvPqtwGFs&adurl=http://agceuonline.com/


"These futures contracts don't do anything to help growers get more water, but they do allow growers

to hedge their bets if they think the price is going to go up," he said.

Birmingham admits he's unsure how it will all work in practicality.

"There are lots of unanswered questions with this," he said.

Water exchange

According to Fumasi, the Nasdaq Veles California Water Index sets a price once a week based on an 
average price for water among four southern California water districts and the spot market trades of 
surface water. Water is traded in a per-acre-foot price with the index pricing water in 10-acre-foot 
shares. What this means practically, is if the index price listed is $500, the cost of a contract is $5,000 – 
or the index price multiplied by 10.

Fumasi said the exchange allows growers to protect themselves against rising water costs. In simple 
terms, if a grower believes the price of water six months from now, when he or she needs it, will be 
higher, the grower can purchase the futures contracts today then sell them in six months when the 
water price rises. Any net gain can then be used to pay for the water at the time of purchase.

For instance, if that $5,000 contract for 10-acre feet of water rises to $10,000 at the time the water is 
needed, the contract can be sold at the higher price with the capital gains from that purchase then 
available to buy the actual water, thereby "hedging" the water costs at the time of purchase. The 
grower is still responsible for covering the full market cost of water at the time of purchase if it is 
available.

That is one of the risks a buyer takes when purchasing a contract. Not only do they bet on the price 
going higher for water, but they also bet on its availability and the opportunity to wheel it where they 
need.

The 2021 growing season in California may be a good time to test this, Fumasi believes. The U.S. Climate 
Prediction Center points to a growing size and intensity of drought conditions in the West, including 
California. Barring a "miracle March" event that fills reservoirs and packs the Sierra Nevada with feet of 
snow, the outlook for water availability in 2021 is bleak.

The Veles Index shows that water contracts traded from January through early March 2020, hovered at 

just over $200 per contract. The contract price then rose sharply through mid-June to over $700 per 

contract, before retreating to about $500 by the end of 2020.

The Veles Index can be found online at https://www.nasdaq.com/market-activity/index/nqh2o

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 66 of 97



Controversial Lemmon Valley housing development revived, going back 
before Reno council

by Ben Margiott
Monday, January 4th 2021

RENO, Nev. (News 4 & Fox 11) — The controversial Lemmon Valley housing development 
known as 'Prado Ranch' is going back to the Reno City Council this month as the developer tries 
again to get the project approved.

Prado Ranch is a 1,500-acre master-planned community proposed by developer Lansing-Arcus
LLC.

The development has faced sti� opposition from nearby residents for years, in part because it
would be located in an area that �ooded during the historic winter of 2016-2017.

After more than a year when the project appeared to stall, the developer is expected to ask for
its approval again during the Reno City Council's Jan. 13 regular meeting.

Controversial Lemmon Valley housing development revived, going back before Reno council

It comes after the Reno Planning Commission unanimously voted against the project in Jan.
2019. Reno council members delayed a vote on Prado Ranch in March 2019, opting to
postpone a decision until June.  

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 67 of 97

https://eb2.3lift.com/pass?tl_clickthrough=true&redir=https%3A%2F%2Fgoogleads.g.doubleclick.net%2Fdbm%2Fclk%3Fsa%3DL%26ai%3DCVJfnbn__X9e0MI36-QP8gqaACOOu0aZaouC4i4gM-uHhh7wLEAEgvb75bmDJ9oeLvKSwGaAB9PD2mwPIAQaoAwHIAxOYBACqBNgBT9AzcJ3gZnnCDCPswTKDyJOUGkLQp0RlZ_5OKDWkZdLfcAgcIoK2NBKva-MyiVfZjsJzeo8vCtvHAZLPV7xSgkFkWoWK2ZOu2YJBBfbD80fUF2b-Hr4tYrZVXd2Pi-an6fpUS_3EIK_LZfCaE5w4VM61FR8jW_9DRQ9utnhz9EwlKRxivnRuLWpn7_iPG_iz5LIy4P8mWzGR_qNkgJvyT-N-j14Ar0qENm8Sx9aU58sVZ_2_4953zHN3QZkRzDWBCABG5JVHoMOl50m-5jphqCWFFhVnttqdwATxsNvQpQLgBAOQBgGgBjeAB_SOiWSoB9XJG6gH8NkbqAfy2RuoB5SYsQKoB6XfG6gHjs4bqAeT2BuoB7oGqAfs1RuoB-6WsQKoB6a-G6gH7NUbqAfz0RuoB5bYG9gHAdIIBwiAYRABGB3yCA5iaWRkZXItMjkyOTE1MrEJbCpCzpuLBviACgSYCwHICwGwE5DpvQq4E_0D0BMA2BMNiBQE2BQB%26num%3D1%26cid%3DCAASEuRoCfzMzmOiHZYeDiVsAZ9qbQ%26sig%3DAOD64_1fXY-HiauEJMvoH_x8SLHiJCiErw%26client%3Dca-pub-3380684538404130%26dbm_c%3DAKAmf-Bpp7uXbOH9XkxBwbMBm6QUzzYHoZCnIDWVLyjLRIRyZAtbAghEpU27kAqR50EpBxiWRTvTBKMVn-uJX518727_975vdw%26dbm_d%3DAKAmf-A9V6cuNyfjCdgfPrNeKDyy0qZ2O5YFWAKIIRN9lNDaylBIv324SGRZck-cmsD-SoYlR--8XCqlarf62U0ovsEE_pCVyOQpJS2OZHzR0ZsdR33HgGacH7ZIHBoNJJXgx8tlDYZx38qS5uHwLjfdmf-dND0xXGdlvchejB1vSbPm1GlAKAWfWP38hlV53zucbfk0DPxqO8nFJROpyoSHFN0FqTjj8j9rCVE-2jKMDOjhx8Wx4KiUCbAfwXLMQc0Qw1z4mKvL2n64HriweZoi9ZuE0XxAYfJ3PoBrUdOMkOShMkLxyn0W7_rezbwswE0OP--L3zwz%26adurl%3Dhttps%3A%2F%2Fwww.nytimes.com%2F2020%2F06%2F16%2Fsmarter-living%2Fhow-to-find-a-meditation-app-for-you.html%3Fkeplerid%3D0&bc=6.052&pr=4.842&brid=602&bmid=5989&biid=5989&aid=141472365712880088740&tid=5770325&bcud=6052&sid=29448&ts=1610579822&cb=93815
https://eb2.3lift.com/pass?tl_clickthrough=true&redir=https%3A%2F%2Fgoogleads.g.doubleclick.net%2Fdbm%2Fclk%3Fsa%3DL%26ai%3DCVJfnbn__X9e0MI36-QP8gqaACOOu0aZaouC4i4gM-uHhh7wLEAEgvb75bmDJ9oeLvKSwGaAB9PD2mwPIAQaoAwHIAxOYBACqBNgBT9AzcJ3gZnnCDCPswTKDyJOUGkLQp0RlZ_5OKDWkZdLfcAgcIoK2NBKva-MyiVfZjsJzeo8vCtvHAZLPV7xSgkFkWoWK2ZOu2YJBBfbD80fUF2b-Hr4tYrZVXd2Pi-an6fpUS_3EIK_LZfCaE5w4VM61FR8jW_9DRQ9utnhz9EwlKRxivnRuLWpn7_iPG_iz5LIy4P8mWzGR_qNkgJvyT-N-j14Ar0qENm8Sx9aU58sVZ_2_4953zHN3QZkRzDWBCABG5JVHoMOl50m-5jphqCWFFhVnttqdwATxsNvQpQLgBAOQBgGgBjeAB_SOiWSoB9XJG6gH8NkbqAfy2RuoB5SYsQKoB6XfG6gHjs4bqAeT2BuoB7oGqAfs1RuoB-6WsQKoB6a-G6gH7NUbqAfz0RuoB5bYG9gHAdIIBwiAYRABGB3yCA5iaWRkZXItMjkyOTE1MrEJbCpCzpuLBviACgSYCwHICwGwE5DpvQq4E_0D0BMA2BMNiBQE2BQB%26num%3D1%26cid%3DCAASEuRoCfzMzmOiHZYeDiVsAZ9qbQ%26sig%3DAOD64_1fXY-HiauEJMvoH_x8SLHiJCiErw%26client%3Dca-pub-3380684538404130%26dbm_c%3DAKAmf-Bpp7uXbOH9XkxBwbMBm6QUzzYHoZCnIDWVLyjLRIRyZAtbAghEpU27kAqR50EpBxiWRTvTBKMVn-uJX518727_975vdw%26dbm_d%3DAKAmf-A9V6cuNyfjCdgfPrNeKDyy0qZ2O5YFWAKIIRN9lNDaylBIv324SGRZck-cmsD-SoYlR--8XCqlarf62U0ovsEE_pCVyOQpJS2OZHzR0ZsdR33HgGacH7ZIHBoNJJXgx8tlDYZx38qS5uHwLjfdmf-dND0xXGdlvchejB1vSbPm1GlAKAWfWP38hlV53zucbfk0DPxqO8nFJROpyoSHFN0FqTjj8j9rCVE-2jKMDOjhx8Wx4KiUCbAfwXLMQc0Qw1z4mKvL2n64HriweZoi9ZuE0XxAYfJ3PoBrUdOMkOShMkLxyn0W7_rezbwswE0OP--L3zwz%26adurl%3Dhttps%3A%2F%2Fwww.nytimes.com%2F2020%2F06%2F16%2Fsmarter-living%2Fhow-to-find-a-meditation-app-for-you.html%3Fkeplerid%3D0&bc=6.052&pr=4.842&brid=602&bmid=5989&biid=5989&aid=141472365712880088740&tid=5770325&bcud=6052&sid=29448&ts=1610579822&cb=93815
https://eb2.3lift.com/pass?tl_clickthrough=true&redir=https%3A%2F%2Fgoogleads.g.doubleclick.net%2Fdbm%2Fclk%3Fsa%3DL%26ai%3DCVJfnbn__X9e0MI36-QP8gqaACOOu0aZaouC4i4gM-uHhh7wLEAEgvb75bmDJ9oeLvKSwGaAB9PD2mwPIAQaoAwHIAxOYBACqBNgBT9AzcJ3gZnnCDCPswTKDyJOUGkLQp0RlZ_5OKDWkZdLfcAgcIoK2NBKva-MyiVfZjsJzeo8vCtvHAZLPV7xSgkFkWoWK2ZOu2YJBBfbD80fUF2b-Hr4tYrZVXd2Pi-an6fpUS_3EIK_LZfCaE5w4VM61FR8jW_9DRQ9utnhz9EwlKRxivnRuLWpn7_iPG_iz5LIy4P8mWzGR_qNkgJvyT-N-j14Ar0qENm8Sx9aU58sVZ_2_4953zHN3QZkRzDWBCABG5JVHoMOl50m-5jphqCWFFhVnttqdwATxsNvQpQLgBAOQBgGgBjeAB_SOiWSoB9XJG6gH8NkbqAfy2RuoB5SYsQKoB6XfG6gHjs4bqAeT2BuoB7oGqAfs1RuoB-6WsQKoB6a-G6gH7NUbqAfz0RuoB5bYG9gHAdIIBwiAYRABGB3yCA5iaWRkZXItMjkyOTE1MrEJbCpCzpuLBviACgSYCwHICwGwE5DpvQq4E_0D0BMA2BMNiBQE2BQB%26num%3D1%26cid%3DCAASEuRoCfzMzmOiHZYeDiVsAZ9qbQ%26sig%3DAOD64_1fXY-HiauEJMvoH_x8SLHiJCiErw%26client%3Dca-pub-3380684538404130%26dbm_c%3DAKAmf-Bpp7uXbOH9XkxBwbMBm6QUzzYHoZCnIDWVLyjLRIRyZAtbAghEpU27kAqR50EpBxiWRTvTBKMVn-uJX518727_975vdw%26dbm_d%3DAKAmf-A9V6cuNyfjCdgfPrNeKDyy0qZ2O5YFWAKIIRN9lNDaylBIv324SGRZck-cmsD-SoYlR--8XCqlarf62U0ovsEE_pCVyOQpJS2OZHzR0ZsdR33HgGacH7ZIHBoNJJXgx8tlDYZx38qS5uHwLjfdmf-dND0xXGdlvchejB1vSbPm1GlAKAWfWP38hlV53zucbfk0DPxqO8nFJROpyoSHFN0FqTjj8j9rCVE-2jKMDOjhx8Wx4KiUCbAfwXLMQc0Qw1z4mKvL2n64HriweZoi9ZuE0XxAYfJ3PoBrUdOMkOShMkLxyn0W7_rezbwswE0OP--L3zwz%26adurl%3Dhttps%3A%2F%2Fwww.nytimes.com%2F2020%2F06%2F16%2Fsmarter-living%2Fhow-to-find-a-meditation-app-for-you.html%3Fkeplerid%3D0&bc=6.052&pr=4.842&brid=602&bmid=5989&biid=5989&aid=141472365712880088740&tid=5770325&bcud=6052&sid=29448&ts=1610579822&cb=93815
https://mynews4.com/
https://mynews4.com/watch
https://mynews4.com/weather


But Prado Ranch did not go before the council again in 2019 or 2020, as developers said they
needed more time to consider community feedback.

"At the applicants request, the application was continued so that they could work with RTC,
Washoe and Reno on a Regional solution to the ooding near Swan Lake. ̀ We gave them until
October of 2020 to come back with their changes. The applicant submitted their modi�ed
application and is now being reviewed by City Council at the January 13th meeting," city
spokesman Jon Humbert wrote in an emailed statement.

He also listed some of the key changes that have been made to the project since it last
appeared before council:

Sewer from the project will �ow to the Reno-Stead Water Reclamation Facility and not the
Lemmon Valley Wastewater Treatment Plant.
The new volume mitigation proposes a minimum of 1.3:1 and up to 1.4:1, which is an
increase from the previous plan of 1:1.
Additional requirement to add pedestrian �ashers at the intersection of Lemmon Drive
and Lear Blvd.
Additional street improvements on Lemmon Drive (southbound acceleration lane for left
turn movements out of the project).
Developer shall purchase or provide funding for purchase of a ladder truck.
Ten percent of the multifamily units shall be set aside for a�ordable housing to low-
income residents (80% or less AMI).

The Reno portion of the project is 729 acres split among 14 parcels on the east and west side of
Lemmon Drive from Patrician Dr. to Oregon Blvd.

61 ° 63 ° 57 °

Search Site

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 68 of 97

https://mynews4.com/
https://mynews4.com/watch
https://mynews4.com/weather


Prado Ranch map (Courtesy: Wood Rodgers)

Lemmon Valley residents, who have spoken out against the project at every step of the
process, told News 4-Fox 11 they planned to oppose it again this time. 

"I've got great neighbors and it's just a nice peaceful place to live," said Holly Lenz, who lives
across the street from land that would be designated for industrial use if the project is
approved.

I'm extremely worried about that going away ... it's a scary situation.

The project would bring roughly 1,500 housing units, including single-family homes and
apartments, to the area. Lansing-Arcus LLC's plans include widening Lemmon Drive to four
lanes and adding a tra�c signal at Patrician Dr., among other infrastructure improvements.

But perhaps the biggest concern from neighbors is about �ooding. Four years after the 2017
�oods, reminders of that winter remain. HESCO barriers are still standing along Lemmon Drive,
and water pumps are still on the side of the road there.

"Where's all that runo� going to go? It's all going to go into that lake (Swan Lake) and right back
into families' homes," said Danny Cleous, whose house �ooded in 2017.

61 ° 63 ° 57 °

Search Site

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 69 of 97

https://mynews4.com/
https://mynews4.com/watch
https://mynews4.com/weather


Developers plan to elevate Lemmon Drive and create retention basins 25% bigger than
required, according to their website.

Lansing-Arcus LLC has donated $1,000 to Councilwoman Bonnie Weber. Lansing Industries, Inc.
donated $250 each to councilmembers Oscar Delgado and Neoma Jardon, according to Nevada
Secretary of State records.

The virtual Reno City Council meeting is planned for Jan. 13 at 10 a.m. Click here to learn more
and submit public comment.

MORE TO EXPLORE

All Washoe County Schools on 2-hour delay on Thursday

Former Washoe County Judge, Sparks City Attorney Steven Elliott dies

Toilet paper flying off shelves as COVID-19 cases surge in Washoe County

SPONSORED CONTENT

The Legacy Report

Crystal Shield

Man Who Predicted 2020 Crash 45 Days Early Issues Next Major Warning

Finally - New Clear, Comfy, Sociable Mask, With Anti-Fog Arrives In United States

Getting this Treasure is impossible! Prove us wrong

61 ° 63 ° 57 °

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 70 of 97

https://www.nvsos.gov/SOSCandidateServices/AnonymousAccess/CEFDSearchUU/Search.aspx#contribution_search
https://www.reno.gov/government/city-council
https://mynews4.com/news/local/all-washoe-county-schools-on-2-hour-delay-on-thursday
https://mynews4.com/news/local/former-sparks-city-attorney
https://mynews4.com/newsletter-daily/toilet-paper-flying-off-shelves-as-covid-19-cases-surge-in-reno
https://senterly-crinetic.icu/d0c384b1-8f0d-4119-823d-8e399356f471?site=sinclair-mynews4&site_id=1150607&title=Man+Who+Predicted+2020+Crash+45+Days+Early+Issues+Next+Major+Warning&platform=Desktop&campaign_id=6153455&campaign_item_id=2951301235&thumbnail=http%3A%2F%2Fcdn.taboola.com%2Flibtrc%2Fstatic%2Fthumbnails%2F06ecf1c6050f1a8c0e8f31524c71819c.jpg&click_id=GiByJt7n1jFnKLWdbdBSNNyXEGdNwnVRb1PXk4Ex9LFHLyCi1T4o7dq2g_uPqI11#tblciGiByJt7n1jFnKLWdbdBSNNyXEGdNwnVRb1PXk4Ex9LFHLyCi1T4o7dq2g_uPqI11
https://ecomclickz.com/click.php?key=bnkxam206ij71yehxqel&site=sinclair-mynews4&campaign=7137951&thumbnail=2946752507#tblciGiByJt7n1jFnKLWdbdBSNNyXEGdNwnVRb1PXk4Ex9LFHLyDwllIolby32pSM74E9
https://hero-wars.com/?hl=en&l=loot&l=loot&m=registration&nx_source=adx_taboola.hw_wb_uk_-.cc-us.au-bp_3_vid.cr-loot37_vid.lp-loot.dt-taboola.cid-7272231.agid-2945377720.pt-1150607.csd-251120.-&tblci=GiByJt7n1jFnKLWdbdBSNNyXEGdNwnVRb1PXk4Ex9LFHLyDlwUco7Kevt6OB5dg5#tblciGiByJt7n1jFnKLWdbdBSNNyXEGdNwnVRb1PXk4Ex9LFHLyDlwUco7Kevt6OB5dg5
https://mynews4.com/
https://mynews4.com/watch
https://mynews4.com/weather


RENO, Nev. (KOLO) - Steamboat Ditch could be looking a lot different soon. There are discussions to possibly convert it into a pipeline.

“The canal was built in the 1880s,” said Mike Barnes who lives adjacent to the creek. “There is a part of Reno’s history that if they encapsulate in
concrete pipes would be gone forever.”

That is indeed part of what is being proposed by the USDA-Natural Resources Conservation Service.

“The goal here is to target the potential for flooding from the Steamboat Canal because it is higher than some of the properties there,” said Ray
Dotson, a state conservationist.

Part of what the proposed project calls for is replacing about 14 miles of open canal with pipelines. A move to prevent flooding in the area.

Proposed project could result in big changes to Steamboat
Ditch
14 miles of canal would be converted into pipeline

This is the route of the canal that may be converted into pipeline. (staff)
By Ben Deach
Published: Jan. 5, 2021 at 5:29 PM PST

Barnes doesn’t feel that is a real concern, as he’s lived right next to the canal for six years, and says it has only even come close to flooding once.

“Right now what we have is an opportunity to make a plan to determine the steps to move forward to help mitigate some of that flood risk,” Dotson
added.

This project is in its earliest stage, and you can still have your voice heard regarding the proposal until January 15th. Click here to find out more.

Copyright 2021 KOLO. All rights reserved.

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 71 of 97

https://www.kolotv.com/weather/
http://truckeeriver.nvwatershed.com/attachments/ScopingDisplays_Final-V3.pdf
https://adclick.g.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjsu8pQjGT7OlwU-nDkTM-aK2hnCUulIhY6ftJ-gQEwHXIPqS_ffy1bGgul4UglHARj-JNlUrxgCHMvG_tIBANRp2eBw06OtNSX-okX9hFXMz1XarJ0vzMLz4gEbCMLKERIqA9q2PHfRlyrjgLlCkBC2IUdVTqxsE71G-1nBomABIFa7hauqpMOxCxbY-V4XlkEKAZahq3b8rOyVu1xFdrbFt7KeqnNEAuHhqMQP6shiW0pHQvVFzJRbNplvQJ8JU1-onALduXEonucZKwpXzYeui8mgqnGxVZurzd5Y6Qz3Xct721tF74g97TTR8lkino8jIv-68BioKwtMl9qkMlRYtJswzGgA2w5EVcI4714J9uP8YsOJLtx14gKU0iDTZZGoBTdmCiDDf8ZUcl4FVV_cdRblbkoC5qQOBYQ-iYgy3Ez-AOUMxc8XxhHplenbNSQkB_x_v-_8Lal0TUI-uiF0dsuvsT4N0Jcmfu0LqMV3MR94PPvl0o1LcpGjOzrLRfEJWZ_BlGucbGZoU6gtQSfOS2k6Dw00mPPVgrLc3Ael7yALfWlZcW4HZv2PGolmrLrWv-lWBvm0Pdi_4u8cy4qtirqXtTqJz5bMtSRyIHJxChHRiDagDKrosjCnrwQQIPkdQj0EPNv-YxO4FiYonlaecHXoPy-ryG-nDdcSZd1mFc6Y-3TbefClDpjh-L9mE4TCJAgikrcTBnx2LH0OqGNUvZM0CKcCPRMnMoNrtRPMsFx18phK2RnnSrQUReTth52JyWJ-DQyxryiBEpe6YYZQ7SLjE8b_knkJqJXT1A_TxaECzvBxBR2TtTGqClV67FlOsNtT1frdFLykofW_l8EV0Pu0gawiOCDt8N4h7HNYCFP-SX5VFfLDJMTirOM-Imgf2Pd0oOzCC71ZPw2lW3RN7J_vE0Tb3KozkOz6DHMjhILeRdzFqO6fNpqDGEaI5ETgZwNV5bPwxIPU_OM9FE4I4cmQh84ruA9cznPmu7BqEiNEoK-4mYHq28JXQ8RMPx8lxc98bNWX3-MXR0xHWifvC5lsJTq6EU3sRxlw3E4r9D3q18HmIzoDWbF1EoUDAP-hiN2Q7cU_NjiklN__8motdtW90nX0tx7ZENvWKlaM40BhbDewwbT2tKy4ARR1THNhrpUT4WEVVGsJ3Y7bJlOe70A&sai=AMfl-YR5iC-fjdfScKtBd6DqHME3M2w5l3sUKv1NLanCZNTndJF8wBb0xY1YjCkysnGQgJgG1AnfLoOGdT-eSwDUkrJpG4WaES20etUdmlH3aMZmoGubHbHl7ngWIQTTsfwS3E7R2j_E-Ye26eZYgrkLEwGRJYWPcJmTKulAVpuo&sig=Cg0ArKJSzI0GyDWtrUO1&urlfix=1&adurl=https://fbnn.org/give-now/%3Futm_source%3DDSP%26utm_medium%3Dbanner%26utm_campaign%3Dnonseasonal_2020
https://www.kolotv.com/authors/Ben-Deach/
https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?sa=L&ai=Cmzu-O3__X5TuG-my_APl9aCoCsXv__5gw5HbuJYKzYK1zIATEAEg-b_DI2DJ9oeLvKSwGaABqbf-ngPIAQngAgCoAwHIAwqqBMYCT9AVRVZbkrBs205FcG4COrQbsG-xdopUHKggCNFkEWfi3GRAqp-Bo0yh-07SaU4dV8n2d5WS6ppXpV8ygr_RhbaN1TnknBm8LPzJoJeBb5m3bLbGXmb9RSrObTpFjPmbzKreN4g3za-51o2EVWuK5J5fvTkgK0KVPSMHBiIX_Va_KsZc9ZtI_HN361xOQVwJoJvnZLfw4SEHPs_VtbwL2aSMsFCbrRGguy2cchMskVbD1JfaOvM2puJuCBFR3B5fVpB7Urn6pmurd1Z_PCSBLN3_QBczryL9N1R7xihUOU7Ym1R8-vz4dLZkhZdcLD7ThvVfsJLtgZpKPzT3L7pqJX7d7hSTWfVThDC5lmNx9FNIWEbn7BAnZuB-sLdH5bHBrHYgLAQg69Qtl9LMlCXAJ2L45Nth7E9OECk2l4nCEOpNzp3hIsLABKKhmYejAuAEAcAFBfoFBgglEAEYAKAGLoAHv8iBYagH8NkbqAfy2RuoB5SYsQKoB6XfG6gHjs4bqAeT2BuoB7oGqAfulrECqAemvhuoB-zVG6gH89EbqAfs1RuoB5bYG9gHAMAIAdIIBwiAYRABGB2ACgOQCwOYCwHICwGADAG4DAHgErXzjfiTifOxDNgTDpgWAQ&ae=1&num=1&cid=CAASEuRof4uLs5dvXOCORHC1T_1RDg&sig=AOD64_0hcFgVrK1q1gjGA_5mnHT8QqYD6g&ctype=5&client=ca-pub-0883126725773026&nb=19&adurl=https://yoursuper.com/products/mushroom-powder%3Futm_source%3Dgoogle%26utm_medium%3Dshopping%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMI1PejmYWa7gIVaRl_Ch3lOgilEAEYASABEgJLG_D_BwE
https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?sa=L&ai=Cmzu-O3__X5TuG-my_APl9aCoCsXv__5gw5HbuJYKzYK1zIATEAEg-b_DI2DJ9oeLvKSwGaABqbf-ngPIAQngAgCoAwHIAwqqBMYCT9AVRVZbkrBs205FcG4COrQbsG-xdopUHKggCNFkEWfi3GRAqp-Bo0yh-07SaU4dV8n2d5WS6ppXpV8ygr_RhbaN1TnknBm8LPzJoJeBb5m3bLbGXmb9RSrObTpFjPmbzKreN4g3za-51o2EVWuK5J5fvTkgK0KVPSMHBiIX_Va_KsZc9ZtI_HN361xOQVwJoJvnZLfw4SEHPs_VtbwL2aSMsFCbrRGguy2cchMskVbD1JfaOvM2puJuCBFR3B5fVpB7Urn6pmurd1Z_PCSBLN3_QBczryL9N1R7xihUOU7Ym1R8-vz4dLZkhZdcLD7ThvVfsJLtgZpKPzT3L7pqJX7d7hSTWfVThDC5lmNx9FNIWEbn7BAnZuB-sLdH5bHBrHYgLAQg69Qtl9LMlCXAJ2L45Nth7E9OECk2l4nCEOpNzp3hIsLABKKhmYejAuAEAcAFBfoFBgglEAEYAKAGLoAHv8iBYagH8NkbqAfy2RuoB5SYsQKoB6XfG6gHjs4bqAeT2BuoB7oGqAfulrECqAemvhuoB-zVG6gH89EbqAfs1RuoB5bYG9gHAMAIAdIIBwiAYRABGB2ACgOQCwOYCwHICwGADAG4DAHgErXzjfiTifOxDNgTDpgWAQ&ae=1&num=1&cid=CAASEuRof4uLs5dvXOCORHC1T_1RDg&sig=AOD64_0hcFgVrK1q1gjGA_5mnHT8QqYD6g&ctype=5&client=ca-pub-0883126725773026&nb=9&adurl=https://yoursuper.com/products/mushroom-powder%3Futm_source%3Dgoogle%26utm_medium%3Dshopping%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMI1PejmYWa7gIVaRl_Ch3lOgilEAEYASABEgJLG_D_BwE
https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?sa=L&ai=CerhWO3__X5TuG-my_APl9aCoCsXv__5gw5HbuJYKzYK1zIATEAEg-b_DI2DJ9oeLvKSwGaABqbf-ngPIAQngAgCoAwHIAwqqBMYCT9AVRVZbkrBs205FcG4COrQbsG-xdopUHKggCNFkEWfi3GRAqp-Bo0yh-07SaU4dV8n2d5WS6ppXpV8ygr_RhbaN1TnknBm8LPzJoJeBb5m3bLbGXmb9RSrObTpFjPmbzKreN4g3za-51o2EVWuK5J5fvTkgK0KVPSMHBiIX_Va_KsZc9ZtI_HN361xOQVwJoJvnZLfw4SEHPs_VtbwL2aSMsFCbrRGguy2cchMskVbD1JfaOvM2puJuCBFR3B5fVpB7Urn6pmurd1Z_PCSBLN3_QBczryL9N1R7xihUOU7Ym1R8-vz4dLZkhZdcLD7ThvVfsJLtgZpKPzT3L7pqJX7d7hSTWfVThDC5lmNx9FNIWEbn7BAnZuB-sLdH5bHBrHYgLAQg69Qtl9LMlCXAJ2L45Nth7E9OECk2l4nCEOpNzp3hIsLABKKhmYejAuAEAcAFBfoFBgglEAEYAaAGLoAHv8iBYagH8NkbqAfy2RuoB5SYsQKoB6XfG6gHjs4bqAeT2BuoB7oGqAfulrECqAemvhuoB-zVG6gH89EbqAfs1RuoB5bYG9gHAMAIAtIIBwiAYRABGB2ACgOQCwOYCwHICwGADAG4DAHgEsnWhK-x39nh7gHYEw6YFgE&ae=1&num=1&cid=CAASEuRof4uLs5dvXOCORHC1T_1RDg&sig=AOD64_0T5d-Bi5_bSOSykm2tlZy4OMJxNw&ctype=5&client=ca-pub-0883126725773026&nb=9&adurl=https://yoursuper.com/products/forever-beautiful-mix%3Futm_source%3Dgoogle%26utm_medium%3Dshopping%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMI1PejmYWa7gIVaRl_Ch3lOgilEAEYASACEgITM_D_BwE
https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?sa=L&ai=Cwa-3O3__X5TuG-my_APl9aCoCsXv__5gw5HbuJYKzYK1zIATEAEg-b_DI2DJ9oeLvKSwGaABqbf-ngPIAQngAgCoAwHIAwqqBMYCT9AVRVZbkrBs205FcG4COrQbsG-xdopUHKggCNFkEWfi3GRAqp-Bo0yh-07SaU4dV8n2d5WS6ppXpV8ygr_RhbaN1TnknBm8LPzJoJeBb5m3bLbGXmb9RSrObTpFjPmbzKreN4g3za-51o2EVWuK5J5fvTkgK0KVPSMHBiIX_Va_KsZc9ZtI_HN361xOQVwJoJvnZLfw4SEHPs_VtbwL2aSMsFCbrRGguy2cchMskVbD1JfaOvM2puJuCBFR3B5fVpB7Urn6pmurd1Z_PCSBLN3_QBczryL9N1R7xihUOU7Ym1R8-vz4dLZkhZdcLD7ThvVfsJLtgZpKPzT3L7pqJX7d7hSTWfVThDC5lmNx9FNIWEbn7BAnZuB-sLdH5bHBrHYgLAQg69Qtl9LMlCXAJ2L45Nth7E9OECk2l4nCEOpNzp3hIsLABKKhmYejAuAEAcAFBfoFBgglEAEYAqAGLoAHv8iBYagH8NkbqAfy2RuoB5SYsQKoB6XfG6gHjs4bqAeT2BuoB7oGqAfulrECqAemvhuoB-zVG6gH89EbqAfs1RuoB5bYG9gHAMAIA9IIBwiAYRABGB2ACgOQCwOYCwHICwGADAG4DAHgEtGStcaslNAk2BMOmBYB&ae=1&num=1&cid=CAASEuRof4uLs5dvXOCORHC1T_1RDg&sig=AOD64_3PQ9q2nLWCpz8-M5s4OdUNqSjBMw&ctype=5&client=ca-pub-0883126725773026&nb=9&adurl=https://yoursuper.com/products/super-green%3Futm_source%3Dgoogle%26utm_medium%3Dshopping%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMI1PejmYWa7gIVaRl_Ch3lOgilEAEYASADEgJoF_D_BwE
https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?sa=L&ai=C4pLDO3__X5TuG-my_APl9aCoCsXv__5gw5HbuJYKzYK1zIATEAEg-b_DI2DJ9oeLvKSwGaABqbf-ngPIAQngAgCoAwHIAwqqBMYCT9AVRVZbkrBs205FcG4COrQbsG-xdopUHKggCNFkEWfi3GRAqp-Bo0yh-07SaU4dV8n2d5WS6ppXpV8ygr_RhbaN1TnknBm8LPzJoJeBb5m3bLbGXmb9RSrObTpFjPmbzKreN4g3za-51o2EVWuK5J5fvTkgK0KVPSMHBiIX_Va_KsZc9ZtI_HN361xOQVwJoJvnZLfw4SEHPs_VtbwL2aSMsFCbrRGguy2cchMskVbD1JfaOvM2puJuCBFR3B5fVpB7Urn6pmurd1Z_PCSBLN3_QBczryL9N1R7xihUOU7Ym1R8-vz4dLZkhZdcLD7ThvVfsJLtgZpKPzT3L7pqJX7d7hSTWfVThDC5lmNx9FNIWEbn7BAnZuB-sLdH5bHBrHYgLAQg69Qtl9LMlCXAJ2L45Nth7E9OECk2l4nCEOpNzp3hIsLABKKhmYejAuAEAcAFBfoFBgglEAEYA6AGLoAHv8iBYagH8NkbqAfy2RuoB5SYsQKoB6XfG6gHjs4bqAeT2BuoB7oGqAfulrECqAemvhuoB-zVG6gH89EbqAfs1RuoB5bYG9gHAMAIBNIIBwiAYRABGB2ACgOQCwOYCwHICwGADAG4DAHgEr64odP61vjJddgTDpgWAQ&ae=1&num=1&cid=CAASEuRof4uLs5dvXOCORHC1T_1RDg&sig=AOD64_03XJBcCcLt7R102udgj_uDYqg5WA&ctype=5&client=ca-pub-0883126725773026&nb=9&adurl=https://yoursuper.com/products/travel-packs%3Futm_source%3Dgoogle%26utm_medium%3Dshopping%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMI1PejmYWa7gIVaRl_Ch3lOgilEAEYASAEEgLGg_D_BwE


Search

NEWS EVENTS REAL ESTATE CARS JOBS SUBMIT STORIES/PHOTOS ABOUT ADVERTISE VISIT CARSON CITY

Home

Nevada receives $1 million in grants to improve water quality,

reduce pollution

Submitted by Jeff Munson on Tue, 01/05/2021 - 11:05am

Nevada Division of Environmental Protection

CARSON CITY — The Nevada Division of Environmental Protection announced Tuesday that it has
received $1 million in Clean Water Act grant funds provided by the U.S Environmental Protection
Agency that will be used to complete 11 projects to reduce “nonpoint source pollution” and
improve water quality across the state.

Nonpoint source water pollution degrades Nevada’s water resources when rain, snowmelt and
irrigation water flows over developed or disturbed land, carrying with it pollutants including oil,
sediment, pesticides, bacteria and nutrients such as nitrogen and phosphorus which can contribute
to excess algae growth. This polluted water makes its way into Nevada’s waterways either directly
or through storm drains, and can impact overall water quality conditions.

Projects selected for Nevada’s 2020 Clean Water Act grant funding include the following:

Northern Nevada: Streambank stability
restoration projects on the Carson River in the
Carson Valley by the Carson Valley
Conservation District and Washoe Tribe of
California and Nevada. Construction of
stormwater control measures in the Incline
and lower Kingsbury areas by Washoe County
and TRPA to decrease roadside sediment from
entering Lake Tahoe. Implementation of
erosion control and stabilization measures by
the City of Reno on Chalk Creek to improve
the quality of stormwater conveyed to the
Truckee River.

Featured Events

Artist Mark Brandvik exhibition 'Relaunch' at

CCAI Courthouse Gallery.

Repeats every week until Thu Jan 28
2021 .
October 21, 2020 (All day)

The Capital City
Arts Initiative
presents its
exhibition,
"Relaunch", by
artist Mark
Brandvik at the
CCAI
Courthouse

Gallery. The exhibition will be in the gallery
from October 2, 2020 – January 28, 2021.

Sertoma winter coat drive barrels in Carson

City, Carson Valley brim over with donations

Repeats every week until Sun Jan 31
2021 .
December 10, 2020 (All day)

The Sertoma
Coat Drive is in
full operation for
its fourth year of
collecting and
distributing
clothing to the
people in the
community who

are without warm outerwear. With 19 blue
barrels in Carson Valley and 7 in Carson City,
everyone who wants to donate new and
gently used coats, blankets, and warm
outerwear is finding a donation spot.

Notice of Public Discussion of possible Carson

City grant applications

January 14, 2021 - 9:00am
Notice is hereby given that Carson City will
conduct a public meeting and information

Capital Ford
Go deeper into the outdoors with all-terrain
upgrades perfect for tackling the trails.
That's what the all-new 2021 F-150 Tremor
brings to ...

File photo by Carson Watershed Subconservancy

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 72 of 97

https://carsonnow.org/
https://bit.ly/2LwNMjt
https://facebook.com/carsonnow
https://twitter.com/carsonnow
https://carsonnow.org/rss.xml
https://www.carsonnow.org/email_subscribe
https://carsonnow.org/latest
https://carsonnow.org/date_list
https://carsonnow.org/carson-city-real-estate
https://carsonnow.org/cars
https://carsonnow.org/jobs
https://carsonnow.org/node/add/reader-content
https://carsonnow.org/about
https://carsonnow.org/advertising
https://visitcarsoncity.com/
https://carsonnow.org/ad/redirect/114428/t412?url=node/114567
https://carsonnow.org/
https://carsonnow.org/users/jeff-munson
https://carsonnow.org/reader-content/10/21/2020/relaunch
https://carsonnow.org/reader-content/10/21/2020/relaunch
https://carsonnow.org/story/12/10/2020/sertoma-winter-coat-drive-barrels-carson-city-carson-valley-brim-over-donations
https://carsonnow.org/story/12/10/2020/sertoma-winter-coat-drive-barrels-carson-city-carson-valley-brim-over-donations
https://carsonnow.org/reader-content/01/08/2021/notice-public-discussion-possible-carson-city-cdbg-cv-applications
https://adclick.g.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjsskaY67av3wbziY3xijaV-EtqdsOCgjszuomfdPcp22go3H1pDJ8j9679HXB2sE6Aqv96dyMVeZyNYyXH5ojGi8n2Lp0hjYK0a7ne3utRuiSHV_byOst8rcytttz12USfXjiVItTA0&sig=Cg0ArKJSzD7TRfe9Dy-_&urlfix=1&adurl=https://blog.carsontahoe.com/coronavirus-updates/%3Futm_campaign%3Dcovid%26utm_medium%3Dbanner%26utm_source%3Dcarson-now%26dclid%3D%25edclid!
https://carsonnow.org/sites/www.carsonnow.org/files/114567-watershedphoto.png


Southern Nevada: Implementation of education and outreach initiatives by the Southern Nevada
Water Authority to help inform residents how to reduce nonpoint source pollution from entering
their water sources. Coordination and collaboration with the Virgin River Coalition to implement
their restoration plan to improve water quality and wildlife habitat in the Virgin River.

“The Nevada Division of Environmental Protection is excited to leverage Clean Water Act Section
319 grant funding to make important investments in community outreach and on-the-ground
projects enhancing water quality for the benefit of all Nevadans,” said Birgit Widegren, Supervisor
of NDEP’s Nonpoint Source Program. “We look forward to engaging with communities to protect
our precious water resources by reducing the amount of pollution that enters our waterways. Small
steps can add up to big improvements to Nevada's streams and rivers, and we thank the EPA for
continuing to support NDEP's Nonpoint Source Program with these critical annual grant funds to
help ensure the long-term health and vibrancy of Nevada's waterways."

NDEP’s 2020 Annual Report for the Nonpoint Source Management Program highlights the
accomplishments of the program during the previous year. Twenty-four ongoing and completed
water quality improvement projects resulted in significant reduction of pollutants entering Nevada’s
waterways. Click here to view the report.

Each year, Nevada receives Clean Water Act grant funding from the EPA to administer the Nonpoint
Source Program. NDEP releases an annual competitive Grant Funding Opportunity to award funds
to qualifying counties, conservation districts, regional agencies, and nonprofit organizations for
water quality improvement projects.

Carson City  2020  agency  benefit  California  carson  Carson River  City  Clean  collaboration  community

Community,  conservation  construction  county  Environmental  funding  grant funding  grants  Growth

Habitat  Health  help  Investments  irrigation  Lake  Nevada  News  Nonprofit  Northern Nevada  oil

Opportunity  Outreach  pesticides  pollution  program  Quality  rain  regional  Restoration  stability  state

stormwater  Support  tahoe  trpa  Truckee  truckee river  U  Washoe  Washoe Tribe  water  water flows

Water Quality  Carson Valley  Education  Lake Tahoe  reno  wildlife

Carson Now daily email newsletter

Click here to get the latest news sent to
your inbox every day

Top Stories

... or see all stories

Nevada Congressman Mark Amodei votes against article of impeachment
Nevada Politics - Wednesday, January 13, 2021 - 1:58pm

Press Release from Congressman Mark Amodei

WASHINGTON, D.C. — Congressman Mark Amodei
(NV-02) today released the following statement after
voting against the impeachment of President Donald
J. Trump:

Red Cross seeks volunteers to serve Carson City and surrounding communities
Community - Wednesday, January 13, 2021 - 1:36pm

American Red Cross of Northern Nevada
RENO — The American Red Cross of Northern Nevada
is seeking volunteers to join its Disaster Action Team,
serving Carson City and surrounding communities in
the Carson Valley and other areas of Douglas County.

COVID-19 vaccine now available for Quad County, Carson City seniors 70 and older
News - Wednesday, January 13, 2021 - 11:57am

Carson City Health and Human Services

Carson City Health and Human Services (CCHHS) is continuing to move forward with COVID-19
vaccinations in the Quad-County Region based on the current federally approved COVID-19 Vaccine
Guidance set by the State of Nevada. CCHHS is now offering COVID-19 vaccines to Quad-County
residents age 70 years and older.

session on Thursday, January 14, 2021 at
9:00 a.m. (All meetings will be online, please
see directions below), in order review the
application process for the COIVD-19, CDBG-
CV, II & III, State Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG-CV) Program and to
solicit citizen input on possible activities to be
included in the application.

Nevada Division of Environmental Protection

to convene 'Clean Cars Nevada' virtual listening

session

January 14, 2021 - 10:00am

The Nevada
Division of
Environmental
Protection
announced
plans to

convene a virtual listening session on Clean
Cars Nevada, an initiative that would provide
Nevadans with more choices for low and zero
emission passenger cars and light-duty
trucks offered at dealerships across the state
beginning in 2024.

Carson City Library hosts Virtual Program:

Family Story Time

January 14, 2021 - 11:30am
Join us for
weekly themed
stories and
crafts. Craft
instructions and
additional
resources,
including
activities for
older children
who may be at
home, will be
included. For
PRE-K (children

not yet in elementary school) and families.
To register, go here.

Nevada Humanities to Feature Programs

Around Civic Engagement in 2021

January 14, 2021 - 4:00pm

Nevada
Humanities has
been awarded
$50,000 by The
Federation of
State
Humanities

Councils and The Andrew W. Mellon
Foundation as part of a new national
initiative, Why It Matters: Civic and Electoral
Participation, which will explore civic
participation as it relates to electoral
engagement in a multivocal democracy.

Carson City Soroptimist seeks Ruby Award

nominations

Repeats every week until Fri Jan 29
2021 .
January 4, 2021 (All day)

Soroptimist
International of
Carson City is

seeking nominations for its annual Ruby
Award. The Soroptimist Ruby Award honors
women who, through their professional or
personal efforts, are making a difference in
the lives of women or girls in the areas of
health, education, and economic and social
development and inspires and encourages
other women.

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 73 of 97

https://ndep.nv.gov/uploads/water-nonpoint-docs/SFY_2020_NV_NPS_Annual_Report_(1).pdf
https://carsonnow.org/topics/carson-city
https://carsonnow.org/topics/2020
https://carsonnow.org/topics/agency
https://carsonnow.org/topics/benefit
https://carsonnow.org/topics/california
https://carsonnow.org/topics/carson
https://carsonnow.org/topics/carson-river
https://carsonnow.org/topics/city
https://carsonnow.org/topics/clean
https://carsonnow.org/topics/collaboration
https://carsonnow.org/topics/community
https://carsonnow.org/topics/community-0
https://carsonnow.org/topics/conservation
https://carsonnow.org/topics/construction
https://carsonnow.org/topics/county
https://carsonnow.org/topics/environmental
https://carsonnow.org/topics/funding
https://carsonnow.org/topics/grant-funding
https://carsonnow.org/topics/grants
https://carsonnow.org/topics/growth
https://carsonnow.org/topics/habitat
https://carsonnow.org/topics/health
https://carsonnow.org/topics/help
https://carsonnow.org/topics/investments
https://carsonnow.org/topics/irrigation
https://carsonnow.org/topics/lake
https://carsonnow.org/topics/nevada
https://carsonnow.org/categories/news
https://carsonnow.org/topics/nonprofit
https://carsonnow.org/topics/northern-nevada
https://carsonnow.org/topics/oil
https://carsonnow.org/topics/opportunity
https://carsonnow.org/topics/outreach
https://carsonnow.org/topics/pesticides
https://carsonnow.org/topics/pollution
https://carsonnow.org/topics/program
https://carsonnow.org/topics/quality
https://carsonnow.org/topics/rain
https://carsonnow.org/topics/regional
https://carsonnow.org/topics/restoration
https://carsonnow.org/topics/stability
https://carsonnow.org/topics/state
https://carsonnow.org/topics/stormwater
https://carsonnow.org/topics/support
https://carsonnow.org/topics/tahoe
https://carsonnow.org/topics/trpa
https://carsonnow.org/topics/truckee
https://carsonnow.org/topics/truckee-river
https://carsonnow.org/topics/u
https://carsonnow.org/topics/washoe
https://carsonnow.org/topics/washoe-tribe
https://carsonnow.org/topics/water
https://carsonnow.org/topics/water-flows
https://carsonnow.org/topics/water-quality
https://carsonnow.org/topics/carson-valley
https://carsonnow.org/topics/education
https://carsonnow.org/topics/lake-tahoe
https://carsonnow.org/topics/reno
https://carsonnow.org/topics/wildlife
http://carsonnow.org/email_subscribe
http://www.carsonnow.org/latest
https://carsonnow.org/story/01/13/2021/nevada-congressman-mark-amodei-votes-against-article-impeachment
https://carsonnow.org/categories/nevada-politics
https://carsonnow.org/story/01/13/2021/nevada-congressman-mark-amodei-votes-against-article-impeachment
https://carsonnow.org/story/01/13/2021/red-cross-seeks-volunteers-serve-carson-city-and-surrounding-communities
https://carsonnow.org/categories/community
https://carsonnow.org/story/01/13/2021/red-cross-seeks-volunteers-serve-carson-city-and-surrounding-communities
https://carsonnow.org/story/01/13/2021/covid-19-vaccine-now-available-quad-county-carson-city-seniors-70-and-older
https://carsonnow.org/categories/news
https://carsonnow.org/story/12/27/2020/nevada-division-environmental-protection-convene-clean-cars-nevada-virtual-listenin
https://carsonnow.org/story/12/27/2020/nevada-division-environmental-protection-convene-clean-cars-nevada-virtual-listenin
https://carsonnow.org/reader-content/01/09/2021/carson-city-library-hosts-virtual-program-family-story-time
https://carsonnow.org/reader-content/01/09/2021/carson-city-library-hosts-virtual-program-family-story-time
https://carsoncitylibrary.libcal.com/event/7256554
https://carsonnow.org/reader-content/01/07/2021/nevada-humanities-feature-programs-around-civic-engagement-2021-why-it-mat
https://carsonnow.org/reader-content/01/07/2021/nevada-humanities-feature-programs-around-civic-engagement-2021-why-it-mat
https://carsonnow.org/reader-content/01/04/2021/carson-city-soroptimist-seeks-ruby-award-nominations
https://carsonnow.org/reader-content/01/04/2021/carson-city-soroptimist-seeks-ruby-award-nominations
https://carsonnow.org/reader-content/01/08/2021/carson-city-republican-women-meet-january-19


Skip to main content

City of Phoenix

WATER SERVICES

Water Use Calculator: A New
Water Conservation Tool
JANUARY 5, 2021 9:00 AM

 Phoenix Water's new water usage calculator is a tool to help residents get a better understanding
of day-to-day water consumption. Showers, dishwashing, laundry, toilet flushes, outdoor
landscaping, and pools contribute to the resident's daily water use.  

"Water conservation has always played a critical role in Phoenix's water resource planning. As we
prepare for a hotter, drier future, water conservation will be even more important for our city's
resiliency and sustainability. The water calculator is an excellent resource to add to our water
conservation efforts," said Councilwoman Thelda Williams, chair of the Transportation,
Infrastructure and Innovation Subcommittee. 

To get started, residents can visit Phoenix.gov/WaterCloud and click on the Home Water Usage
Calculator. That calculator makes it easy to enter information about the household, such as family
size, type of landscaping, age of the home, length of the average shower, and more. The calculator
compiles a resident's optimal monthly water usage into a detailed report tailored to the
household.  

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 74 of 97

https://www.phoenix.gov/
https://www.phoenix.gov/newsroom/water-services
https://www.phoenix.gov/waterservices/watercloud


Skip to main content

In the report, residents can view monthly and annual water usage breakdown (in gallons), as well as
graphs that highlight indoor versus outdoor water usage. Residents are encouraged to use a recent
City Services bill to input actual usage for a more accurate comparison. The calculator produces an
estimate, and actual usage may vary.  

Phoenix Water's water usage calculator is one of the 14 water conservation measures
recommended by the Water Conservation Ad Hoc Committee (Committee) and adopted by the
Phoenix City Council to maintain Phoenix's legacy as a water conservation leader.  

“Water is the foundation of public health, which makes water resource planning critical to desert
living. This free tool allows customers to develop a plan for their indoor and outdoor water use. We
must continue to implement new tools to encourage water conservation in an effort to preserve
our water supplies and prepare for the future," said Councilwoman Laura Pastor.  

The Committee convened from May 2019 to Dec. 2019 to identify water conservation measures
around three focus areas, including landscape requirements and guidelines, codes and
enforcement, and education and outreach. The Committee was co-chaired by Councilwoman
Williams and Councilwoman Pastor and comprised of citizens from the community with water
expertise in the non-profit, private, and public sectors.  

  Additional resources are available to help resident's conserve water and save on their City Services
bill: 

Request free water-saving re sources 
Sudden water bill spike? Check for leaks 
Visit Phoenix Water's Water Cloud digital education page
Get low water use plant ideas for the landscape
Watering plants the right amount? Check out this handy guide
Find over 100 water-saving tips and more  

Story contributed by: Gina Conrow  

Media Contact: 
Athena Sanchez 
Public Information O�cer, Phoenix Water 
Cell: 602-621-0507 
Email: athena.sanchez@phoenix.gov  

Related Social Media Hashtags and Handles: @PHXWater #PHXWaterSmart #PHXWater
Keywords: Phoenix Water, PHX Water Smart, Water Use Calculator

Water Services Home Page

Water Services News

Media Contact Directory

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 75 of 97

https://www.phoenix.gov/waterservices/resourcesconservation/order-literature-and-media
http://www.smarthomewaterguide.org/
http://www.phoenix.gov/watercloud
http://www.amwua.org/plants
https://wateruseitwisely.com/100-ways-to-conserve/landscape-watering-guide/
https://wateruseitwisely.com/
https://action.phoenix.gov/c1.pl?0b138aa5815e54bbcb51ae7ed94273d17e4121f81234058c
https://www.phoenix.gov/newsroom/search?k=social:@PHXWater
https://www.phoenix.gov/newsroom/search?k=social:%23PHXWaterSmart
https://www.phoenix.gov/newsroom/search?k=social:%23PHXWater
https://www.phoenix.gov/newsroom/search?k=kw:Phoenix%20Water
https://www.phoenix.gov/newsroom/search?k=kw:PHX%20Water%20Smart
https://www.phoenix.gov/newsroom/search?k=kw:Water%20Use%20Calculator


ADVERTISEMENT

One coordinator drives up with a golf cart at 9am to provide volunteers with vests and all the equipment to pick up trash.jpg

RENO, Nev. (News 4 & Fox 11) — Washoe County is currently funding the River Steward
Program, which aims to get the homeless community to help pick up trash along the Truckee
River.

Homeless community helps keep Washoe County clean

by Tony Phan
Wednesday, January 6th 2021 AA

61 ° 63 ° 57 °

Search Site

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 76 of 97

https://www.facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=https%3A%2F%2Fmynews4.com%2Fnews%2Flocal%2Fhomeless-community-helps-keep-washoe-county-clean
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Homeless%20community%20helps%20keep%20Washoe%20County%20clean%20&url=https%3A%2F%2Fmynews4.com%2Fnews%2Flocal%2Fhomeless-community-helps-keep-washoe-county-clean
mailto:?subject=Homeless%20community%20helps%20keep%20Washoe%20County%20clean%20&body=Here%20is%20a%20mynews4.com%20article%20that%20you%20might%20like%20%0A%0Ahttps://mynews4.com/news/local/homeless-community-helps-keep-washoe-county-clean
https://mynews4.com/
https://mynews4.com/watch
https://mynews4.com/weather


The program kickstarted towards the end of October and it’s been going strong since.

Every weekday a few volunteers show up to Brodhead Memorial Park at 9 a.m. to start picking
up trash. Four hours later they’re rewarded with a $50 gift card to Walmart or Walgreens. Over
40 volunteers have come out to lend a hand over the last few months.

Grant Denton, creator of the Karma Box Project and the head of this program says they’ve
collected around 2,500 gallon bags of trash.

Sponsored Links

Hero Wars

Getting this Treasure is impossible! Prove us wrong

The idea is there’s this aggregation of marginal gains where we’re slowly every day, improving
and moving them to being better versions of themselves. We’re moving them to where they need to
be and one way to do that is to identify these individuals and also give them a little bit of purpose
and create a structure of belonging.

Denton says there's 238 encampments from Lake Street to Galetti Way, which means a lot of
trash to collect.

The program is a good way for the volunteers to have a conversation with coordinators to help
them get their lives back.

They get pointed in the right direction on where to get a job, how to get an I.D or social security
card.

61 ° 63 ° 57 °

Search Site

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 77 of 97

https://popup.taboola.com/en/?template=colorbox&utm_source=sinclair-mynews4&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=thumbnails-mid-1x1-new:Mid%20Article%20Thumbnails:
https://hero-wars.com/?hl=en&l=loot&l=loot&m=registration&nx_source=adx_taboola.hw_wb_uk_-.cc-us.au-bp_3_vid.cr-loot29_vid.lp-loot.dt-taboola.cid-7272231.agid-2945377721.pt-1150607.csd-251120.-&tblci=GiByJt7n1jFnKLWdbdBSNNyXEGdNwnVRb1PXk4Ex9LFHLyDlwUcoxOy8jc_x7PH-AQ#tblciGiByJt7n1jFnKLWdbdBSNNyXEGdNwnVRb1PXk4Ex9LFHLyDlwUcoxOy8jc_x7PH-AQ
https://mynews4.com/
https://mynews4.com/watch
https://mynews4.com/weather


Although the coordinators can’t do it for the volunteers, they provide the right resources.

Santiago Cortina, a volunteer, is currently living right next to the river but believes this program
is a positive step for him.

It gives a better image of people who are homeless. We’re not just all dirty and just want to live
in filth. There’s a lot of us out here that got goals and want to stay clean and get clean and live in a
clean environment again. You know what I mean? Be independent.

Cortina has been homeless for a year now after losing his job. He tells News 4-Fox 11 his goal is
to get into a rehab center to get clean.

Right now they're asking for the community's help by donating more trash bags to supply the
volunteers. To do so, reach out to Grant Denton at grantadenton@gmail.com.

MORE TO EXPLORE

Reno Police arrest sexual assault suspect from 1998 cold case

Man arrested for murder after police find body in Sparks home

Man sentenced to 10 years in prison for trafficking a 23-year-old woman

SPONSORED CONTENT

Comparisons.org

The Legacy Report

Reno, Nevada: Did You Know About This?

Man Who Predicted 2020 Crash 45 Days Early Issues Next Major Warning

61 ° 63 ° 57 °

Search Site

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 78 of 97

https://mynews4.com/news/local/reno-police-arrest-sexual-assault-suspect-from-1998-cold-case
https://mynews4.com/news/local/sparks-man-arrested-for-murder-after-police-find-dead-body
https://mynews4.com/news/local/man-sentenced-to-10-years-in-prison-for-trafficking-a-23-year-old-woman
https://rtb-usw.mfadsrvr.com/click/fGKYdYnFKlRIxOv3Ffarz63m4mqnT_vmnDzmoV3juuELHwjAEf3djaDvEiUYeG1X7t9pjcq3lSauZZSaHzQMXSYxnVjNKo-KDeG2sFOvUSOzNhXawg5xW_sKbrvlY_pZ5pUcAPfH_XNN5PC595ltv0oLnOKaHGFBzUuAttrepIfyekA8XGVf_6OBOUUU3piQRuNXN9tVxI_bke1ZrgYo392M5F_wcyfcupk7RHDpHSy_kAdrKhQef1n_qVpT5Mli9M-DSo5Q9BigItvT2x-lEUHjckGUZ2Az///?utm_source=taboola&utm_medium=referral&tblci=GiByJt7n1jFnKLWdbdBSNNyXEGdNwnVRb1PXk4Ex9LFHLyDV6EUo1aeNg8my4tevAQ#tblciGiByJt7n1jFnKLWdbdBSNNyXEGdNwnVRb1PXk4Ex9LFHLyDV6EUo1aeNg8my4tevAQ
https://senterly-crinetic.icu/d0c384b1-8f0d-4119-823d-8e399356f471?site=sinclair-mynews4&site_id=1150607&title=Man+Who+Predicted+2020+Crash+45+Days+Early+Issues+Next+Major+Warning&platform=Desktop&campaign_id=6153455&campaign_item_id=2951301235&thumbnail=http%3A%2F%2Fcdn.taboola.com%2Flibtrc%2Fstatic%2Fthumbnails%2F06ecf1c6050f1a8c0e8f31524c71819c.jpg&click_id=GiByJt7n1jFnKLWdbdBSNNyXEGdNwnVRb1PXk4Ex9LFHLyCi1T4ogKavydWLvObrAQ#tblciGiByJt7n1jFnKLWdbdBSNNyXEGdNwnVRb1PXk4Ex9LFHLyCi1T4ogKavydWLvObrAQ
https://www2.gutcleanseprotocol.com/cid/7013w000001vCGRAA2?utm_source=taboola&subid1=GiByJt7n1jFnKLWdbdBSNNyXEGdNwnVRb1PXk4Ex9LFHLyCpoEsogK2i0cDnyLQJ&utm_content=site_sinclair-mynews4_campaign_id_2949391702_#tblciGiByJt7n1jFnKLWdbdBSNNyXEGdNwnVRb1PXk4Ex9LFHLyCpoEsogK2i0cDnyLQJ
https://mynews4.com/
https://mynews4.com/watch
https://mynews4.com/weather


VOICES | Opinion This piece expresses the views of its author(s), separate from those of this publication.

Cost of Steamboat Canal project far
outweighs benefits | Jerry Wager
Jerry Wager
Published 8:00 p.m. PT Jan. 7, 2021

Subscribe: Read local news and views with a 99-cent subscription to the RGJ

This opinion column was submitted by Jerry Wager, a retired environmental program 
manager living in Reno. 

There is a proposal to convert the Steamboat Canal Waterway that has been here since the late 1800s to 
either half or fully enclosed piping starting up at Caughlin Ranch and through to south Reno. They 
propose to leave the rural portion open and only destroy the urban portion. This beautiful historic Reno 
waterway is utilized by many in our community for walking, jogging, dog-walking and biking.

It is also habitat to numerous wildlife species. Deer, bears, hawks, ducks, quail, songbirds, rabbits, 
squirrels, raccoons and many more species are reliant on the shelter and the water the ditch provides. 
Besides animals, many types of willow, cottonwood trees and other types of vegetation would not survive 
without the water. Moving to a closed piping would ruin this lush habitat in our high desert region.

I listened to the Dec. 8 scoping meeting on this project and the rationales presented are hard to believe. 
The ditch and its trail have become a real neighborhood amenity, which this project proposes to destroy. 
At a time when many cities across America are "daylighting" (uncovering and restoring channels), this 
project proposes to do the opposite for very weak objectives. They talk about "benefit": improving water 
quality, water conservation, flood control, for example. Let's dissect some of these.

If you live along the ditch, as we do, you know the ditch runs clear almost all the time. The only real 
pollutant loading is sediment, which occurs when the ditch is turned on in spring. Sand and finer 
sediments deposited during the previous winter, spring and summer have dried and are easily 
transported downstream. This initial loading disappears in a matter of days. The Steamboat Ditch 
Company and Natural Resources Conservation Service don't appear to have worried about this minor 
problem before. If this was a real issue, they could divert the initial flow of the ditch into stormwater 
basins they talk about constructing as part of the project. Let's also recognize that sediment-loading 
occurs in every major runoff event (storm) on every tributary and is part of the natural process of erosion 
and deposition in watersheds. Without empirical evidence and long-term water quality monitoring (both 
chemical and biological), this so-called problem doesn't hold water. 

They also talk about "fish and wildlife improvements" associated with the dam/diversion on the Truckee 
River. If kayakers are an issue, this is simply and cheaply solved by constructing a small take-out above 
the dam, with a short trail to a put-in below. I also suspect that there are already excellent fish 
populations above and below the dam. The environment they propose to destroy is far more important to 
wildlife in our urban area.

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 79 of 97

https://www.rgj.com/
https://cm.rgj.com/specialoffer?gps-source=CPNEWS&utm_medium=onsite&utm_source=news&utm_campaign=NEWSROOM&utm_content=MCGINNESS-op-ed
http://truckeeriver.nvwatershed.com/
http://truckeeriver.nvwatershed.com/docs/meetings/truckeeKickoffRecording.mp4


They also mention water conservation as a benefit. I suspect this is another red herring. How much 
actual water is lost through evaporation and seepage? A lot, a little (in comparison with the total annual 
flow)? How much is this water worth? Who will sell it to whom? How much will the handful of 
agricultural landowners benefiting from all this taxpayer-funded project pay for this "rescued" water? If 
we could do an honest cost-benefit analysis on this project, we'd find the public is being taken for a ride, 
especially in light of the value of the amenities being lost. 

Then there's the issue of flood control. I've lived on the ditch for over eight years. With the exception of 
one storm (I think it was in February 2016 or 2017), I haven't seen the ditch go out of bank. I'm talking 
about the area I regularly walk from Skyline to the western end at Susileen Drive. Even that storm 
produced minimal erosion, with small overflow traveling across the trail and down into the ravines in a 
handful of locations. There was no effort to repair these spots, I should point out. Here again, I suspect 
that minor, isolated problems of flooding and/or wet basements are being used to have us believe the 
problem is widespread. Such problems could and should be treated individually.

I noticed the project manager brought up the issue of historic preservation in regard to a small dam 
tender structure. If the company is truly concerned about the ditch's historical importance, then maybe 
erecting signs at trail entrances about the thousands of Chinese laborers who hand-dug the ditch would 
be more appropriate.

Lastly, the project engineer mentioned that because of property owners (whose notification about the 
project he seemed hesitant about) held easements, the entire trail adjacent to the ditch might be 
abandoned. He also stated in answer to a question that only an Environmental Assessment (versus an 
Environmental Impact Statement) would be needed as the project
would cost less than $25 million, so obviously they have already made a total project cost estimate. 
However, if we can force an honest cost-benefit analysis of this project, valuing what is to be lost; it 
might be very hard to justify its going forward. Many such projects, funded by PL 566, benefit a small 
number of landowners, as in this case. And as long as they fly under the radar they can make it to 
construction. Let's hope this isn't one of them.

I suggest informing all property owners along the ditch, as well a putting small informational signs at 
trail entrances, so those who just walk and run on the trail everyday know what's being proposed.

Have your say: How to submit an opinion column or letter to the editor

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 80 of 97



By By JIM JOHNSONJIM JOHNSON |  | jjohnson@montereyherald.comjjohnson@montereyherald.com | Monterey Herald | Monterey Herald
PUBLISHED: PUBLISHED: January 8, 2021 at 2:44 p.m.January 8, 2021 at 2:44 p.m. | UPDATED:  | UPDATED: January 8, 2021 at 2:45January 8, 2021 at 2:45
p.m.p.m.

The Pure Water Monterey regional treatment plant. (Courtesy Monterey One Water)The Pure Water Monterey regional treatment plant. (Courtesy Monterey One Water)

LATEST HEADLINESLATEST HEADLINES

Pure Water Monterey projectPure Water Monterey project
bolstered by federal grantbolstered by federal grant
Moves to push ahead recycled water project expansionMoves to push ahead recycled water project expansion
appear to falterappear to falter

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 81 of 97

https://www.montereyherald.com/author/jim-johnson/
mailto:jjohnson@montereyherald.com
https://www.montereyherald.com/latest-headlines/


Recognizing the groundbreaking nature of the Pure Water Monterey recycledRecognizing the groundbreaking nature of the Pure Water Monterey recycled
water project, the U.S Department of the Interior’s Bureau of Reclamation haswater project, the U.S Department of the Interior’s Bureau of Reclamation has
awarded the project a $15.5 million grant.awarded the project a $15.5 million grant.

Under its WaterSMART initiative, which seeks to invest in technologiesUnder its WaterSMART initiative, which seeks to invest in technologies
designed to enable “broader scale use of recycled water to supplementdesigned to enable “broader scale use of recycled water to supplement
supplies,” the federal Bureau of Reclamation awarded the local recycled watersupplies,” the federal Bureau of Reclamation awarded the local recycled water
project nearly 40% of its $40 million in grants awarded after a competitiveproject nearly 40% of its $40 million in grants awarded after a competitive
review process, according to a release.review process, according to a release.

The release also noted that the grant funding was “prioritized for projects thatThe release also noted that the grant funding was “prioritized for projects that
develop and supplement urban and irrigation water supplies through waterdevelop and supplement urban and irrigation water supplies through water
reuse, thereby improving efficiency, providing flexibility during drought or waterreuse, thereby improving efficiency, providing flexibility during drought or water
shortages, and diversifying water supply.”shortages, and diversifying water supply.”

The Pure Water Monterey project, which has provided potable water forThe Pure Water Monterey project, which has provided potable water for
extraction and use since the summer, treats a variety of local wastewater toextraction and use since the summer, treats a variety of local wastewater to
drinking water standards before pumping it into the Seaside basin for laterdrinking water standards before pumping it into the Seaside basin for later
extraction and use on the Monterey Peninsula. It also facilitates collection ofextraction and use on the Monterey Peninsula. It also facilitates collection of
wastewater souces for expanded agricultural irrigation, removal of pollutantswastewater souces for expanded agricultural irrigation, removal of pollutants
from waterways and improvement of local river habitats.from waterways and improvement of local river habitats.

The $140 million project is committed to provide 3,500-acre-feet per year inThe $140 million project is committed to provide 3,500-acre-feet per year in
potable water, a capacity it expects to reach by the end of the year after anpotable water, a capacity it expects to reach by the end of the year after an
additional injection well is completed by November. The project has injectedadditional injection well is completed by November. The project has injected
more than 700 acre-feet into the basin that is eligible for extraction so far aftermore than 700 acre-feet into the basin that is eligible for extraction so far after
injecting a 1,000-acre-foot reserve starting early last year.injecting a 1,000-acre-foot reserve starting early last year.

It is considered a key element of the larger Monterey Peninsula Water SupplyIt is considered a key element of the larger Monterey Peninsula Water Supply
project, which currently includes California American Water’s proposedproject, which currently includes California American Water’s proposed
desalination plant and is aimed at developing a new portfolio water source todesalination plant and is aimed at developing a new portfolio water source to
offset the state-ordered pumping cutback from the Carmel River aquifer.offset the state-ordered pumping cutback from the Carmel River aquifer.

Backed by Monterey One Water and the Monterey Peninsula WaterBacked by Monterey One Water and the Monterey Peninsula Water
Management District, the project has now received a total of $39.35 million inManagement District, the project has now received a total of $39.35 million in
grant funding representing nearly 30% of its design and construction costs.grant funding representing nearly 30% of its design and construction costs.
Monterey One Water spokesman Mike McCullough said the latest grantMonterey One Water spokesman Mike McCullough said the latest grant
funding, when it’s eventually received, will go into the Pure Water Montereyfunding, when it’s eventually received, will go into the Pure Water Monterey
account and could be used to help pay off a low-interest loan for the project oraccount and could be used to help pay off a low-interest loan for the project or
for future capital costs, and some could go to partly reimburse the waterfor future capital costs, and some could go to partly reimburse the water
management district for its contribution to the project.management district for its contribution to the project.

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 82 of 97



“Obtaining grant funding is challenging but an important effort that directly“Obtaining grant funding is challenging but an important effort that directly
benefits our community,” Monterey One Water board chairman Ron Stefanibenefits our community,” Monterey One Water board chairman Ron Stefani
said. “We are grateful for the Bureau of Reclamation’s support of our innovativesaid. “We are grateful for the Bureau of Reclamation’s support of our innovative
and multi-beneficial project.”and multi-beneficial project.”

Water management district board chairman Alvin Edwards said the districtWater management district board chairman Alvin Edwards said the district
“appreciates the hard work of staff at both agencies to build relationships with“appreciates the hard work of staff at both agencies to build relationships with
federal staff and for telling the Pure Water Monterey story in a compelling way.federal staff and for telling the Pure Water Monterey story in a compelling way.
We sincerely thank the Bureau of Reclamation for their commitment andWe sincerely thank the Bureau of Reclamation for their commitment and
support for helping our community develop a key water supply project.”support for helping our community develop a key water supply project.”

U.S. Rep. Jimmy Panetta, D-Carmel Valley, was among a number of localU.S. Rep. Jimmy Panetta, D-Carmel Valley, was among a number of local
elected officials, agencies and organizations offering letters of support for theelected officials, agencies and organizations offering letters of support for the
grant bid, and praised the initiative.grant bid, and praised the initiative.

“Understanding the importance of the Pure Water Monterey groundwater“Understanding the importance of the Pure Water Monterey groundwater
replenishment project for the water needs of the Monterey Peninsula, I wasreplenishment project for the water needs of the Monterey Peninsula, I was
pleased to offer my support early on for potential Title XVI funding,” he said.pleased to offer my support early on for potential Title XVI funding,” he said.
“Such a significant amount of federal funds will not only help further the“Such a significant amount of federal funds will not only help further the
development of the project, it will also further our goal for sustainable waterdevelopment of the project, it will also further our goal for sustainable water
sources for our home.”sources for our home.”

The grant funding announcement comes as a couple of local elected officials’The grant funding announcement comes as a couple of local elected officials’
attempts to shake loose a proposed 2,250-acre-foot expansion of the recycledattempts to shake loose a proposed 2,250-acre-foot expansion of the recycled
water project, which has been stalled since last year, appear to be falling shortwater project, which has been stalled since last year, appear to be falling short
of their goal.of their goal.

During a special Del Rey Oaks City Council meeting Thursday, a split councilDuring a special Del Rey Oaks City Council meeting Thursday, a split council
voted 3-2 against Mayor Alison Kerr’s attempt to replace Councilman Johnvoted 3-2 against Mayor Alison Kerr’s attempt to replace Councilman John
Gaglioti with new Councilwoman Kim Shirley on the Monterey One WaterGaglioti with new Councilwoman Kim Shirley on the Monterey One Water
board, choosing new Councilman Scott Donaldson instead. Gaglioti cast a keyboard, choosing new Councilman Scott Donaldson instead. Gaglioti cast a key
vote against certification of the recycled water project expansion’svote against certification of the recycled water project expansion’s
environmental review document, calling it “fatally flawed,” while Shirley vowedenvironmental review document, calling it “fatally flawed,” while Shirley vowed
to immediately vote to certify the document and allow the recycled water projectto immediately vote to certify the document and allow the recycled water project
to move ahead. Donaldson has not expressly said how he would vote on theto move ahead. Donaldson has not expressly said how he would vote on the
issue.issue.

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 83 of 97



Earlier in the week, District 2 Supervisor John Phillips said he wanted to keepEarlier in the week, District 2 Supervisor John Phillips said he wanted to keep
his current seat on the Monterey One Water board even as new Board ofhis current seat on the Monterey One Water board even as new Board of
Supervisors Chairwoman and District 4 Supervisor Wendy Root Askew made aSupervisors Chairwoman and District 4 Supervisor Wendy Root Askew made a
bid to replace Phillips with herself on the board. Phillips also voted againstbid to replace Phillips with herself on the board. Phillips also voted against
certification of the expansion project’s environmental document, while Askewcertification of the expansion project’s environmental document, while Askew
has said she supports the proposal. In her latest recommendation, Askewhas said she supports the proposal. In her latest recommendation, Askew
recommends leaving Phillips on the agency board with her serving as anrecommends leaving Phillips on the agency board with her serving as an
alternate. A final decision on the county board’s representative to the Montereyalternate. A final decision on the county board’s representative to the Monterey
One Water board is expected Tuesday next week.One Water board is expected Tuesday next week.

A single vote could reverse the current 11-11 weighted vote deadlock on theA single vote could reverse the current 11-11 weighted vote deadlock on the
Monterey One Water board regarding certification of the expansion projectMonterey One Water board regarding certification of the expansion project
environmental document. Agency staff has stopped working on the expansionenvironmental document. Agency staff has stopped working on the expansion
proposal since the certification denial vote last year.proposal since the certification denial vote last year.

A water management district analysis has found that Pure Water Monterey withA water management district analysis has found that Pure Water Monterey with
the expansion could provide an adequate potable water source to offset thethe expansion could provide an adequate potable water source to offset the
river aquifer for at least the next quarter-century.river aquifer for at least the next quarter-century.

Jim JohnsonJim Johnson  | Reporter| Reporter
Jim Johnson covers Monterey County government and waterJim Johnson covers Monterey County government and water
issues for the Monterey Herald.issues for the Monterey Herald.

jjohnson@montereyherald.comjjohnson@montereyherald.com

  Follow Jim Johnson Follow Jim Johnson @JimJohnson_MCH@JimJohnson_MCH

SPONSORED CONTENTSPONSORED CONTENT

The Mazda CX-The Mazda CX-
9 Just Got a9 Just Got a
MidcycleMidcycle
Refresh: ReadRefresh: Read
on...on...  
By By MazdaMazda

Tags: Tags: NewsletterNewsletter

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 84 of 97

https://www.montereyherald.com/author/jim-johnson/
https://twitter.com/@JimJohnson_MCH
mailto:jjohnson@montereyherald.com
https://ad.doubleclick.net/ddm/trackclk/N843334.1748112NATIVOINC/B24104378.276159379;dc_trk_aid=470852178;dc_trk_cid=131820225;dc_lat=;dc_rdid=;tag_for_child_directed_treatment=;tfua=
https://ad.doubleclick.net/ddm/trackclk/N843334.1748112NATIVOINC/B24104378.276159379;dc_trk_aid=470852178;dc_trk_cid=131820225;dc_lat=;dc_rdid=;tag_for_child_directed_treatment=;tfua=
https://ad.doubleclick.net/ddm/trackclk/N843334.1748112NATIVOINC/B24104378.276159379;dc_trk_aid=470852178;dc_trk_cid=131820225;dc_lat=;dc_rdid=;tag_for_child_directed_treatment=;tfua=
https://ad.doubleclick.net/ddm/trackclk/N843334.1748112NATIVOINC/B24104378.276159379;dc_trk_aid=470852178;dc_trk_cid=131820225;dc_lat=;dc_rdid=;tag_for_child_directed_treatment=;tfua=
https://www.montereyherald.com/tag/newsletter/


Annual EPA grant will be used for water projects

Sta� Report
January 8, 2021 - 8:35 am

Don't miss the big stories. Like us on Facebook.

The Nevada Division of Environmental Protection on Tuesday announced that $1 million in 
Clean Water Act grant funds provided by the U.S Environmental Protection Agency will be used 
to complete 11 projects to reduce “nonpoint source pollution” and improve water quality 
across the state.
Nonpoint source water pollution degrades Nevada’s water resources when rain, snowmelt and 
irrigation water �ows over developed or disturbed land, carrying with it pollutants including 
oil, sediment, pesticides, bacteria and nutrients such as nitrogen and phosphorus, which can 
contribute to excess algae growth. This polluted water makes its way into Nevada’s waterways 
either directly or through storm drains and can aect overall water quality conditions.
In Southern Nevada, projects selected for Clean Water Act grant funding include the 
implementation of education and outreach initiatives by the Southern Nevada Water Authority to 
help inform residents how to reduce nonpoint source pollution from entering their water sources 
and coordination and collaboration with the Virgin River Coalition to implement their restoration 
plan to improve water quality and wildlife habitat in the Virgin River.

Henry Brean/Las Vegas Review-Journal Da-ek Dow Go-et, left, and Wheeler Peak re ect in the waters of Stella Lake at Great

Basin National Park on Sept. 1, 2019. Flooding from snow melt has closed a campground in the park.

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 85 of 97

https://172.16.172.230/UserCheck/PortalMain?IID=640E85F4-2B22-8DA9-A2B0-E6A35782CDC6&origUrl=aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuZmFjZWJvb2suY29tL3BsdWdpbnMvbGlrZS5waHA_aHJlZj1odHRwcyUzQSUyRiUyRnd3dy5mYWNlYm9vay5jb20lMkZQYWhydW1wLVZhbGxleS1UaW1lcy0xMTE5NDAyNzg4NzM3NDMmd2lkdGg9OTcmbGF5b3V0PWJ1dHRvbl9jb3VudCZhY3Rpb249bGlrZSZzaXplPWxhcmdlJnNob3dfZmFjZXM9ZmFsc2Umc2hhcmU9ZmFsc2UmaGVpZ2h0PTIxJmFwcElkPTg0NjU1ODAwMjE1NTU3Mw&frame=1
https://www.facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=https%3A%2F%2Fpvtimes.com%2Fpost%2F94553
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?url=https%3A%2F%2Fpvtimes.com%2Fpost%2F94553&via=%40pvtimes&text=Annual%20EPA%20grant%20will%20be%20used%20for%20water%20projects
mailto:?&subject=[Shared%20Post]%20Annual%20EPA%20grant%20will%20be%20used%20for%20water%20projects&body=You%20may%20be%20interested%20in%20the%20following%20post:%20https://pvtimes.com/post/94553


Projects to get grant funding in Northern Nevada include streambank stability restoration 
projects on the Carson River in the Carson Valley by the Carson Valley Conservation District 
and Washoe Tribe of California and Nevada, construction of stormwater control measures 
in the Incline and lower Kingsbury areas by Washoe County and TRPA to decrease roadside 
sediment from entering Lake Tahoe and implementation of erosion control and 
stabilization measures by the city of Reno on Chalk Creek to improve the quality of 
stormwater conveyed to the Truckee River.
“The Nevada Division of Environmental Protection is excited to leverage Clean Water Act 
Section 319 grant funding to make important investments in community outreach and on-
the-ground projects enhancing water quality for the bene�t of all Nevadans,” said Birgit 
Widegren, supervisor of NDEP’s Nonpoint Source Program. “We look forward to engaging 
with communities to protect our precious water resources by reducing the amount of 
pollution that enters our waterways.
“Small steps can add up to big improvements to Nevada’s streams and rivers, and we thank 
the EPA for continuing to support NDEP’s Nonpoint

Source Program with these critical annual grant funds to help ensure the long-term health 
and vibrancy of Nevada’s waterways.”
Each year, Nevada receives Clean Water Act grant funding from the EPA to administer the 
Nonpoint Source Program. NDEP releases an annual competitive grant funding 
opportunity to award funds to qualifying counties, conservation districts, regional 
agencies and nonpro�t organizations for water quality improvement projects.
NDEP’s 2020 Annual Report for the Nonpoint Source Management Program highlights the 
accomplishments of the program during the previous year, as 24 ongoing and completed 
water quality improvement projects resulted in signi�cant reduction of pollutants entering 
Nevada’s waterways. To view the annual report, visit https://ndep.nv.gov/uploads/water-
nonpoint-docs/SFY_2020_NV_NPS_Annual_Report_(1).pdf

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 86 of 97



Washoe County Health District transitions to Tier 2

By Abel Garcia
Published: Jan. 9, 2021 at 7:43 PM PST
RENO, Nev. (KOLO) - The Washoe County Health District administered more than 1,000 vaccines on Saturday as they have transitioned into 
Tier 2, starting off with educators within our district.
Exposure to too many people is just one of the many reasons Sue Munoz, an educator in Washoe County rolled up her sleeve and took the 
shot. “I do have a high community exposure just day in and day out,” Munoz said.
She added, its protection not only for herself but for those that she’s in contact with.
“I think everyone wants to feel comfortable and safe if they are out there teaching and having that daily contact with the community,” Munoz 
said.
Following the states COVID-19 Vaccine Playbook those more at risk in the Tier 2 category are educators, which gives them priority to get 
vaccinated and on Saturday more than 500 of them did. Scott Oxarart, Communications Manager said we all know the importance of 
teachers and educators in this community.

“Once we knew we had the available resources to move forward, we worked with the school district and charter and private schools to make 
sure we got them access,” Oxarart said.
For Munoz, it wasn’t an immediate yes. She was aware that the choice was up to her and the decision for you is in your control.

“I was very wary when they first talked about it because of how fast the vaccine came about and I thought I would wait, but once it came about I 
wanted to do it,” explained Munoz.
The health district said the most efficient way to find out when you are next is staying in contact with your employers.
Copyright 2021 KOLO. All rights reserved.

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 87 of 97

https://www.kolotv.com/weather/
https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?sa=L&ai=CDVI8y4X_X-jULMTM-gPi75HgDtjduuhg6YLt66UI3dkeEAEg-b_DI2DJ9oeLvKSwGaABpPKjyQPIAQngAgCoAwHIAwqqBLgCT9D-NnjCpPtFWUqkzq_RqZBCd8ekfn-QBr3bJe_Ml77DB62P6ZlJjUr-y_VC86MBCr68FiB94ewuPCfMQZFm_yyQOO-HAacSeSjWpNsvHv6n1_QAdPYbnWHFlJglcvT9h8fXLlco6CQD66eYjMOLtGkgPQ4jQuT7Mp_HDg1ylY_lGAa2AGPF6rBMfOt727iJPbrFFJws6DWGIpU9TOJmJV_Vc4zdR-rVxXjq31gbei26aoL91DWYSCm1UW6Jsmxn9LmHpAsOyhd1AZQLtAGF8Ax_-WOKADrDWixXQnY69g35Zt6y-BPqbk_MV6DQ8ONPsqpfdYvXaQketT9MU1UEHBGplBRKiSRMbP1Vv08qY_5g2uQ6SFtVpozIaGXfIWwDC-Z064yat1r36Hs6Bm1p-qfa_H8G5loJwATwt9OA_wHgBAH6BQYIJRABGACgBi6AB8SN3DaoB_DZG6gH8tkbqAeUmLECqAel3xuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAe6BqgH7paxAqgHpr4bqAfs1RuoB_PRG6gH7NUbqAeW2BvYBwDACAHSCAcIgGEQARgdgAoDkAsDmAsByAsBgAwBuAwB2BMMiBQB&ae=1&num=1&cid=CAASEuRovaX-hP7LEeDZj-sXju-lWw&sig=AOD64_3Wr5BBTv8RBmzjTx6VMZe6yD3nnA&client=ca-pub-0883126725773026&nb=19&adurl=https://gopurebeauty.com/products/gopure-daily-skin-care-system%3Futm_medium%3Dcpc%26utm_source%3Dgoogle%26utm_campaign%3DGoogle%2520Shopping%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMIqOa_uoua7gIVRKZ-Ch3idwTsEAEYASABEgICEvD_BwE
https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?sa=L&ai=CDVI8y4X_X-jULMTM-gPi75HgDtjduuhg6YLt66UI3dkeEAEg-b_DI2DJ9oeLvKSwGaABpPKjyQPIAQngAgCoAwHIAwqqBLgCT9D-NnjCpPtFWUqkzq_RqZBCd8ekfn-QBr3bJe_Ml77DB62P6ZlJjUr-y_VC86MBCr68FiB94ewuPCfMQZFm_yyQOO-HAacSeSjWpNsvHv6n1_QAdPYbnWHFlJglcvT9h8fXLlco6CQD66eYjMOLtGkgPQ4jQuT7Mp_HDg1ylY_lGAa2AGPF6rBMfOt727iJPbrFFJws6DWGIpU9TOJmJV_Vc4zdR-rVxXjq31gbei26aoL91DWYSCm1UW6Jsmxn9LmHpAsOyhd1AZQLtAGF8Ax_-WOKADrDWixXQnY69g35Zt6y-BPqbk_MV6DQ8ONPsqpfdYvXaQketT9MU1UEHBGplBRKiSRMbP1Vv08qY_5g2uQ6SFtVpozIaGXfIWwDC-Z064yat1r36Hs6Bm1p-qfa_H8G5loJwATwt9OA_wHgBAH6BQYIJRABGACgBi6AB8SN3DaoB_DZG6gH8tkbqAeUmLECqAel3xuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAe6BqgH7paxAqgHpr4bqAfs1RuoB_PRG6gH7NUbqAeW2BvYBwDACAHSCAcIgGEQARgdgAoDkAsDmAsByAsBgAwBuAwB2BMMiBQB&ae=1&num=1&cid=CAASEuRovaX-hP7LEeDZj-sXju-lWw&sig=AOD64_3Wr5BBTv8RBmzjTx6VMZe6yD3nnA&client=ca-pub-0883126725773026&nb=9&adurl=https://gopurebeauty.com/products/gopure-daily-skin-care-system%3Futm_medium%3Dcpc%26utm_source%3Dgoogle%26utm_campaign%3DGoogle%2520Shopping%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMIqOa_uoua7gIVRKZ-Ch3idwTsEAEYASABEgICEvD_BwE
https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?sa=L&ai=Cpwoey4X_X-jULMTM-gPi75HgDtjduuhg6YLt66UI3dkeEAEg-b_DI2DJ9oeLvKSwGaABpPKjyQPIAQngAgCoAwHIAwqqBLgCT9D-NnjCpPtFWUqkzq_RqZBCd8ekfn-QBr3bJe_Ml77DB62P6ZlJjUr-y_VC86MBCr68FiB94ewuPCfMQZFm_yyQOO-HAacSeSjWpNsvHv6n1_QAdPYbnWHFlJglcvT9h8fXLlco6CQD66eYjMOLtGkgPQ4jQuT7Mp_HDg1ylY_lGAa2AGPF6rBMfOt727iJPbrFFJws6DWGIpU9TOJmJV_Vc4zdR-rVxXjq31gbei26aoL91DWYSCm1UW6Jsmxn9LmHpAsOyhd1AZQLtAGF8Ax_-WOKADrDWixXQnY69g35Zt6y-BPqbk_MV6DQ8ONPsqpfdYvXaQketT9MU1UEHBGplBRKiSRMbP1Vv08qY_5g2uQ6SFtVpozIaGXfIWwDC-Z064yat1r36Hs6Bm1p-qfa_H8G5loJwATwt9OA_wHgBAH6BQYIJRABGAGgBi6AB8SN3DaoB_DZG6gH8tkbqAeUmLECqAel3xuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAe6BqgH7paxAqgHpr4bqAfs1RuoB_PRG6gH7NUbqAeW2BvYBwDACALSCAcIgGEQARgdgAoDkAsDmAsByAsBgAwBuAwB2BMMiBQB&ae=1&num=1&cid=CAASEuRovaX-hP7LEeDZj-sXju-lWw&sig=AOD64_0uF_usPJMIv8araFwt1XgzAxV2-A&client=ca-pub-0883126725773026&nb=9&adurl=https://gopurebeauty.com/products/the-ultimate-beauty-package%3Futm_medium%3Dcpc%26utm_source%3Dgoogle%26utm_campaign%3DGoogle%2520Shopping%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMIqOa_uoua7gIVRKZ-Ch3idwTsEAEYASACEgLT6PD_BwE
https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?sa=L&ai=Ck5Rjy4X_X-jULMTM-gPi75HgDtjduuhg6YLt66UI3dkeEAEg-b_DI2DJ9oeLvKSwGaABpPKjyQPIAQngAgCoAwHIAwqqBLgCT9D-NnjCpPtFWUqkzq_RqZBCd8ekfn-QBr3bJe_Ml77DB62P6ZlJjUr-y_VC86MBCr68FiB94ewuPCfMQZFm_yyQOO-HAacSeSjWpNsvHv6n1_QAdPYbnWHFlJglcvT9h8fXLlco6CQD66eYjMOLtGkgPQ4jQuT7Mp_HDg1ylY_lGAa2AGPF6rBMfOt727iJPbrFFJws6DWGIpU9TOJmJV_Vc4zdR-rVxXjq31gbei26aoL91DWYSCm1UW6Jsmxn9LmHpAsOyhd1AZQLtAGF8Ax_-WOKADrDWixXQnY69g35Zt6y-BPqbk_MV6DQ8ONPsqpfdYvXaQketT9MU1UEHBGplBRKiSRMbP1Vv08qY_5g2uQ6SFtVpozIaGXfIWwDC-Z064yat1r36Hs6Bm1p-qfa_H8G5loJwATwt9OA_wHgBAH6BQYIJRABGAKgBi6AB8SN3DaoB_DZG6gH8tkbqAeUmLECqAel3xuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAe6BqgH7paxAqgHpr4bqAfs1RuoB_PRG6gH7NUbqAeW2BvYBwDACAPSCAcIgGEQARgdgAoDkAsDmAsByAsBgAwBuAwB2BMMiBQB&ae=1&num=1&cid=CAASEuRovaX-hP7LEeDZj-sXju-lWw&sig=AOD64_3o-hNkcOdtfQUkWLuEFEnhG-A5MQ&client=ca-pub-0883126725773026&nb=9&adurl=https://gopurebeauty.com/products/gopure-trio-of-actives-anti-wrinkle-cream-kit%3Futm_medium%3Dcpc%26utm_source%3Dgoogle%26utm_campaign%3DGoogle%2520Shopping%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMIqOa_uoua7gIVRKZ-Ch3idwTsEAEYASADEgKh0PD_BwE
https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?sa=L&ai=Cpts9y4X_X-jULMTM-gPi75HgDtjduuhg6YLt66UI3dkeEAEg-b_DI2DJ9oeLvKSwGaABpPKjyQPIAQngAgCoAwHIAwqqBLgCT9D-NnjCpPtFWUqkzq_RqZBCd8ekfn-QBr3bJe_Ml77DB62P6ZlJjUr-y_VC86MBCr68FiB94ewuPCfMQZFm_yyQOO-HAacSeSjWpNsvHv6n1_QAdPYbnWHFlJglcvT9h8fXLlco6CQD66eYjMOLtGkgPQ4jQuT7Mp_HDg1ylY_lGAa2AGPF6rBMfOt727iJPbrFFJws6DWGIpU9TOJmJV_Vc4zdR-rVxXjq31gbei26aoL91DWYSCm1UW6Jsmxn9LmHpAsOyhd1AZQLtAGF8Ax_-WOKADrDWixXQnY69g35Zt6y-BPqbk_MV6DQ8ONPsqpfdYvXaQketT9MU1UEHBGplBRKiSRMbP1Vv08qY_5g2uQ6SFtVpozIaGXfIWwDC-Z064yat1r36Hs6Bm1p-qfa_H8G5loJwATwt9OA_wHgBAH6BQYIJRABGAOgBi6AB8SN3DaoB_DZG6gH8tkbqAeUmLECqAel3xuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAe6BqgH7paxAqgHpr4bqAfs1RuoB_PRG6gH7NUbqAeW2BvYBwDACATSCAcIgGEQARgdgAoDkAsDmAsByAsBgAwBuAwB2BMMiBQB&ae=1&num=1&cid=CAASEuRovaX-hP7LEeDZj-sXju-lWw&sig=AOD64_3BFzzfDQE7wZEChwCdakfx9XT2Ww&client=ca-pub-0883126725773026&nb=9&adurl=https://gopurebeauty.com/products/gopure-vitamin-c-day-moisturizer-deep-hydration-with-jojoba-oil-shea-butter-vitamins-c-b5%3Futm_medium%3Dcpc%26utm_source%3Dgoogle%26utm_campaign%3DGoogle%2520Shopping%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMIqOa_uoua7gIVRKZ-Ch3idwTsEAEYASAEEgLAWPD_BwE
https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?sa=L&ai=Cvq79y4X_X-jULMTM-gPi75HgDtjduuhg6YLt66UI3dkeEAEg-b_DI2DJ9oeLvKSwGaABpPKjyQPIAQngAgCoAwHIAwqqBLgCT9D-NnjCpPtFWUqkzq_RqZBCd8ekfn-QBr3bJe_Ml77DB62P6ZlJjUr-y_VC86MBCr68FiB94ewuPCfMQZFm_yyQOO-HAacSeSjWpNsvHv6n1_QAdPYbnWHFlJglcvT9h8fXLlco6CQD66eYjMOLtGkgPQ4jQuT7Mp_HDg1ylY_lGAa2AGPF6rBMfOt727iJPbrFFJws6DWGIpU9TOJmJV_Vc4zdR-rVxXjq31gbei26aoL91DWYSCm1UW6Jsmxn9LmHpAsOyhd1AZQLtAGF8Ax_-WOKADrDWixXQnY69g35Zt6y-BPqbk_MV6DQ8ONPsqpfdYvXaQketT9MU1UEHBGplBRKiSRMbP1Vv08qY_5g2uQ6SFtVpozIaGXfIWwDC-Z064yat1r36Hs6Bm1p-qfa_H8G5loJwATwt9OA_wHgBAH6BQYIJRABGASgBi6AB8SN3DaoB_DZG6gH8tkbqAeUmLECqAel3xuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAe6BqgH7paxAqgHpr4bqAfs1RuoB_PRG6gH7NUbqAeW2BvYBwDACAXSCAcIgGEQARgdgAoDkAsDmAsByAsBgAwBuAwB2BMMiBQB&ae=1&num=1&cid=CAASEuRovaX-hP7LEeDZj-sXju-lWw&sig=AOD64_21Ygbz6Hz0HrUWg3Ln8qwUkjm13Q&client=ca-pub-0883126725773026&nb=9&adurl=https://gopurebeauty.com/products/gopure-vitamin-c-serum-for-face%3Futm_medium%3Dcpc%26utm_source%3Dgoogle%26utm_campaign%3DGoogle%2520Shopping%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMIqOa_uoua7gIVRKZ-Ch3idwTsEAEYASAFEgIHX_D_BwE
https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?sa=L&ai=CbRNYy4X_X-jULMTM-gPi75HgDtjduuhg6YLt66UI3dkeEAEg-b_DI2DJ9oeLvKSwGaABpPKjyQPIAQngAgCoAwHIAwqqBLgCT9D-NnjCpPtFWUqkzq_RqZBCd8ekfn-QBr3bJe_Ml77DB62P6ZlJjUr-y_VC86MBCr68FiB94ewuPCfMQZFm_yyQOO-HAacSeSjWpNsvHv6n1_QAdPYbnWHFlJglcvT9h8fXLlco6CQD66eYjMOLtGkgPQ4jQuT7Mp_HDg1ylY_lGAa2AGPF6rBMfOt727iJPbrFFJws6DWGIpU9TOJmJV_Vc4zdR-rVxXjq31gbei26aoL91DWYSCm1UW6Jsmxn9LmHpAsOyhd1AZQLtAGF8Ax_-WOKADrDWixXQnY69g35Zt6y-BPqbk_MV6DQ8ONPsqpfdYvXaQketT9MU1UEHBGplBRKiSRMbP1Vv08qY_5g2uQ6SFtVpozIaGXfIWwDC-Z064yat1r36Hs6Bm1p-qfa_H8G5loJwATwt9OA_wHgBAH6BQYIJRABGAWgBi6AB8SN3DaoB_DZG6gH8tkbqAeUmLECqAel3xuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAe6BqgH7paxAqgHpr4bqAfs1RuoB_PRG6gH7NUbqAeW2BvYBwDACAbSCAcIgGEQARgdgAoDkAsDmAsByAsBgAwBuAwB2BMMiBQB&ae=1&num=1&cid=CAASEuRovaX-hP7LEeDZj-sXju-lWw&sig=AOD64_1hQt9lQ5AV83dPwCaAWSQZzXWEQg&client=ca-pub-0883126725773026&nb=9&adurl=https://gopurebeauty.com/products/gopure-facial-care-combo%3Futm_medium%3Dcpc%26utm_source%3Dgoogle%26utm_campaign%3DGoogle%2520Shopping%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMIqOa_uoua7gIVRKZ-Ch3idwTsEAEYASAGEgKBvvD_BwE
https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?sa=L&ai=CfdLhy4X_X-jULMTM-gPi75HgDtjduuhg6YLt66UI3dkeEAEg-b_DI2DJ9oeLvKSwGaABpPKjyQPIAQngAgCoAwHIAwqqBLgCT9D-NnjCpPtFWUqkzq_RqZBCd8ekfn-QBr3bJe_Ml77DB62P6ZlJjUr-y_VC86MBCr68FiB94ewuPCfMQZFm_yyQOO-HAacSeSjWpNsvHv6n1_QAdPYbnWHFlJglcvT9h8fXLlco6CQD66eYjMOLtGkgPQ4jQuT7Mp_HDg1ylY_lGAa2AGPF6rBMfOt727iJPbrFFJws6DWGIpU9TOJmJV_Vc4zdR-rVxXjq31gbei26aoL91DWYSCm1UW6Jsmxn9LmHpAsOyhd1AZQLtAGF8Ax_-WOKADrDWixXQnY69g35Zt6y-BPqbk_MV6DQ8ONPsqpfdYvXaQketT9MU1UEHBGplBRKiSRMbP1Vv08qY_5g2uQ6SFtVpozIaGXfIWwDC-Z064yat1r36Hs6Bm1p-qfa_H8G5loJwATwt9OA_wHgBAH6BQYIJRABGAagBi6AB8SN3DaoB_DZG6gH8tkbqAeUmLECqAel3xuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAe6BqgH7paxAqgHpr4bqAfs1RuoB_PRG6gH7NUbqAeW2BvYBwDACAfSCAcIgGEQARgdgAoDkAsDmAsByAsBgAwBuAwB2BMMiBQB&ae=1&num=1&cid=CAASEuRovaX-hP7LEeDZj-sXju-lWw&sig=AOD64_0ruyGVnZoXp8-jGXDoZq5Kgk31Eg&client=ca-pub-0883126725773026&nb=9&adurl=https://gopurebeauty.com/products/gopure-actives-brighten-even-serum-for-improving-the-appearance-of-dark-spots-for-more-even-brighter-younger-looking-skin%3Futm_medium%3Dcpc%26utm_source%3Dgoogle%26utm_campaign%3DGoogle%2520Shopping%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMIqOa_uoua7gIVRKZ-Ch3idwTsEAEYASAHEgLOvfD_BwE
https://www.kolotv.com/authors/abel-garcia/
https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?sa=L&ai=CY6dLyoX_X-KcNs-7_AOu1pyQBd6__rJgtYbJ18oMkPrf-dwJEAEg-b_DI2DJ9oeLvKSwGaABxvvuzwPIAQLgAgCoAwHIAwiqBLcCT9CXgVZ3Vez8mqMdL7NewrSL9Au2JzvLuNcflyNG2KRJScrlDICAM0ob78nWci-mIv0PSWNLgPvJ-jbg-XLAKnj3g1uvayheJ66hpuJwDEoQY3u9MSJxPosI1Ry-pPmARwXN5cHYbBujy8HOs7pua_rVAWXFJqM_4ig1S9PuoHe-D8ZasS5cXg52WJgiIKHjSixtsqFnlBh3fzp7bRIJGHxhhhZ4XzAZdKw2eFm5HKeNTOHk1CBQ382Nc-CINFdcBmMLJ2ayZWMZ_h8k9pVwyAM-pIxC3KJODMOlnItLfal1YAyQnzWB2wzZPY88yYbiZpQLb_rMUEYasllurJFBW89C_tuBwny8h31UVy3b477Xs6HTrTdyIsNXP12tQT8VbrkVKfCsOsPfY67PTmwCf2yO8i_D1CvABNe16IOxA-AEAaAGAoAHooSRMKgH1ckbqAfw2RuoB_LZG6gHlJixAqgHpd8bqAeOzhuoB5PYG6gHugaoB-6WsQKoB6a-G6gH7NUbqAfz0RuoB-zVG6gHltgb2AcB0ggHCIBhEAEYHbEJnPVw4zHXR8CACgOKCswBaHR0cHM6Ly9tb25pdG9yLnBwY3Byb3RlY3QuY29tL3YxLjAvdGVtcGxhdGU_YWNjaWQ9MTE4ODUma3c9Jm10PSZudz1kJmNwbj0xMTU3NDExMTc0MyZkZXZpPWMmZGV2bT0mbG9jcD05MDMwODkwJmxvY2k9JnBsPXd3dy5rb2xvdHYuY29tJmNyPTQ4MDMxNzI3OTE2NiZhZHA9bm9uZSZydWlkPTE5MTEwODQ0MTAxODMwMjU0MzM4JnNhZHQ9JnVybD17bHB1cmx9mAsByAsB4AsBuAwB2BMN&ae=1&num=1&cid=CAASEuRohzyn2WqK3mmga0V2wWVE_g&sig=AOD64_1YbjAWoqejjLKf7Drd49yKaxDN1A&client=ca-pub-0883126725773026&nx=CLICK_X&ny=CLICK_Y&nb=2&adurl=https://www.hyperlitemountaingear.com/ultralight-stuff-sacks-pods.html%3Fgclid%3DEAIaIQobChMI4qmMuoua7gIVzx1_Ch0uKwdSEAEYASAAEgKCofD_BwE


TravelTravel //// TahoeTahoe

Lake Tahoe considers 'controversial' herbicides for theLake Tahoe considers 'controversial' herbicides for the
first time in fight against aquatic weedsfirst time in fight against aquatic weeds
Julie BrownJulie Brown

Updated: Jan. 13, 2021 12:43 p.m.Updated: Jan. 13, 2021 12:43 p.m.

Officials have identified the Tahoe Keys as the primary source for an aquatic weed infestation that isOfficials have identified the Tahoe Keys as the primary source for an aquatic weed infestation that is
spreading into Lake Tahoe.spreading into Lake Tahoe.
Courtesy of League to Save Lake TahoeCourtesy of League to Save Lake Tahoe

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 88 of 97

https://www.sfgate.com/travel/
https://www.sfgate.com/renotahoe/
https://www.sfgate.com/author/julie-brown/
https://www.sfgate.com/news/article/Banks-partners-flee-Trump-brand-in-backlash-to-15865907.php
https://www.sfgate.com/realestate/article/Good-Riddance-to-Open-Floor-Plans-and-Cabinets-15864276.php
https://www.sfgate.com/news/article/Pence-Reached-His-Limit-With-Trump-It-Wasn-t-15866114.php
https://www.sfgate.com/politics/article/Barbara-Boxer-China-foreign-agent-Uighur-Muslims-15865511.php
https://www.facebook.com/dialog/feed?app_id=1609422252616351&link=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.sfgate.com%2Frenotahoe%2Farticle%2FLake-Tahoe-keys-aquatic-invasive-weeds-15853401.php%3Futm_campaign%3DCMS%2520Sharing%2520Tools%2520(Premium)%26utm_source%3Dfacebook.com%26utm_medium%3Dreferral&name=Lake%20Tahoe%20considers%20%26%23039%3Bcontroversial%26%23039%3B%20herbicides%20for%20the%20first%20time%20in%20fight%20against%20aquatic%20weeds&description=The%20source%20of%20an%20invasive%20weed%20problem%20in%20Lake%20Tahoe%20is%20a%20development%20from%20the%201960s.&picture=https%3A%2F%2Fs.hdnux.com%2Fphotos%2F01%2F16%2F04%2F77%2F20467650%2F3%2FrawImage.jpg&redirect_uri=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.sfgate.com%2Frenotahoe%2Farticle%2FLake-Tahoe-keys-aquatic-invasive-weeds-15853401.php%3Futm_campaign%3DCMS%2520Sharing%2520Tools%2520(Premium)%26utm_source%3DUTMSOURCE%26utm_medium%3DUTMMEDIUM
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.sfgate.com%2Frenotahoe%2Farticle%2FLake-Tahoe-keys-aquatic-invasive-weeds-15853401.php%3Futm_campaign%3DCMS%2520Sharing%2520Tools%2520(Premium)%26utm_source%3Dt.co%26utm_medium%3Dreferral&text=Lake%20Tahoe%20considers%20%26%23039%3Bcontroversial%26%23039%3B%20herbicides%20for%20the%20first%20time%20in%20fight%20against%20aquatic%20weeds
mailto:?subject=Your%20friend%20has%20shared%20a%20SFGATE%20link%20with%20you%3A%20&body=Lake%20Tahoe%20considers%20%26%23039%3Bcontroversial%26%23039%3B%20herbicides%20for%20the%20first%20time%20in%20fight%20against%20aquatic%20weeds%0A%0Ahttps%3A%2F%2Fwww.sfgate.com%2Frenotahoe%2Farticle%2FLake-Tahoe-keys-aquatic-invasive-weeds-15853401.php%3Futm_campaign%3DCMS%2520Sharing%2520Tools%2520(Premium)%26utm_source%3Dshare-by-email%26utm_medium%3Demail%0A%0AThe%20source%20of%20an%20invasive%20weed%20problem%20in%20Lake%20Tahoe%20is%20a%20development%20from%20the%201960s.%0A%0AThis%20message%20was%20sent%20via%20SFGATE
https://www.sfgate.com/renotahoe/articleComments/Lake-Tahoe-keys-aquatic-invasive-weeds-15853401.php
https://www.sfgate.com/news/article/Banks-partners-flee-Trump-brand-in-backlash-to-15865907.php


Invasive aquatic weeds are spreading in Lake Tahoe, and of�cials are consideringInvasive aquatic weeds are spreading in Lake Tahoe, and of�cials are considering

the �rst-ever use of herbicides in Tahoe to contain the problem, which stems fromthe �rst-ever use of herbicides in Tahoe to contain the problem, which stems from

a man-made lagoon and marina called the Tahoe Keys.a man-made lagoon and marina called the Tahoe Keys.

Last fall, on one of the last warm days of the year, I pulled into the Tahoe Keys, aLast fall, on one of the last warm days of the year, I pulled into the Tahoe Keys, a

quirky subdivision that was built in the 1960s on wetlands in South Lake Tahoe. Thequirky subdivision that was built in the 1960s on wetlands in South Lake Tahoe. The

dead-end streets and cul de sacs felt like a maze of �ngers stretching betweendead-end streets and cul de sacs felt like a maze of �ngers stretching between

water canals and lagoons, like if Venice was a suburb.water canals and lagoons, like if Venice was a suburb.

There are 1,500 homes in the Tahoe Keys. Many of the homes have piers stretchingThere are 1,500 homes in the Tahoe Keys. Many of the homes have piers stretching

from their backyards into waterways that connect to Lake Tahoe. Before thesefrom their backyards into waterways that connect to Lake Tahoe. Before these

homes and canals were built, this land was full of meadows and marshes that madehomes and canals were built, this land was full of meadows and marshes that made

up the largest wetland in the Sierra Nevada.up the largest wetland in the Sierra Nevada.

The wetlands once played a fundamental role to �lter sediment and pollution fromThe wetlands once played a fundamental role to �lter sediment and pollution from

a major tributary into Lake Tahoe, the Upper Truckee River.a major tributary into Lake Tahoe, the Upper Truckee River.

Now, of�cials have identi�ed the Tahoe Keys as the “primary source” for anNow, of�cials have identi�ed the Tahoe Keys as the “primary source” for an

infestation of weeds that has already started to march into Lake Tahoe andinfestation of weeds that has already started to march into Lake Tahoe and

threatens to spread quickly.threatens to spread quickly.

ADVERTISEMENTADVERTISEMENT
Article continues below this adArticle continues below this ad

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 89 of 97



Last July, the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency and the Lahontan Regional WaterLast July, the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency and the Lahontan Regional Water

Quality Control Board published a draft environmental impact statement for aQuality Control Board published a draft environmental impact statement for a

control test to �ght the aquatic weeds. The solution that’s being proposed iscontrol test to �ght the aquatic weeds. The solution that’s being proposed is

controversial and has never been done before. If approved, the Lahontan watercontroversial and has never been done before. If approved, the Lahontan water

board would grant an exemption to a rule that prohibits herbicides in Tahoe soboard would grant an exemption to a rule that prohibits herbicides in Tahoe so

they could be used in a test to measure their ef�cacy to destroy the weeds beforethey could be used in a test to measure their ef�cacy to destroy the weeds before

the infestation gets worse. Opponents like the Sierra Club call the herbicides the infestation gets worse. Opponents like the Sierra Club call the herbicides aa

"Band-Aid" solution"Band-Aid" solution that could have greater consequences. But it's a last resort that could have greater consequences. But it's a last resort

option that even the League to Save Lake Tahoe — a staunch defender of the lake’soption that even the League to Save Lake Tahoe — a staunch defender of the lake’s

clarity and ecology — supports, with conditions.clarity and ecology — supports, with conditions.

“Some stakeholders believe using aquatic herbicide is the only way to confront a“Some stakeholders believe using aquatic herbicide is the only way to confront a

weed infestation of this magnitude,” reads the environmental impact statement.weed infestation of this magnitude,” reads the environmental impact statement.

I wanted to learn more, not just about the herbicides and the weeds, but how aI wanted to learn more, not just about the herbicides and the weeds, but how a

development built on important wetlands started this big issue in the �rst place.development built on important wetlands started this big issue in the �rst place.

That's how I wound up in the Tahoe Keys to meet representatives of the League toThat's how I wound up in the Tahoe Keys to meet representatives of the League to

Save Lake Tahoe and the Tahoe Keys Property Owners Association. They said theySave Lake Tahoe and the Tahoe Keys Property Owners Association. They said they

could show me the problem, which is clearly visible beneath the water.could show me the problem, which is clearly visible beneath the water.

I parked my car on the side of a cul-de-sac and walked across the street to meetI parked my car on the side of a cul-de-sac and walked across the street to meet

Jesse Patterson and Chris Joseph, chief strategy of�cer and communicationsJesse Patterson and Chris Joseph, chief strategy of�cer and communications

manager, respectively, of the League to Save Lake Tahoe. They led me down a rampmanager, respectively, of the League to Save Lake Tahoe. They led me down a ramp

toward the water where a pontoon boat was waiting for us. On board was Gregtoward the water where a pontoon boat was waiting for us. On board was Greg

Hoover, who supervises the weed control operations for the Tahoe Keys PropertyHoover, who supervises the weed control operations for the Tahoe Keys Property

Owners Association. This group has been working collaboratively with theOwners Association. This group has been working collaboratively with the

Lahontan water board and the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency, among otherLahontan water board and the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency, among other

ADVERTISEMENTADVERTISEMENT
Article continues below this adArticle continues below this ad

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 90 of 97

https://www.sierraclub.org/sierra/plan-proposes-first-ever-use-herbicides-lake-tahoe


groups, on the complex and controversial project to cut back the aquatic weeds ingroups, on the complex and controversial project to cut back the aquatic weeds in

the Tahoe Keys and stop the infestation’s spread in Lake Tahoe.the Tahoe Keys and stop the infestation’s spread in Lake Tahoe.

As soon as the pontoon left shore, a mess of oozing, stringy, brown muck spit outAs soon as the pontoon left shore, a mess of oozing, stringy, brown muck spit out

from beneath the boat. The plants swirled at the surface of the water, like a clumpfrom beneath the boat. The plants swirled at the surface of the water, like a clump

of seaweed except we were hundreds of miles from the ocean. As we motored outof seaweed except we were hundreds of miles from the ocean. As we motored out

into the canals, I could see strings of plant life circling along the water’s surface andinto the canals, I could see strings of plant life circling along the water’s surface and

gathering in slimy clumps everywhere.gathering in slimy clumps everywhere.

The homeowners in the Tahoe Keys have been dealing with this mess since theThe homeowners in the Tahoe Keys have been dealing with this mess since the

1970s at least. It’s Hoover’s job to harvest and control those weeds, which are mostly1970s at least. It’s Hoover’s job to harvest and control those weeds, which are mostly

Eurasian watermilfoil, coontail and curlyleaf pondweed. His method is essentially toEurasian watermilfoil, coontail and curlyleaf pondweed. His method is essentially to

mow the water, he explains. Imagine a �oating lawn mower on a paddle wheel thatmow the water, he explains. Imagine a �oating lawn mower on a paddle wheel that

chops the top four to �ve feet of the plants off.chops the top four to �ve feet of the plants off.

Hoover told me his staff mows the water and cuts back the weeds �ve days a weekHoover told me his staff mows the water and cuts back the weeds �ve days a week

in the summer. (The Tahoe Keys are mostly frozen over in winter.) But it’s not veryin the summer. (The Tahoe Keys are mostly frozen over in winter.) But it’s not very

effective. Like a lawn mower, the harvesting boat leaves fragments of the plants ineffective. Like a lawn mower, the harvesting boat leaves fragments of the plants in

its wake. Those fragments �oat to the bottom and seed new plants, making theits wake. Those fragments �oat to the bottom and seed new plants, making the

issue worse.issue worse.

“One fragment creates one new plant,” Hoover said, explaining the process to me as“One fragment creates one new plant,” Hoover said, explaining the process to me as

the pontoon steadily motored through the canals. “That’s just the way it works.”the pontoon steadily motored through the canals. “That’s just the way it works.”

ADVERTISEMENTADVERTISEMENT
Article continues below this adArticle continues below this ad

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 91 of 97



The weeds are out of control and have profoundly altered the ecosystem in theThe weeds are out of control and have profoundly altered the ecosystem in the

Tahoe Keys. The infestation has spread to 172 acres of the subdivision’s waterways.Tahoe Keys. The infestation has spread to 172 acres of the subdivision’s waterways.

Although the Keys are man-made, they still have qualities of a wetland with aAlthough the Keys are man-made, they still have qualities of a wetland with a

marshy bottom and warmer water. The invasive aquatic weeds are changing themarshy bottom and warmer water. The invasive aquatic weeds are changing the

nutrient concentrations and temperatures of the water. The growth is so dense, it’snutrient concentrations and temperatures of the water. The growth is so dense, it’s

dif�cult for boats to navigate through the water, not to mention other health anddif�cult for boats to navigate through the water, not to mention other health and

safety risks associated with overgrown plant material in dark waters. Native �shsafety risks associated with overgrown plant material in dark waters. Native �sh

species are also in peril.species are also in peril.

And now, in large part because of boat traf�c from the Keys, the weeds have alreadyAnd now, in large part because of boat traf�c from the Keys, the weeds have already

spread across 100 acres in Lake Tahoe. The infestation has been growing steadily inspread across 100 acres in Lake Tahoe. The infestation has been growing steadily in

recent years and is fast catching up to the size of the problem inside the Keys. Lastrecent years and is fast catching up to the size of the problem inside the Keys. Last

October, the League to Save Lake Tahoe, the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency andOctober, the League to Save Lake Tahoe, the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency and

the Tahoe Resource Conservation District teamed up with a combination of public-the Tahoe Resource Conservation District teamed up with a combination of public-

private funding to dispatch scuba divers with the Marine Taxonomic Services toprivate funding to dispatch scuba divers with the Marine Taxonomic Services to

Agencies and property owners are collaborating on a solution to combat the invasive weeds. AnAgencies and property owners are collaborating on a solution to combat the invasive weeds. An
environmental study is underway for a test that may use herbicides for the first time in Lake Tahoe.environmental study is underway for a test that may use herbicides for the first time in Lake Tahoe.
Courtesy of League to Save Lake TahoeCourtesy of League to Save Lake Tahoe

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 92 of 97



Lake Tahoe to pull up the invasive weeds by hand and with “suction-dredging”Lake Tahoe to pull up the invasive weeds by hand and with “suction-dredging”

equipment. Patterson described it to me as if scuba divers had shop vacs.equipment. Patterson described it to me as if scuba divers had shop vacs.

“We’re going to see what grows back,” Patterson said in a phone interview the �rst“We’re going to see what grows back,” Patterson said in a phone interview the �rst

week of January. The scuba diver cleanup will be expanded next summer, too. Theweek of January. The scuba diver cleanup will be expanded next summer, too. The

method is expensive and time-consuming, but hopefully it’s effective.method is expensive and time-consuming, but hopefully it’s effective.

To help prevent further spread of the infestation, the Keys installed a “bubbleTo help prevent further spread of the infestation, the Keys installed a “bubble

curtain” at the mouth of the west channel, which connects the residential lagoonscurtain” at the mouth of the west channel, which connects the residential lagoons

to Lake Tahoe. It’s like a v-shaped underwater wall of bubbles that’s designed toto Lake Tahoe. It’s like a v-shaped underwater wall of bubbles that’s designed to

dislodge fragments of the weeds from the underbellies of boats leaving the Keys.dislodge fragments of the weeds from the underbellies of boats leaving the Keys.

Then, seabins, or “�oating trash cans” as the League describes them, collect theThen, seabins, or “�oating trash cans” as the League describes them, collect the

fragments before they land and seed new plants. A second bubble curtain is goingfragments before they land and seed new plants. A second bubble curtain is going

to be installed on the east channel, the entrance between the Keys marina and theto be installed on the east channel, the entrance between the Keys marina and the

lake, this winter.lake, this winter.

Most PopularMost Popular

Banks, partners flee Trump brand in backlash to attackBanks, partners flee Trump brand in backlash to attack11..

Good Riddance to Open Floor Plans and Cabinets Galore: Top Kitchen Trends of 2021Good Riddance to Open Floor Plans and Cabinets Galore: Top Kitchen Trends of 202122..

Pence reached his limit with Trump. It wasn't pretty.Pence reached his limit with Trump. It wasn't pretty.33..

Former Sen. Barbara Boxer is now working for a Chinese surveillance firmFormer Sen. Barbara Boxer is now working for a Chinese surveillance firm44..

Lost Passwords Lock Millionaires Out of Their Bitcoin FortunesLost Passwords Lock Millionaires Out of Their Bitcoin Fortunes55..

Sacramento region exits stay-at-home order, allowing many businesses to reopenSacramento region exits stay-at-home order, allowing many businesses to reopen

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 93 of 97

https://www.sfgate.com/news/article/Banks-partners-flee-Trump-brand-in-backlash-to-15865907.php
https://www.sfgate.com/realestate/article/Good-Riddance-to-Open-Floor-Plans-and-Cabinets-15864276.php
https://www.sfgate.com/news/article/Pence-Reached-His-Limit-With-Trump-It-Wasn-t-15866114.php
https://www.sfgate.com/politics/article/Barbara-Boxer-China-foreign-agent-Uighur-Muslims-15865511.php
https://www.sfgate.com/business/article/Lost-Passwords-Lock-Millionaires-Out-of-Their-15864082.php
https://www.sfgate.com/bayarea/article/Greater-Sacramento-region-stay-at-home-order-15865727.php


Patterson pointed out that the problem in the lake is vastly different from thePatterson pointed out that the problem in the lake is vastly different from the

problem inside the Keys. Divers can still come in and pluck weeds from Lake Tahoe,problem inside the Keys. Divers can still come in and pluck weeds from Lake Tahoe,

but they couldn’t do that in the Keys because it’s so overgrown and so mucky thatbut they couldn’t do that in the Keys because it’s so overgrown and so mucky that

any disturbance would lead to a blinding black swirl of mud.any disturbance would lead to a blinding black swirl of mud.

That’s why of�cials are looking to use a last resort option in the Tahoe Keys:That’s why of�cials are looking to use a last resort option in the Tahoe Keys:

herbicides.herbicides.

Herbicides are prohibited in Lake Tahoe, which is designated as an OutstandingHerbicides are prohibited in Lake Tahoe, which is designated as an Outstanding

National Resource Water. That means that Lake Tahoe is held to strict water qualityNational Resource Water. That means that Lake Tahoe is held to strict water quality

standards, including a ban on any element that would degrade the water.standards, including a ban on any element that would degrade the water.

But the weed problem has gotten so bad that in 2017, the Tahoe Keys PropertyBut the weed problem has gotten so bad that in 2017, the Tahoe Keys Property

Owners Association submitted an exemption application to the Lahontan RegionalOwners Association submitted an exemption application to the Lahontan Regional

Water Quality Control Board. The idea is to implement a test that's small in scopeWater Quality Control Board. The idea is to implement a test that's small in scope

and will help of�cials see the impact herbicides might have to control the weedand will help of�cials see the impact herbicides might have to control the weed

infestation.infestation.

The test would look at a variety of methods in different control plots. In addition toThe test would look at a variety of methods in different control plots. In addition to

aquatic herbicides, the test would also include UV light and a method calledaquatic herbicides, the test would also include UV light and a method called

laminar �ow aeration that removes nutrients from the sediment. Patterson said thelaminar �ow aeration that removes nutrients from the sediment. Patterson said the

environmental study for the test cost more than $1 million. It would be a three-yearenvironmental study for the test cost more than $1 million. It would be a three-year

test with a two-year observation period. After the test, of�cials expect to use thetest with a two-year observation period. After the test, of�cials expect to use the

results to do another environmental review for a larger-scale project to contain theresults to do another environmental review for a larger-scale project to contain the

weed infestation at large throughout the Tahoe Keys.weed infestation at large throughout the Tahoe Keys.

66..
Pea Soup Andersen's, famed California road stop, is up for salePea Soup Andersen's, famed California road stop, is up for sale77..

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 94 of 97

https://www.sfgate.com/bayarea/article/Greater-Sacramento-region-stay-at-home-order-15865727.php
https://www.sfgate.com/travel/editorspicks/article/Pea-Soup-Andersens-road-stop-for-sale-15863007.php


“It’s a huge deal. We want to make sure it’s done correctly and done in a way that“It’s a huge deal. We want to make sure it’s done correctly and done in a way that

addresses the aquatic invasive species threat,” Patterson said. “We’re not interestedaddresses the aquatic invasive species threat,” Patterson said. “We’re not interested

in using [herbicides] in perpetuity or using them anywhere else but the Keys.”in using [herbicides] in perpetuity or using them anywhere else but the Keys.”

Patterson said the league is comfortable with the test’s use of the herbicidesPatterson said the league is comfortable with the test’s use of the herbicides

because the concentrations are low and it would be a one-time use intended tobecause the concentrations are low and it would be a one-time use intended to

knock the weeds back to a level that would make them manageable with other non-knock the weeds back to a level that would make them manageable with other non-

herbicide methods. The league does not support using the herbicides permanently.herbicide methods. The league does not support using the herbicides permanently.

“That’s too big a risk,” Patterson said.“That’s too big a risk,” Patterson said.

A decision to approve the draft environmental impact statement and the testA decision to approve the draft environmental impact statement and the test

project was originally slated for later this winter, but the Lahontan water boardproject was originally slated for later this winter, but the Lahontan water board

delayed a decision until summer 2021. The delay bumps back the test project untildelayed a decision until summer 2021. The delay bumps back the test project until

spring 2022, at least.spring 2022, at least.

“Number one, we want to make sure that the environmental review and that the“Number one, we want to make sure that the environmental review and that the

agencies are doing their due diligence so we get the best test,” Patterson said. “Weagencies are doing their due diligence so we get the best test,” Patterson said. “We

build public con�dence in the process. We build the test in a way that will tell usbuild public con�dence in the process. We build the test in a way that will tell us

what a long term solution will look like.”what a long term solution will look like.”

More Lake Tahoe NewsMore Lake Tahoe News

-- A fortune, a widow and a castle in Lake Tahoe's Emerald BayA fortune, a widow and a castle in Lake Tahoe's Emerald Bay

- -  TahoeTahoe will host NHL games in February will host NHL games in February

--  2 Lake Tahoe counties, Truckee call for Airbnb ban during order2 Lake Tahoe counties, Truckee call for Airbnb ban during order

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 95 of 97

https://www.sfgate.com/renotahoe/article/lora-knight-emerald-bay-vikingsholm-tahoe-15853281.php
https://www.sfgate.com/sports/article/Tahoe-will-host-NHL-games-in-February-15840421.php
https://www.sfgate.com/sports/article/Tahoe-will-host-NHL-games-in-February-15840421.php
https://www.sfgate.com/travel/article/Lake-Tahoe-Airbnb-stay-at-home-order-ban-15824496.php


From: Zimmerman, John
To: greydove1939@yahoo.com
Subject: RE: New submission from Comments to the Board
Date: Monday, December 28, 2020 4:29:10 PM

Hi JoAnn,
Thank you for your comment.  TMWA does not control the amount or type of landscaping required
for residential subdivisions in the Truckee Meadows.  The local governments have set minimum
landscaping requirements that developers must adhere to within each jurisdiction.  Please let me
know if you have any questions or want to discuss.  I will ensure that your email is included in the
record for the next TMWA Board meeting.  I will also include this response.
 
Thanks.
 
John
 
John R. Zimmerman, Esq.
Water Resources Manager
Truckee Meadows Water Authority
1355 Capital Blvd. I Reno, NV 89502
O: (775) 834-8223, M: (775) 843-2764
jzimmerman@tmwa.com I www.tmwa.com

From: WEBSITE: Comments to the Board <info@waterforms.net> 
Sent: Saturday, December 26, 2020 10:29 AM
To: Folsom, Sonia <sfolsom@tmwa.com>
Subject: New submission from Comments to the Board
 

Name

 JoAnn Hass

Email

 greydove1939@yahoo.com01506260

Account Number

 01506260

Comments

 

It seems unwise/STUPID in a drought prone area to allow developers to force home owners to have
grass or junipers in their landscaping. Somersett/Sierra Canyon is a large community and our water
usage for landscaping must be tremendous. If Reno/TMWA changed their requirements, think of our
resource savings. We can beautify our communities in many other ways without wasting water. After all,
this high desert has many beautiful plants! Thank you.

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 96 of 97

mailto:jzimmerman@tmwa.com
mailto:greydove1939@yahoo.com
mailto:jzimmerman@tmwa.com
http://www.tmwa.com/
mailto:info@waterforms.net
mailto:sfolsom@tmwa.com
mailto:greydove1939@yahoo.com01506260


***Our vision is to enhance the quality of life in the Truckee Meadows by delivering exceptional,
customer-focused water services.***

01-20-21 BOARD Agenda Item 14

Page 97 of 97


	__2021.0120-BOD-06-Agenda.Final
	__2021.0120-BOD-07-Draft-12-16-20-Minutes
	__2021.0120-BOD-08-Water-Supply-Update
	__2021.0120-BOD-09-WRWC-2021-Appt.Report
	__2021.0120-BOD-10-WRWC-2021-23-Appts.Report
	__2021.0120-BOD-11-2021-Legislative-Subcommittee.REPORT
	__2021.0120-BOD-12-TMWA-Water-Resources.Report
	_2021.0120-BOD-12.0-TMWA-Water-Resources.Report
	_2021.0120-BOD-12.1-TMWA-Water-Resources-Prez

	__2021.0120-BOD-13-Board-Questions-TMWA-Rules.Report
	__2021.0120-BOD-14-General-Manager-Report
	_2021.0120-BOD-14.0-GM-Report-Cover
	_2021.0120-BOD-14.A-GM-Operations.Report
	_2021.0120-BOD-14.B-GM-Water-Resources.Report
	_2021.0120-BOD-14.C-GM-Customer-Service.Report

	__2021.0120-BOD-14-Press-Clips
	2021.0120-BOD-14-Press-Clippings Cover




